
Oregon 
  Investment 

Council 
 March 9, 2016 - 9:00 AM 

       PERS Headquarters 
11410 S.W. 68th Parkway 

        Tigard, OR  97223 

Katy Durant 
Chair 

John Skjervem 
Chief Investment Officer 

         Ted Wheeler 
             State Treasurer 



Katy Durant Rukaiyah Adams Rex Kim John Russell Ted Wheeler Steve Rodeman 
Chair Vice Chair Member Member State Treasurer PERS Director 

OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 

Agenda 

March 9, 2016 

9:00 AM 

PERS Headquarters 

11410 S.W. 68
th

 Parkway

Tigard, OR  97223 

Time A. Action Items Presenter Tab 

9:00-9:05 1. Review & Approval of Minutes Katy Durant 1 

February 3, 2016 OIC Chair 

Committee Reports John Skjervem 

Chief Investment Officer 

9:05-9:50 2. Lone Star Real Estate Fund V Tony Breault 2 

OPERF Real Estate Portfolio Senior Investment Officer 

Austin Carmichael 

Investment Officer 

John Grayken 

CEO and Founder 

Nick Beevers 

Managing Director 

Christy Fields 

Pension Consulting Alliance 

9:50-10:35 3. Brookfield Infrastructure Fund III, LP Ben Mahon 3 

OPERF Alternatives Portfolio Senior Investment Officer 

Sam Pollock 

Senior Managing Partner & CEO, Infrastructure Group 

Chris Harris 

Senior Vice President, Client Relations 

Tom Martin 

TorreyCove 

10:35-10:45 -------------------- BREAK -------------------- 



Katy Durant Rukaiyah Adams Rex Kim John Russell Ted Wheeler Steve Rodeman 
Chair Vice Chair Member Member State Treasurer PERS Director 

OIC Meeting Agenda 

March 9, 2016 

Page 2 

10:45-10:55 4. OPERF Real Estate Portfolio Tony Breault 4 

Policy and Benchmark Update Christy Fields 

David Glickman 

Pension Consulting Alliance 

10:55-11:05 5. Oregon Local Government Intermediate Fund Tom Lofton 5 

Policy Update Investment Officer 

Kristin Dennis 

OST Legislative Director 

B. Information Items 

11:05-11:25  6. OPERF Q4 2015 Performance & Risk Report Karl Cheng 6 

Investment Officer 

Janet Becker-Wold 

Callan 

Uvan Tseng 

Callan 

Alan McKenzie 

Blackrock 

Tony Vorlicek 

Blackrock 

11:25-11:45  7. State Accident Insurance Fund Perrin Lim 7 

Annual Review and Update Director of Capital Markets 

Kerry Barnett 

President & CEO 

Gina Manley, CPA 

CFO & Vice President 

11:45-11:55 8. Asset Allocations & NAV Updates John Skjervem 8 

a. Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund

b. SAIF Corporation

c. Common School Fund

d. Southern Oregon University Endowment Fund

9. Calendar — Future Agenda Items 9 

10. Other Items Council 

Staff 

Consultants 

C. Public Comment Invited 

15 Minutes 



TAB 1 – REVIEW & APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

February 3, 2016 Regular Meeting 

OST Committee Reports – Verbal 



JOHN D. SKJERVEM 
CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER 
INVESTMENT DIVISION 

PHONE 503-378-4111 
FAX 503-378-6772 

STATE OF OREGON 
OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER 

350 WINTER STREET NE, SUITE 100 
SALEM, OREGON 97301-3896 

OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
FEBRUARY 3, 2016 
MEETING MINUTES 

Members Present: Rukaiyah Adams, Katy Durant, Keith Larson, Steve Rodeman, John Russell, 
Ted Wheeler 

Staff Present: Darren Bond, Deena Bothello, Tony Breault, Karl Cheng, Debra Day, Sam 
Green, Karl Hausafus, Andy Hayes, John Hershey, Julie Jackson, Michael 
Langdon, Carmen Leiva, Perrin Lim, Tom Lofton, Mike Mueller, Paola 
Nealon, Jen Peet, Jen Plett, Dave Randall, Tom Rinehart, Angela Schaffers, 
James Sinks, John Skjervem, Michael Viteri 

Consultants Present: David Fann, Jeff Goldberger and Tom Martin (TorreyCove); Christy Fields 
and John Linder (PCA); Janet Becker-Wold, Jim Callahan, Uvan Tseng 
(Callan) 

Legal Counsel Present: Dee Carlson, Oregon Department of Justice 

The February 3, 2016 OIC meeting was called to order at 9:00 am by Katy Durant, Chair. 

I. 9:00 am Review and Approval of Minutes 
MOTION: Mr. Russell moved approval of the December 9, 2015 meeting minutes.  Ms. Adams 
seconded the motion, which then passed by a 4/0 vote (Treasurer Wheeler had not yet arrived). 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
John Skjervem, OST Chief Investment Officer gave an update on the following committee actions 
taken since the December 9, 2015 OIC meeting: 

Private Equity Committee: 
February 1, 2016 Union Square Ventures 2016, L.P. Up to $20 million 
February 1, 2016 GGV Capital VI, L.P. $45 million 
February 1, 2016 GGV Capital VI Plus, L.P. $15 million 
February 1, 2016 GGV Discovery I, L.P. $20 million 
February 1, 2016 Green Equity Investors VII, L.P. Up to $250 million 

Alternatives Committee: 
None 

Opportunity Portfolio Committee: 
None 

Real Estate Committee: 
None 



OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
FEBRUARY 3, 2016 
MEETING MINUTES 

2 

II. 9:02 am Vista Equity Partners Fund VI, L.P. - OPERF Private Equity Portfolio 
Andy Hayes, Investment Officer and David Fann and Tom Martin with TorreyCove recommended a 
$500 million commitment to Vista Equity Partners VI, L.P. (the “Fund VI”) for the OPERF Private 
Equity Portfolio, subject to satisfactory negotiation of terms and conditions with Staff working in 
concert with Department of Justice personnel. 

Vista Equity Partners (“Vista” or the “Firm”) was founded in 2000 and is led founders Robert Smith, 
CEO and Brian Sheth, President.  The Firm maintains offices in San Francisco, Chicago, and Austin 
and currently employs 69 investment professionals and 83 professionals in its consulting group, Vista 
Consulting Group. 

Vista’s focus for Fund VI will be similar to that pursued in its previous flagship equity funds.  The Firm 
will seek to acquire “mission critical” enterprise software or technology-enabled companies with high 
recurring revenue and high customer retention.  Vista will position Fund VI to continue the platform 
and add-on focus of past funds, targeting company acquisitions with enterprise values generally 
between $400 million and $5 billion.  Fund VI will typically invest at least $200 million in a platform 
company, while also adding smaller-sized ‘add-on’ transactions to each platform. 

Relative to its past funds, Vista is increasing the prospective size of Fund VI in order to a) 
opportunistically pursue larger companies without running into allocation limits and b) enhance 
vintage year diversification. 

MOTION: Mr. Larson moved approval of the staff recommendation.  Treasurer Wheeler seconded the 
motion which passed by a vote of 5/0. 

III. 9:55 am Private Equity Review and 2016 Plan 
Michael Langdon, Senior Private Equity Investment Officer and TorreyCove’s David Fann and Tom 
Martin presented the OPERF Private Equity Review and 2016 Plan. 

Staff recommends a forward commitment pace of $2.5-3.5 billion over the next several vintage years, 
a recommendation inclusion of the following primary considerations: 

 As illustrated in the TorreyCove presentation, pacing at this level allows for a gradual move of 
the allocation down to 17.5% over several years; 

 The Program’s GP roster has been rationalized significantly over the past several years, and 
Staff recommends maintaining the current roster of roughly 50 managers which would dictate 
making 10-15 commitments per annum; 

 Staff recommends a continued push to tighten the band of commitment sizes around an 
average commitment of $250-300 million to allow for more effective diversification and less 
reliance on mega funds; 

 The proposed range would continue to use a $500 million soft cap while migrating the 
minimum check size up toward $100-150 million over time; and  

 Staff recently undertook an exhaustive market mapping exercise tracking 1,000 scale 
managers, of which roughly 10% are either in the Program today or part of a candidate list for 
possible inclusion going forward. 

From an implementation standpoint, staff recommends maintaining a focus on primaries with 
continued emphasis on due diligence and monitoring process enhancements.  Staff will also continue 
its exploration of co-investment models as well as separate accounts/strategic relationships, but 
those initiatives are not prioritized above continuous improvement initiatives in the primary 
underwriting process. 

From a monitoring standpoint, staff will investigate solutions for the mature portion of the portfolio.  
More than half of the portfolio’s current value is held in funds that commenced investing before 2009, 
and end-of-fund-life issues are becoming an increasing burden on staff time and resources.  



OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
FEBRUARY 3, 2016 
MEETING MINUTES 

3 

Specifically, staff will study secondary and advisory solutions that may create additional leverage and 
allow for more effective monitoring and value optimization. 

Other 2016 priorities include the Program’s consultant RFP process as well as continued 
collaboration on the internal risk and audit work already underway. 

IV. 10:55 am Annual Placement Agent Report 
John Hershey, Director of Alternative Investments, presented the annual placement agent report. 

V. 10:56 am Proposed 2017 OIC Meeting Dates 
John Skjervem proposed the following 2017 OIC meeting dates: 

Wednesday, February 1, 2017 

Wednesday, March 15, 2017 

Wednesday, April 26, 2017 

Wednesday, June 7, 2017 

Wednesday, August 9, 2017 

Wednesday, September 20, 2017 

Wednesday, November 1, 2017 

Wednesday, December 13, 2017 

MOTION: Treasurer Wheeler moved approval of the staff recommendation.  Mr. Russell seconded 
the motion which passed by a vote of 5/0. 

VI. 10:57 am Asset Allocation & NAV Updates 
Mr. Skjervem reviewed asset allocations and NAVs across OST-managed accounts for the period 
ended December 31, 2015. 

VII. 10:58 am Calendar – Future Agenda Items 
Mr. Skjervem updated OIC members on the forward OIC meeting calendar. 

VIII. 11:00 am Other Items 
Mr. Skjervem gave a summary of the information he presented at the previous Friday’s PERS Board 
meeting. 

11:15 am Public Comments 
Alyssa Giachino with Unite Here gave public comment about Leonard Green Partners and the firm’s 
use of private air transportation. 

Ms. Durant adjourned the meeting at 11:20 am. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Julie Jackson 
Executive Support Specialist 



TAB 2 – LONE STAR REAL ESTATE FUND V 



Lone Star Real Estate Fund V, L.P. 

Purpose 
Subject to the successful negotiation of all terms and conditions with Staff working in concert with DOJ 
personnel, Staff and Pension Consulting Alliance (PCA) recommend approval of a $300 million commitment 
to Lone Star Real Estate Fund V, L.P. for the OPERF Real Estate Portfolio. 

Background 
Lone Star was formed after John Grayken left the Bass Family organization in the mid-1990s to start his 
own real estate investment platform in the wake of the U.S. savings-and-loan crisis in the early 1990s.  
Beginning in 1995, Lone Star has raised a total of 15 funds with aggregate commitments totaling 
approximately $60 billion.  The firm currently has 88 investment personnel globally, with offices in North 
America, Europe and Asia.  The team operates on a regional basis with independent asset management and 
servicing platforms located throughout the Americas (primarily the U.S.), Europe (primarily Western Europe 
and the UK), and Asia (mostly Japan).  The entire organization is overseen by John Grayken as Chairman and 
André Collin as President, with the regions led by Mark Newman in Asia, Sam Loughlin in the Americas and 
Olivier Brahin in Europe.  All regions report directly to Mr. Collin. 

Hudson Advisors is a key part of Lone Star’s strategy of successful distressed/workout investing and has 
been its captive servicing team since inception.  With operations around the globe and nearly 900 
personnel, Hudson Advisors is headquartered in Dallas with additional offices in New York, Montreal, San 
Juan (Puerto Rico), London, Frankfurt, Luxembourg, Dublin, Madrid, Amsterdam, Paris and Tokyo.  As the 
dedicated asset management company to the Lone Star Funds, Hudson Advisors is responsible for 
performing the due diligence, analysis and much of the special servicing for assets acquired by the Lone 
Star Funds.  Hudson Advisors and Lone Star work closely together and effectively operate as a single firm. 
Hudson Advisors only services the Lone Star Funds and does not provide services to other third party 
capital.  As an affiliated party, all fee structures with Hudson Advisors are approved by the Fund limited 
partners and reviewed by the respective advisory boards. 

Strategy 
Lone Star Real Estate Fund V (“LSREF V”) is essentially a continuation of Lone Star Real Estate Fund IV 
(LSREF IV) which had its first and final close in April 2015 under a similar macro-economic investment 
environment.  LSREF IV raised $5.8 billion in capital commitments and must be at least 85% committed 
prior to the first closing of LSREF V.  Given the size of loan pools and capital reserve requirements for 
European banks, Lone Star has committed LSREF IV capital at a more rapid pace than originally anticipated 
and has thus returned to the market with this subsequent fund raise with largely the same strategy and 
market outlook. 

LSREF V has a targeted fund size of $5.0 billion with a hard cap of $5.5 billion.  Similar to the prior Lone Star 
Real Estate Funds, the investment objective of LSREF V is to capitalize on market dislocations and acquire 
commercial real estate related investments at a significant discount to intrinsic value.  Lone Star will target 
a broad range of financial instruments and other investment assets in global commercial real estate 
markets including, but not limited to, the following: equity real estate investments; investments in or 
originations of loans; securitized products; other equity investments; and derivative instruments related to 
any of the foregoing. 

LSREF V may invest globally in the three regions (Western Europe, the Americas and Asia) in which Lone 
Star and Hudson Advisors has an established footprint.  Given the current investable opportunity for Lone 



Star’s opportunistic strategy, LSREF V is anticipated to have an approximate 75% allocation to Europe, 15% 
to the Americas and 10% in Asia.  Two notable changes from LSREF IV include: (i) expanding Lone Star’s 
geographic opportunities to pan-Asia instead of the prior fund restriction to Japan-only; and (ii) broadening 
the Americas investment opportunities to include South America, subject to a 10% maximum exposure 
within LSREF V. 

Lone Star continues to see the strongest acquisition opportunity in Europe where many countries are 
experiencing slow economic growth and high structural unemployment.  Additionally, both regulatory 
guidelines and low profit margins are pressuring banks to dispose of non-performing and non-core assets 
from their balance sheets, thereby creating buying opportunities for Lone Star’s strategy of acquiring debt 
at a significant discount. 

Issues to Consider 

Attributes 

 Track record.  Lone Star’s prior funds have closed on approximately $82 billion of aggregate asset
purchases across 283 investments in 992 transactions in commercial real estate related
transactions similar to those targeted by LSREF V.  OPERF’s 20 years of realized returns across all of
the Lone Star fund series have resulted in a net 19.4% IRR and a 1.5x net multiple.

 Capital Stewardship.  The Lone Star platform has demonstrated strong investment discipline on
both the buy and sell side.  Across all prior Lone Star Funds within the real estate portfolio
(excluding the residential mortgage fund), OPREF has received an aggregate net distribution to
paid-in capital ratio (DPI) of 1.21x, and a total value to paid in capital ratio (TVPI) of 1.52x.  OPERF’s
since-inception history with Lone Star has contributed a net positive time weighted return of 51
basis points to OPERF’s real estate portfolio and 272 basis points to the real estate portfolio’s
opportunistic sleave.

 Attractive entry point, particularly in Europe.  With Europe still struggling economically, a banking
system in the early stages of recovery and many institutions still in need of recapitalizing, Lone Star
remains well-positioned in this region.  Since 2007, Lone Star has invested/committed $10.6 billion
of equity in 53 transaction throughout Europe, employing the same strategy targed for LSREF V.

 Dedicated underwriting / asset management team.  Lone Star uses Hudson Advisors, a dedicated
900-person team located across 12 global offices to provide underwriting, asset management and
back office support.  The Lone Star funds are Hudson Advisor’s only client.

Concerns 

 Complexity of transactions.  The complexity and size of the transactions, often involving pools of
hundreds of non-performing loans per transaction, combined with multiple tranches of financing,
makes it challenging to underwrite Lone Star’s track record on a granular basis.  Furthermore, Lone
Star trades in highly illiquid assets and generally employs high levels of leverage to generate its
targeted returns.  [Mitigant: Lone Star has a 20-year history of operating with this strategy and has
consistantly returned capital from prior funds.]

 Leadership changes.  There have been recent changes in the past year (since the LSREF IV fund
raise) within the senior management team of Hudson Advisors, most notably the promotion of Jodi
Cason to President and COO and William Young appointed to General Counsel.  [Mitigant: Ms.
Cason has worked within Hudson Advisors for 17 years and Mr. Young, at his prior firm, worked on



the Lone Star account dating back to 2001 and acted as lead legal counsel on numerous 
transactions over those years.] 

 Key man risk.  John Grayken, as the sole owner of both Lone Star and Husdson Advisors, has been
critical to Lone Star’s success since inception.  [Mitigant: André Collin has taken a more active role
in managing the day-to-day activities within Lone Star, which partially mitigates the ongoing
concern should John Grayken cease to head the firm.  Furthermore, a key-person event would
trigger an automatic cessation of the investment period.]

 General Partner concentration.  As of September 30, 2015, OPERF had an aggregate NAV exposure
to Lone Star of $662 million, representing approximately 8.2% of the Real Estate portfolio (figures
exclude OPERF’s $86.4 million commitment to the Lone Star Residential Mortgage Fund.)
Additionally, OPERF has approximately $841 million remaining in unfunded commitments to prior
Lone Star funds.  [Mitigant: This concentration is partially ameliorated by the relatively short
investment duration and Lone Star’s demonstrated ability to return invested capital over multiple
market cycles.]

 American waterfall.  Lone Star receives the carry, after return of capital and a preferred return to
the limited partners, on the fund’s realized investments on a deal-by-deal basis.  A European
waterfall would be preferred.  [Mitigant: LSREF V, as in prior funds, has a reserve and full-recourse
clawback provisions to ensure limited partners receive all paid-in capital plus the preferred return
prior to Lone Star participating in the carried interest.]

Terms 
LSREF V includes a management fee on committed capital with a preferred return and deal-by-deal 
(American waterfall) carry.  The fund has a three-year investment period, and an eight-year fund life with 
two one-year extensions.  The terms are essentially the same as those in LSREF IV, with the exception of a 
25 basis point fee increase on committed capital.  As in prior funds, the General Partner will make a 1% co-
investment to LSREF V.  In addition, Hudson Advisor employees, through a co-investment vehicle, can 
commit up to 1.5% of total capital commitments, while an entity affiliated with Mr. Grayken will commit 
another $250 million.  The combined co-invest from Lone Star, Hudson Advisors and Mr. Garyken is 
anticipated to total $375 million or 7.5% of the targeted fund raise.  No placement agent has had contact 
with Staff in connection with this offering. 

Conclusion 
Given the demonstrated, and realized, performance of Lone Star, as well as the two-decade relationship 
between Lone Star and OPERF, Staff believes an investment in LSREF V would be accretive to overall 
returns in a macroeconomic environment in which Lone Star has a consistent track record and considerable 
competitive advantage. 



TAB 3 – BROOKFIELD INFRASTRUCTURE FUND III, LP 



1 
 

Brookfield Infrastructure Fund III, L.P. 
  

 
Purpose 
Staff and TorreyCove recommend a $400 million commitment to Brookfield Infrastructure Fund III, L.P. ("BIF 
III" or the “Fund”) for the OPERF Alternatives Portfolio, subject to satisfactory negotiation of terms and 
conditions with Staff working in concert with Department of Justice personnel. 
 
Background 
Brookfield Asset Management, Inc. (“Brookfield” or the “Firm”) is a publicly-listed global alternative asset 
manager (NYSE: BAM) with over $225 billion of assets under management across a range of strategies 
including real estate, infrastructure, renewable power, timberlands, agriculture and private equity.  The Firm 
has a long history of investing in and operating infrastructure assets, dating back to its founding in 1899.  
Today, Brookfield is one of the largest specialized investors in infrastructure, with $48 billion of infrastructure 
assets under management.  Oregon's relationship with Brookfield dates back to August 2013 when the OIC 
committed $50 million of OPERF capital to Brookfield Global Timber Fund V.  In 2015, a subsequent $100 
million commitment was made to the Brookfield Agriculture Fund II, L.P.  Thus, this proposed commitment 
represents the OIC’s third Brookfield fund commitment. 
 
The Fund is a continuation of the investment strategy previously utilized in Brookfield Infrastructure Fund II 
(“BIF II”), a $7 billion infrastructure fund that held its final closing in 2013, and Brookfield Americas 
Infrastructure Fund (“BIF I”), a $2.7 billion infrastructure fund that held its final closing in 2010.  BIF III is 
seeking $10 billion of capital commitments, including $4 billion of commitments from Brookfield, with an 
expected $12 billion hard cap.  The Firm plans to hold a first close on or about March 31, 2016.  Well in 
excess of the Alternatives Portfolio's target return, the Fund is targeting a net internal rate of return of 10%, 
inclusive of a 5% cash yield. 
 
Discussion/Investment Considerations 
Consistent with its history, Brookfield will focus Fund capital on high-quality, core infrastructure investments, 
primarily in the transportation, renewable power, utilities, and energy sectors.  The Fund will focus on 
geographies where Brookfield has an operating presence, namely North America, Europe, South America, 
and Australasia.  Brookfield is differentiated by its owner-operator legacy and a key feature of BIF III strategy 
is the Firm’s operations-oriented investment approach.  This approach benefits the Fund through the 
incorporation of technical insight into the valuation and execution of investments as well as through the 
“hands-on” management of the assets to enhance operational performance.  Additionally, Brookfield will 
seek to leverage the scale and expertise from its existing operating platforms in order to add value post-
acquisition.  To deploy its investment strategy, Brookfield seeks sufficient influence over its investments 
through control or co-control.  The Firm expects to target investments ranging from $400 million to $1 billion 
in size. 
 
Attributes: 
• Deep and Experienced team.  As a firm, Brookfield has over 100 years of infrastructure investing 

experience.  More recently, over the past 15 years, Brookfield has deployed over $20 billion of equity 
capital in more than 80 infrastructure investments.  BIF III will be led by infrastructure CEO Sam 
Pollock, and supported by a senior leadership team that averages 24 years of infrastructure investing 
experience and 15 years with Brookfield.  As experienced investors in, and operators of, a wide variety 
of infrastructure assets, the team possesses a breadth of experience that provides Brookfield with the 
capabilities to evaluate and optimize the widest possible opportunity set on behalf of the Fund. 



2 

• Operational expertise.  The Fund will be managed by Brookfield’s infrastructure group, which is one of
the world’s largest owners and operators of infrastructure assets.  Of note, Brookfield manages $48
billion of infrastructure assets, overseen by over 150 professionals and 12,000 operating employees
across five continents.  Staff believes this vertical integration sets Brookfield apart from other
infrastructure investors in that it allows the Firm insight and management capability in all phases of the
investment cycle.

• Global and mature asset focus.  The Firm’s focus with BIF III will be on mature, “core-type”
infrastructure investments, a strategy that complements OPERF’s existing infrastructure portfolio (e.g.,
Stonepeak, which provides exposure to middle-market infrastructure assets, and GIP which provides
exposure to large, JV transactions).

• Supply/demand gap.  Globally, infrastructure represents a compelling investment opportunity given
the current and substantial gap between investment demand and capital supply.  The infrastructure
investment sector is projected to experience substantial growth due to the scale of investments
required to modernize existing and develop new infrastructure.  According to recent estimates, the
global infrastructure expenditure requirement through 2030 is $3 trillion per year.  At the same time,
traditional suppliers of infrastructure capital (such as governments and utilities) continue to be capital
constrained.  Furthermore, recent weakness in energy and other commodity markets has negatively
impacted the availability and cost of capital to these capital-intensive industries, and Brookfield
believes there are opportunities to provide capital to owners of infrastructure assets within these
industries.

• Alignment of interests.  BAM is typically a large limited partner in every investment vehicle it sponsors,
and for this particular fund will contribute at least $4 billion of the Fund's aggregate commitments.
Additionally, senior executives and other employees of Brookfield are substantial owners of BAM
(employees own approximately 20% of BAM).

Concerns: 
• Political/regulatory risks.  The political and regulatory environment for infrastructure is evolving and

changes may have an adverse effect on the Fund’s ability to pursue its investment strategy.  [Mitigant:
All investments in the infrastructure sector are subject to the aforementioned risks.  Staff finds the
risk/reward tradeoff to be reasonable and supported by a) the team’s experience and technical
expertise, b) the Fund’s asset diversification and c) the Fund’s geographic focus on investment grade
countries.]

• Competitive market for investment opportunities.  Interest from institutional investors in real assets,
including infrastructure strategies, remains high.  As more capital enters the market for private
infrastructure, expected returns may be driven down.  [Mitigant: Staff has confidence in Brookfield’s
financial discipline and expertise in originating, structuring, and executing infrastructure transactions.
Moreover, Brookfield focuses on transactions generated by established relationships, thereby reducing
competition.]

• Currency risk.  As a global fund, the majority of BIF III portfolio investments are expected to be outside
the U.S.  While drawdowns and distributions are in U.S. dollars, investments are made in local
currencies.  [Mitigant: Due to the long investment horizon, currency risk is not expected to be a
material component of total return.  In addition, a hedging strategy is adopted for each investment,
further managing currency risk.]

• Significant unrealized value.  As of September 30, 2015, Funds I and II have an unrealized carrying value
of $7.8 billion across 17 investments.  Managing the unrealized portfolio will require significant time
and attention from the investment and operating teams.  [Mitigant: Brookfield feels that it is
adequately staffed to manage Funds I and II and deploy Fund III, with the only staffing additions being



3 
 

opportunistic hires.  Brookfield has demonstrated, through the deployment and management of Fund 
II, its ability to navigate these challenges successfully.] 

 
Terms 
Fund terms include a management fee on committed capital with a standard carry and preferred return.  The 
Fund will have a four-year investment period and a 12-year term, subject to two one-year extensions options 
with the consent of the Fund’s limited partners’ advisory committee.  During fundraising efforts, no 
placement agent had contact with Treasury staff. 
 
Conclusion 
The Alternatives Portfolio target allocation to infrastructure is 20% to 30% (or approximately $1.7 billion to 
$2.5 billion at current OPERF NAV).  To date, OIC has approved $1.95 billion in aggregate commitments to the 
sector, and Staff considers BIF III an anchor commitment within the OPERF infrastructure portfolio.  
Brookfield is differentiated by their vertical integration and focus on mature, core infrastructure assets, and a 
commitment to BIF III would provide an attractive complement to other existing portfolio positions. 
 
Staff also believes the BIF III strategy represents a natural extension and leveraging of Brookfield's industry-
leading real assets investment platform as well as an opportunity to increase OPERF's exposure to a high 
conviction manager in an attractive sector.  The depth and experience of the Brookfield team is notable, with 
the operations-oriented approach resulting in excellent market intelligence which should benefit BIF III 
returns.  At a macro level, requirements for infrastructure investment are massive, underpinning positive 
demand dynamics for capital, and Staff believes Brookfield is well positioned to capitalize on the Fund’s 
target opportunity set. 



TAB 4 – OPERF REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO 



Oregon Investment Council 
March 9, 2016 

OPERF Real Estate Portfolio Policy and Benchmark Update 

Background 

At the December 9, 2015 OIC meeting, staff and consultant presented a revised vision for OPERF’s real 

estate portfolio.  This vision included evaluating future real estate investments relative to a more 

narrowly-defined role within the broader OPERF portfolio.  Specifically, the objectives of this new role 

include the following: 

1. Improve overall OPERF diversification by gradually reducing the real estate portfolio’s

embedded “equity beta” (i.e., improve overall diversification by lowering the real estate

portfolio’s sensitivity to OPERF’s public and private equity allocations); and

2. Through this same re-positioning, increase the current income component of total return (with a

commensurate reduction in capital appreciation expectations) in order to a) moderate the real

estate portfolio’s return stream volatility and b) improve that return stream’s inflation-hedging

potential.

Structural changes necessary to support these objectives include: 

1. Dampen the real estate portfolio’s pro-cyclical strategy bias by reducing fund- and transaction-

level leverage; and

2. Focus future real estate investments on income stream durability/resiliency.

Recommendation 

1. Revise OPERF’s real estate allocation targets as outlined below:

Target Target

Real Estate Classification Allocation LTV Limit Allocation LTV Limit

Core 25-35% 50% 45-65% 45%

Public REITs 15-25% N/A 0-10% N/A

Value Add 15-25% 70% 10-30% 65%

Opportunistic 20-40% N/A 10-30% N/A

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 100% 60% 100% 50%

Current Recommended

Current Recommended



March 2016 OPERF Real Estate Policy 2 

2. Revise OPERF’s real estate performance benchmark to match the revised investment and 

portfolio construction strategy: 

 

 
 

3. Revise OIC Policy INV 501, attached, incorporating the above allocation targets and benchmark 

recommendations.  Further revise OIC Policy INV 501 to adopt previously updated policy and 

formatting standards now used for other OPERF Alternatives Program portfolios.  Finally, 

approve recommended edits to the following appendices (attached herewith): 

 

I. Appendix A, Investments Valuation Policy – Conforms real estate portfolio policy to that 

governing other Alternatives Program investments. 

II. Appendix C, Appraisals Policy – clarifies existing real estate portfolio policy. 

III. Appendix G, Non-Mandate Property Exceptions – clarifies existing Non-Mandate 

Property Exceptions policy. 

IV. The remaining appendices listed in INV 501 conform to, without changes, existing real 

estate or Alternatives Program policy documents. 

Current Recommended

Real Estate Classification Benchmark Benchmark

Core 5% real return /  NPI ODCE

Public REITs 5% real/ NAREIT; FTSE/EPRA/NAREIT NAREIT; FTSE/EPRA/NAREIT

Value Add 6% real / NPI + 100 bps ODCE + 100 bps

Opportunistic 7% real / NPI + 200 bps ODCE + 300 bps

OPERF Real Estate N/A ODCE + 50 bps



1 

OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL POLICY 

INTRODUCTION & OVERVIEW 

Summary Policy Statement 

To accomplish the prudent and efficient implementation of investment policies established by the Oregon 

Investment Council (OIC), Oregon State Treasury (OST) created the Real Estate Program (hereinafter 

referred to as the "Program") to a) participate in attractive long-term investment opportunities for the Oregon 

Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF or the Fund) and other state funds for which OIC has oversight 

responsibilities and b) provide diversification opportunities for OPERF and other state funds.  To date, 

Program investments have included participation in diversified strategies including separately managed 

accounts, joint ventures, co-investments, commingled funds, publicly-traded REITs, real estate debt and 

equity investments, and other diversifying real estate assets and special situation strategies.  As opportunities 

become available, OST will invest Program assets prudently, productively and in a manner consistent with 

the Program's objectives, OIC policies and applicable law.  The Program is subject to the specific, strategic 

target allocations established in Policy INV 215. 

Purpose and Goals 

The goal of this policy is to provide guidance to OST staff and advisors regarding real estate investments for 

OPERF and other state funds for which the OIC has oversight responsibility. 

Applicability 

Classified represented, management service, unclassified executive service 

Authority 

293.726 Standard of judgment and care in investments; investment in corporate stock. 

1. The investment funds shall be invested and the investments of those funds managed as a prudent

investor would do, under the circumstances then prevailing and in light of the purposes, terms,

distribution requirements and laws governing each investment fund.

2. The standard stated in subsection (1) of this section requires the exercise of reasonable care, skill and

caution, and is to be applied to investments not in isolation but in the context of each investment

fund's investment portfolio and as a part of an overall investment strategy, which should incorporate

risk and return objectives reasonably suitable to the particular investment fund.

3. In making and implementing investment decisions, the Oregon Investment Council and the

investment officer have a duty to diversify the investments of the investment funds unless, under the

circumstances, it is not prudent to do so.



2 

 

4. In addition to the duties stated in subsection (3) of this section, the council and the investment officer 

must: 

a. Conform to the fundamental fiduciary duties of loyalty and impartiality; 

b. Act with prudence in deciding whether and how to delegate authority and in the selection and 

supervision of agents; and 

c. Incur only costs that are reasonable in amount and appropriate to the investment 

responsibilities imposed by law. 

5. The duties of the council and the investment officer under this section are subject to contrary 

provisions of privately created public trusts the assets of which by law are made investment funds. 

Within the limitations of the standard stated in subsection (1) of this section and subject to subsection 

(6) of this section, there may be acquired, retained, managed and disposed of as investments of the 

investment funds every kind of investment which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence 

acquire, retain, manage and dispose of for their own account. 

6. Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, not more than 50 percent of the moneys contributed to 

the Public Employees Retirement Fund or the Industrial Accident Fund may be invested in common 

stock, and not more than 65 percent of the moneys contributed to the other trust and endowment funds 

managed by the Oregon Investment Council or the State Treasurer may be invested in common stock. 

7. Subject to the standards set forth in this section, moneys held in the Deferred Compensation Fund 

may be invested in the stock of any company, association or corporation, including but not limited to 

shares of a mutual fund. Investment of moneys in the Deferred Compensation Fund is not subject to 

the limitation imposed by subsection (6) of this section. [1967 c.335 §7; 1971 c.53 §1; 1973 c.385 §1; 

1981 c.880 §12; 1983 c.456 §1; 1983 c.466 §1; 1987 c.759 §1; 1993 c.18 §59; 1993 c.75 §1; 1997 

c.129 §2; 1997 c.179 §22; 1997 c.804 §5; 2005 c.294 §1] 

293.731 Council to formulate and review investment policies; exception. Subject to the objective set forth 

in ORS 293.721 and the standards set forth in ORS 293.726, the Oregon Investment Council shall formulate 

policies for the investment and reinvestment of moneys in the investment funds and the acquisition, retention, 

management and disposition of investments of the investment funds. The council, from time to time, shall 

review those policies and make changes therein as it considers necessary or desirable. The council may 

formulate separate policies for any fund included in the investment funds. This section does not apply to the 

Oregon Growth Account, the Oregon Growth Fund, the Oregon Growth Board, the Oregon Commercialized 

Research Fund, the Oregon Innovation Fund or the Oregon Innovation Council. [1967 c.335 §8; 1993 c.210 

§20; 1999 c.42 §1; 1999 c.274 §18; 2001 c.835 §9; 2001 c.922 §§15a,15b; 2005 c.748 §§15,16; 2012 c.90 

§§22,32; 2013 c.732 §8] 

293.736 Duties of investment officer. 

1. Except as provided in ORS 293.741, in amounts available for investment purposes and subject to the 

policies formulated by the Oregon Investment Council, the investment officer shall invest and 

reinvest moneys in the investment funds and acquire, retain, manage, including exercise of any voting 

rights, and dispose of investments of the investment funds. 

2. Subject to the direction of the council, the investment officer shall perform the functions described in 

subsection (1) of this section with respect to the investment in mutual funds of moneys in the 

Deferred Compensation Fund. The council must approve all mutual funds in which Deferred 

Compensation Fund moneys are invested. [1967 c.335 §9; 1997 c.179 §23; 2005 c.295 §1] 



3 

POLICY PROVISIONS 

Definitions 

Advisor: An independent third party (consultant) firm retained by the OIC and working in concert with OST 

staff to provide expert investment counsel, due diligence, and ongoing portfolio monitoring. 

Policy Statements 

1. Program investments provide an appropriate complement to OPERF's investment portfolio, and are

consistent with OPERF's general objectives, including:

1. Providing a means to pay benefits to OPERF participants and their beneficiaries;

2. Investing to produce a return based on prudent and reasonable levels of liquidity and

investment risk;

3. Attaining an adequate real return over the expected rate of inflation; and

4. Complying with all applicable laws and regulations concerning the investment of pension

assets.

Program investment returns should exhibit a lower correlation relative to other Fund assets and 

therefore the Program is expected to provide diversification benefits to the Fund. 

Staff and the consultant or advisor (the "Advisor") specifically selected for the Program will 

furnish the OST and OIC with an annual Program investment statement and strategy plan. 

2. REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT CLASSIFICATIONS

1. OPERF's real estate asset class consists of the following four sub-classifications:

I. CORE: equity investments in real properties.  Typical Core properties will exhibit 

"institutional" qualities such as good locations within local and regional markets with 

high quality design and construction.  In general, Core properties will be well occupied, 

though a limited allocation may be invested in properties undergoing redevelopment, 

new construction or significant re-leasing.  Within the Core portfolio, the OIC/OST 

will generally have the right to (i) replace or terminate a manager with or without cause, 

(ii) add or subtract committed capital and (iii) create and modify investment, operating 

and financing guidelines pursuant to the terms of an operating agreement. 

II. REITs: equity investments in publicly-traded Real Estate Investment Trusts or publicly

traded real estate operating companies.



4 

III. VALUE ADD: investments in real properties, commingled funds, joint ventures and

private placements.  The Value Add portfolio will be well diversified by property type

and geography.  Investments will include office, retail, industrial and apartment

properties, but may target structured investments in alternative property types such as

hotels, student housing, senior housing, debt and specialized retail uses.  Value Add

real estate may exhibit "institutional" qualities such as good locations within local and

regional markets with high quality design and construction, but may need

redevelopment or significant leasing to achieve stabilized investment value.  Value

Add investments may include development opportunities with balanced risk/return

profiles.  Development investment in the Value Add sub-class shall be limited to 35%

of capital committed to Value Add at any given time.  When a property reaches 8580%

occupancy, it will no longer be considered a development investment.

IV. OPPORTUNISTIC: investments in commingled funds, joint ventures and private

placements.  The investments within the Opportunistic portfolio are likely to represent

a wide variety of strategies and investment vehicles and may utilize greater leverage.

The Opportunistic portfolio will include investments with expected returns, or

employing risk-adjusted strategies, greater leverage or generally above-market risks, in

excess of either the Core or Value Add strategies.  These investments may include

niche opportunities (e.g., hotels, operating companies, non-performing loan portfolios,

speculative development, land acquisitions, etc.) or exist due to real estate or capital

markets inefficiencies.  In addition, the Opportunistic portfolio may contain

investments in international real estate joint ventures, limited partnerships, public and

private REITs and operating companies.  Investment strategies for the Opportunistic 

portfolio will be considered and classified "opportunistic" based on prevailing market 

conditions at the time of investment. 

3. LEVERAGE

1. CORE: To enhance investment returns, leverage is permissible in the Core portfolio in an

amount up to 50 45% of the fair market value of the aggregate Core portfolio, and up to 75%

of the market value on any given property.  Sufficient consideration should be given to the

impact of debt financing on the risk and return characteristics of the leveraged investments as

well as the Core portfolio in total.  Use of leverage shall be subject to financing guidelines

incorporated into the operating agreement(s) for each Core investment manager or partnership.

From time to time, managers may have the opportunity to acquire properties only if underlying 

property debt is assumed as part of the transaction.  Such acquisitions may be pursued so long 

as such acquisitions do not cause the manager's portfolio to exceed portfolio leverage 

limitations for an extended period of time.  From time to time, a manager’s portfolio may 

exceed leverage limitations as individual leveraged properties are acquired or capital market 

returns result in negative capital market valuations.  The mechanisms and time frames to bring 

property leverage in line with portfolio guidelines and investment objectives must be part of 

each venture’s operating agreement.  Material deviations from leverage and policy guidelines 



5 

may be resolved either through action by the OIC or the Real Estate Committee. 

2. VALUE ADD: In order to enhance investment returns, leverage is permissible in the Value

Add portfolio in an amount up to 7065% of the fair market value of the aggregate Value Add

portfolio and up to 80% of cost on any given property prior to stabilization.  Sufficient

consideration should be given to the impact of debt financing on the risk and return

characteristics of the leveraged investments.  Use of leverage shall be subject to financing

guidelines incorporated into the operating agreement(s) for each Value Add investment

manager or partnership.

3. OPPORTUNISTIC: Subject to financing guidelines incorporated into the operating

agreement(s) for each Opportunistic investment manager or partnership, leverage may be

unconstrained within Opportunistic real estate investments and partnerships.

Investment Classification Portfolio Leverage Limit 

Core 45% 

REITS N/A 

Value Add 65% 

Opportunistic N/A 

Total Portfolio 50% 

4. OBJECTIVES

1. Program Investment Performance Objectives

The Program's investment performance objective is long-term net returns to OPERF (i.e., after 

management fees and general partners' carried interest) above a benchmark comprised of the 

National Council of Real Estate Fiduciaries (NCREIF) Fund Index (“NFI”) Open-end 

Diversified Core Equity Index ("ODCE”), and referred to as NFI-ODCE, plus an appropriate 

premium to compensate for illiquidity, principal risk and related investment costs and 

expenses.  Specifically, the Program's performance objective is a return exceeding NFI-ODCE 

plus 50 basis points, and may vary by investment type (e.g., core, public and private REITs, 

value add and opportunistic real estate).  OST staff (hereinafter referred to as "Staff") will 

periodically evaluate the Program's performance objective, benchmark and assigned return 

premium. 

Investment Classification After Fee Benchmark 

Core ODCE 

Value Add ODCE + 100 bps 

Opportunistic ODCE + 300 bps 

Public REITs (Domestic) NAREIT 

Public REITs (International) FTSE/EPRA/NAREIT 

Total Portfolio ODCE + 50 bps 



6 

2. Diversification

Diversification reduces risk among the Program's investments, and Staff should consider the 

following types of diversification, including, but not limited to: 

 a. Strategy – Staff will diversify investments through exposure to a variety of real estate debt

and equity investment strategies, property types (i.e., office, industrial, retail, multifamily, 

hospitality, etc.), and throughout the various stages of a property life-cycle from development 

to stabilized.  The allocation ranges and targets for each sub-classifications are as follows: 

Investment Category Target Allocation 

Core 45 - 65% 

REITs 0 – 10% 

Value Add 10 – 30% 

Opportunistic 10 – 30% 

b. Property Types: Staff will diversify Program investments among various real property types.

c. Size of Investments -- Investments will be diversified among a range of commitment sizes

which may vary upon type of investment structure (i.e., separate account, joint venture, tailor 

made multi-investor “club” fund, open-ended or commingled fund), generally with a minimum 

commitment size of $75 million. 

d. Geography -- Staff should consider geographical diversification in investment selection;

moreover, and to the extent appropriate, commitments may be considered that benefit the 

overall economic health of Oregon so long as and only if such commitments otherwise meet 

the Program’s investment and quality criteria. 

e. Time -- Staff will endeavor to invest OPERF assets in a consistent manner over time, unless

market conditions appear uniquely unfavorable. 

5. REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE

1. The Real Estate Committee or "Committee" acts on behalf of, and subject to the review of,

OST.  The Committee is comprised of the following individuals: the Deputy State Treasurer;

the Chief Investment Officer (CIO); and an OIC member invited by the OST to participate as a

voting member on the Committee.  OST will consider input from the OIC in extending such

invitations.  In the unlikely event one member of the Committee cannot attend or participate in

a Committee meeting that otherwise cannot be deferred or rescheduled, the CIO may, for

purposes of establishing a quorum, include a Senior Investment Officer (SIO) and endow that

SIO with temporary voting rights so long as that SIO does not work in or on behalf of the

Program.



7 

2. 

3.2. OOST, through the Committee, may invest OPERF amounts up to and including $150 

million per investment for a new general partner, fund sponsor or manager relationships, and 

an amount up to and including $250 million for existing relationships, consistent with OIC 

policies (see Appendix B).  If consideration of a particular investment opportunity is deemed 

urgent or otherwise less suited for presentation to the OIC, the CIO may seek OIC approval for 

Committee consideration of that particular investment opportunity. 

4. 

5.3. The Committee will only exercise its investment authority by unanimous vote and 

acting upon a favorable due diligence determination by the Advisor.  The Committee may only 

consider proposed investments if agreement exists between the Advisor and Staff that the 

proposed investment is consistent with Program standards including, but not limited to, the 

applicable sector plan and strategy.  Investment opportunities and proposed Committee 

commitments are subject to review by OST, which may choose to cancel or refer such 

proposed commitments to the OIC for broader review and consideration. 

6.4. In connection with a proposed investment, Staff shall furnish any favorable due 

diligence determination, including the underlying rationale, market conditions and portfolio 

impact, to the OIC as soon as practical and at least two weeks prior to a Committee meeting 

called for purposes of considering the proposed investment.  If OST objects to the proposed 

investment or is advised by any OIC member that he or she objects to the proposed investment, 

OST will cancel the proposed commitment and determine whether or not Staff will bring the 

proposed investment as a separate agenda item at a subsequent OIC meeting. 

7.5. Staff shall report any investment commitment made by the Committee at the next, 

most feasible OIC meeting. 

6. OST STAFF AUTHORITY

The CIO, upon a favorable recommendation from both the Director of Alternative Investments 

and the Advisor, has authority to accomplish the following: 

1. Approve OST administrative activities and guideline exceptions if a plan is established to

conform the [project/investment/fund] exceptions to applicable guidelines within a reasonable

period of time;

2. Acquire, retain, manage and dispose of fund interests consistent with the authority granted to

the Office of the State Treasurer pursuant to ORS 293.736, and review and approve other

activities as necessary to further the interests of the Program consistent with this statute;

3. Approve up to an additional $50 million to an existing investment fund for the following

purposes: (1) recapitalize the fund with additional equity; (2) acquire all or part of another



8 

limited partner's position in the fund; (3) re-balance between or among managers; or (4) co-

invest with the fund in an individual fund investment.  Such additional commitments shall be 

on terms equal to or better than the existing investment fund terms; 

4. Approve an increase or decrease in exposure to REITs through adjustments to the capital

commitments of existing REIT managers, within OIC-established ranges;

5. Approve capital allocation decreases to individual Core managers, so long as such decreases

are not more than 50% of a specific manager’s total capital under management and no more

than $200 million in aggregate in any calendar year;

6. Approve the termination of separate account mandates and recommend action regarding the

enforcement of termination and other commingled fund investment provisions;

7. Terminate REIT managers.  Immediately following a termination, the Real Estate SIO shall

notify the terminated manager and instruct that manager to discontinue trading immediately.

The SIO shall also instruct the OST Director of Operations (DIO) to suspend trading in that

manager’s account.  Unless directed otherwise by the OIC, Staff shall proceed with a

liquidation plan that may include the redistribution, transition or liquidation of securities in the

terminated manager’s account.

Staff shall report any of the foregoing activities at the next, most feasible OIC meeting. 

7. ADVISOR AND OPERF REQUIREMENTS

OST manages the Program using a hybrid Staff/Advisor model.  Specifically, and subject to budget 

limitations, OST will assign an appropriate number of Staff to manage Program design and portfolio 

construction, the Program's investment decision-making schedule and process, and the Advisor's 

contract.  The OIC will retain a qualified, independent Advisor and will delegate to that Advisor 

substantial duties such as performing due diligence on investment opportunities, monitoring Program 

investments, performing Program analytics and valuation analyses and preparing current historical 

performance reports.  Staff retains the primary responsibility to ensure that Program investments and 

prospective investments receive appropriate due diligence, monitoring, and valuation analyses.  While 

some of these duties may be delegated to the Advisor, Staff will conduct and document sufficient 

reviews and tests of the Advisor's work as necessary to conclude that such delegated duties are 

performed consistently and appropriately by the Advisor. 

8. LEGAL COUNSEL

Staff will obtain relevant legal services from Oregon Department of Justice (DOJ) personnel.  

However, due to the complex nature of Program investments, OIC, OST and/or Staff will recommend 

DOJ collaboration with expert, external legal counsel when deemed necessary or appropriate. 



9 

9. CONTRACT EXECUTION

1. Staff will inform the Program's current or prospective general partners of investment

commitments approved by the Council or the Committee immediately following such

approvals.  Approved commitments are conditional and subject to the successful, subsequent

negotiation of all terms and conditions consistent with DOJ advice, applicable law and other

considerations.

2. With the possible exception of legally privileged materials, Staff will provide the Advisor with

OIC and Committee meeting materials.

3. Staff will provide DOJ, in advance, with OIC and Committee meeting materials and will

provide DOJ with timely verification of investment commitments in conjunction with

proposed partnership documentation.

4. The Council's authorized signatory, the CIO (or designee in accordance with OST policy), will

ensure legal sufficiency approval is provided by DOJ, prior to the execution of investment

documents.

10. PARTNERSHIP FUNDING 

1. For all existing and future partnership commitments, each general partner shall submit a

complete list of bank account(s) to which OST may wire funds in connection with its

partnership commitments.  This list may be included as an exhibit to the partnership agreement,

and OST shall not deviate from these pre-established instructions unless the general partner

authorizes such a change in advance and in writing.

2. All requests for funding (e.g., capital calls) must be made pursuant to established OST

practices and guidelines.

3. Staff shall regularly monitor investments, through the Advisor or other contracted service

providers, to ensure that the funding of investment commitments does not exceed the

maximum amount authorized by the OIC or the Committee.  In monitoring commitment

funding levels, the Advisor or other contracted service provider will consider the effect of

partnership recycling, temporary bridge financing and similar provisions included in the

partnership's investment documents to ascertain whether or not funding levels are consistent

with OIC's commitment approvals.

4. Prior to advancing funds in connection with any one partnership commitment, Staff shall

verify that written funding requests are properly executed by an authorized member of the

corresponding general partner.



10 

11. MONITORING 

1. Reports

Staff will contract for third-party reporting services and shall furnish Program activity and

performance reporting to the OIC on a quarterly basis.

2. Adherence to Strategy

Staff and the Advisor will evaluate the actual strategy employed by general partners relative to

stated objectives, strategies and industry standards.  The Advisor will interact with general

partners periodically and as necessary to verify adherence to such objectives, strategies and

standards.

Exceptions 

None. 

Failure to Comply 

Failure to comply with this policy may be cause for disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. 

PROCEDURES and FORMS 

Appendix A: OIC Document: Real Estate Investments Valuation Policy 

Appendix B: OIC Document: OIC/OST Alternatives Investments Authority 

Appendix C: OIC Document: Real Estate Investments Property Appraisals 

Appendix D: OIC Document: Real Estate Investments Responsible Contractor Policy 

Appendix E:  OIC Document: Real Estate Investments Property Insurance Policy 

Appendix F: OIC Document: Real Estate Investments Terminating Investment Management Firms 

Appendix G: OIC Document:  Real Estate Investments: Non-Mandate Property Exceptions 

Appendix H: OST Document:  Real Estate Investment Procedures for INV501 



11 

ADMINISTRATION 

Feedback 

Your comments are extremely important to improving the effectiveness of this policy.  If you would like to 

comment on the provisions of this policy, you may do so by e-mailing the Policy Analyst.  To ensure your 

comments are received without delay, please list the policy number and name in your e-mail's subject.  Your 

comments will be reviewed during the policy revisions process and may result in changes to the policy. 



OIC Document 

APPENDIX A 

AlternativeReal Estate Investments Valuation Policy 

Public Company Securities 

1) Public securities should be valued at the closing price or bid on the last day of the quarter of

the performance measurement period.

2) In the event that two or more general partners hold the same security with identical

provisions and structure, but different valuations, Staff and the Advisor will establish the

most appropriate valuation.

Non-Public Company Securities & Private Equity Real Estate 

1) Non-publicly traded securities and private equity real estate should be valued listed at fair

value.  These types of securitiesinvestments are not traded on an active exchange and

thus do not have readily determinable market prices established by arm’s-length

transactions; moreover, there exists no broadly accepted methodology for determining

fair value, and valuations of such securitiesinvestments may contain subjective elements.

Determination of the fair value of such securities should be based on the best available

and most applicable valuation metrics that can be obtained.  Valuation metrics may differ

substantially, depending on an asset’s development the stage, industry category,

competitive position, future anticipated cash flow profile, location s of the real estate, and

geography of the companyunderlying investment.

2) The General Partner (GP) of each limited partnership will determine valuations for the

investments within its limited partnerships.  If negotiated as part of the applicable

Limited Partnership Agreement (LPA), these valuations may be reviewed and/or

approved by a committee of limited partners (i.e., an Advisory Board, Investors’

Committee, etc.) established for the limited partnership.

3) Staff are not typically experts in the valuation of non-public securitiesinvestments, but do

have broad experience in private equityreal estate investment management; accordingly,

Staff will a) apply such experience to determine whether or not valuations reported by

GPs and the Advisor investment manager are reasonably stated and b) assess the risk of

material misstatement.  Staff will utilize the best available and most applicable

information in forming these assessments.  Such information may include, but iswill not

be limited to the following:

 Valuation analyses and adjustments performed by the AdvisorGP or investment

manager;

 Audited financial statements of Program limited partnerships;

 GP-prepared quarterly and annual limited partnership reports;



 Where applicable, limited partner committee reviews/approvals of valuations

when Staff serve on such committees; and

 General Staff knowledge of companyinvestment performance, comparable

transactions and valuations, industry trends, market environment and other

relevant factors.

If the valuation provided by a GP or the Advisorinvestment manager is not U.S. GAAP 

fair value, Staff may request additional information from the GP or Advisorinvestment 

manager, if needed, in order to estimate fair value. 

4) Staff is responsible for ensuring Program investments are recorded in OST’s accounting

book of record at fair value, and this responsibility may not be delegated to third parties.

To fulfill this particular responsibility, Staff will:

 Maintain an alert and appropriate level of professional skepticism regarding

private equity valuations;

 Review the Advisor’s consolidated real estate portfolio quarterly report, including

limited partnership quarterly summaries which detail valuations and changes

thereto;

 On an annual basis, meet with the Advisor to update or confirm Staff’s

understanding of the Advisor’s procedures and analyses regarding limited 

partnership valuation; 

 To the fullest extent practical, participate in limited partner committee reviews

and/or limited partnership valuation approvals if Staff serves on such committees;

 Review limited partnership annual reports and audited financial statements; and

 On an exception basis, investigate any valuations that are materially different

from fair value estimates or expectations, and document the results of such

investigation and any proposed changes in limited partnership valuation.  Such

exceptions may include, but are not limited to, qualified or adverse audit opinions,

financial statements prepared on a basis other than U.S. GAAP, material adverse

events (e.g., a company bankruptcy), limited partnership valuation policy that is

other than fair value, and a qualitative Staff assessment that a particular valuation

may not reflect fair value.



OIC Document 

APPENDIX C 

Real Estate Investments Property Appraisals Policy 

POLICY 

As delegated by the Treasurer, Office of the State Treasurer (OST) staff has the authority to hire firms to 

conduct appraisals of the Core portfolio properties within the Real Estate Program’srtfolio’s separate 

accounts and joint ventures.. 

DEFINITIONS 

Based on the Financial Institutions Reforms, Recovery, and Enforcement Act (FIRREA) requirements of 

February 9, 1990, the following shall be the operative definition of fair market value: "The most probable 

price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market under all conditions requisite to a fair 

sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently, knowledgeably and assuming the price is not affected by 

undue stimulus."  Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the 

passing of title from seller to buyer under conditions whereby: (1) buyer and seller are typically motivated; (2) 

both parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what they consider their own best interest; 

(3) a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; (4) payment is made in terms of cash in 

United States dollars or in terms of financial arrangements comparable thereto; and (5) the price represents 

the normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or creative financing or sales 

concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale. 

PROCEDURES 

1. The Senior Real Estate Investment Officer, or a qualified designee, will engage an unbiased third

party appraiser to estimate properties’ the fair market value of the properties in the Core portfolio.

For each property, The fair market value of a fee simple interest or partial interest in real property

shall be determined no later than, December 31, of the second year after date of acquisition (e.g., if a

property was acquired 3/11/982013, the first appraisal of thatis property would be as of 12/31/992014)

and or every other year thereafter.

2. OST staff shall have the right to select and to enter into contracts with appraiser(s) and to designate

the properties to be appraised.  The appraiser must be licensed in the state where the property is

located, adequately experienced in appraising the property type, and knowledgeable of the local and

regional market.

3. The appraisal report must be in compliance with the Uniform Standard of Professional Appraisal

Practice (USPAP) as adopted by the Appraisal Standards Board (the "Board") of the Appraisal

Foundation and all subsequent changes and modifications approved by the Board.  Every property

will be appraised no less than every two (2) years from the date of last appraisal until disposition,

unless otherwise directed and documented by the Senior Real Estate Investment Officer because of

extenuating circumstances.  If marketing plans are in place, or if the sale of a property is expected to

close within a reasonable period of time near the scheduled appraisal date, the Senior Real Estate



Investment Officer may accelerate or delay such appraisal, as necessary.  If subsequently such a 

property sale fails to close, appraisal of this property will take place in the next year-end appraisal 

cycle. 

4. In order to maintain fresh opinions of real estate values, a particular appraiser may only appraise a

property twice (consecutively) before a new appraiser or appraisal firm must be selected.

5. For certain strategies deployed by Core Mmanagers within the real estate portfolio, it may be more

economical and consistent with OPERF investment objectives to have properties appraised pursuant

to a schedule that differs from policy.  Staff is granted the authority to craft an appraisal cycle, of up

to three years, if such a cycle time is consistent with the real estate portfolio objectives and the

strategy and structure of the venture.

6. The Senior Real Estate Officer, or a qualified designee, will ensure that real estate fair market values

reported by Core Mmanagers are accurately updated for the results of the property appraisals.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES 

1. The Senior Real Estate Investment Officer, or a qualified designee, will engage an unbiased third-

party appraiser (the "dispute resolution appraiser") to resolve any dispute or disagreement between an

investment manager and appraiser as to a property’s the fair market value of a property.

2. The appraiser shall provide a copy of its appraisal and/or other information and the investment

manager shall provide in writing a statement as to why it disagrees with the value determined by the

appraiser.  The dispute resolution appraiser shall review both sets of information and make a binding

decision as to the fair market value of the property, which may be more or less than the manager or

appraiser's estimate of fair market value.

SAMPLE FORMS, DOCUMENTS, OR REPORTS (Attached) 

None 



OIC Document 

APPENDIX G 

Real Estate Investments Non-Mandate Property Exceptions 

POLICY 

Existing Direct Property and Opportunity fundreal estate managers may acquire individual properties not 

conforming to existing OPERF or fund- specific acquisition guidelines, if these firms have demonstrable 

expertise acquiring, managing and disposing of such investments.  Proposed acquisition objectives and any 

the leverage utilized must be consistent with the risk and return parameters for OPERF's Direct PropertyCore 

real estate portfolio. 

OBJECTIVES 

Only (i) existing OPERF real estate managers to whom a Non- Mandate Property Exception has been made, 

and (ii) existing Opportunity fund managers may propose to acquire properties as Non-Mandate Property 

Exceptions.  The rationale for allowing Non-Mandate Property Exception acquisitions is as follows: 

Access to transactions from Direct Propertyexisting managersGP or investment manager:. 

OPERF Direct Propertyreal estate portfolio managers are limited to acquiring either a one specific 

property type or types, generally referred to as a mandate, as specificiedspecified within each 

respective partnership agreement for thea joint venture in which OPERF is the most significant 

investor.  These managers occasionally have the opportunity to acquire properties that meet OPERF 

real estate portfolio objectives, but are may not be the same property type or strategy specified 

bywithin the firmpartnership agreement and OPERF's joint venture acquisition guidelines. 

Access to transactions from Opportunity fund managers. Opportunity funds have greater 

tolerance for risk and have higher target return thresholds than for the OPERF Direct Property 

portfolio. Opportunity fund managers occasionally can acquire properties, or interests in properties 

meeting OPERF Direct Property acquisition and risk criteria, however these less volatile properties 

typically trade at prices higher than Opportunity funds are willing to pay. 

NON-NEGOTIABLE CONDITIONS 

1. If a Non-Mandate Property Exception is acquired by ann Opportunisticinvestment  manager, itthe

manager may use its counsel to represent the ownership entity, provided all correspondence is copied

to the Department of Justice, and the Department of Justice is granted attorney-client privileged status.

2. In all proposed Non-Mandate Property Exception transactions, managers will serve as a fiduciary to

OPERF.  For each proposed Non-Mandate Property Exception, the manager will have full discretion

to buy, sell, manage, lease and finance pursuant to partnership agreement amended terms and

conditions, no worse than those currently in place.

3. The equity required for a Non-Mandate Property Exception may not exceed $50 million for any one

transaction or related series of transactions.

4. Co-investment from the manager for any proposed transaction can be no less than the co-investment



commitment to thean existing Opportunity fund or Direct Property partnership agreement with the 

manager or same co-investment percentage as the most recent commingled fund to which OPERF has 

invested with thate manager .  Any accrued incentive compensation earned, or accrued deficit versus 

minimum return thresholds shall be cross-collateralized with the manager's other OPERF investment 

partnership properties with OPERF. 

5. No Opportunity fund manager or Direct Property joint venturemanager may have interests in more

than two Non-Mandate Property Exceptions at any one time.

PROCEDURES 

1. Manager's or general partner's present the potential investment to Staff to determine if a proposed

Non-Mandate Property Exception meets the Core portfolio’sDirect Property return and risk

parameters.  The proposed Property Exception does not necessarily need to be one of the four major

property types.

2. Staff determines if: (i) the Non-Mandate Property Exception is request will result in competitive

bidding between existing OPERF managers.; or (ii) the acquisition of the proposed property increases

exposure to a specific property type beyond the allocation policy ranges specified for the entire real

estate portfolio.  If either determination isis the managaer with the existing mandate is bidding on the 

investment on behalf of OPERF affirmative, the request is denied. 

3. Manager conducts independent due diligence on proposed transaction and draws capital for deposits,

costs and closing consistent with existing partnership or limited liability company agreement.

4. Staff, the Department of Justice and manager may amend existing Direct Property joint venture

partnership or operating agreement to reflect specific return thresholds for proposed Non-Mandate

Property Exceptions, or, if necessary, negotiate terms of a new partnership with an Opportunity fund

manager agreement for the proposed Non-Mandate Property Exception ownership entity.

5. Annually, Staff shall provide a summary report to the OIC listingof all accepted and rejected

proposed Property Exception transactions.



TAB 5 – OREGON LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

INTERMEDIATE FUND 



Oregon Local Government Intermediate Fund 
Purpose 
Provide background on the Oregon Local Government Intermediate Fund (“OLGIF”) and present OLGIF 
guidelines for approval. 

Background 
Legislation (HB2140) passed and signed into law in 2013 allows Oregon State Treasury (“OST”) to offer 
comingled investment pools for local governments.  OLGIF provides qualified local government participants 
with an OST vehicle to invest funds over a longer term horizon than the Oregon Short Term Fund (“OSTF”).  
After significant research into the various investment and administrative issues associated with a service base of 
potentially several hundred local government participants, OST has elected to delegate OLGIF management and 
administration to an external provider. 

Key OLGIF structural tenets include the following: 
• Intermediate-term (i.e., 2- to 3-year average duration) investment pool for qualified local governments;

and
• Total return mandate with fluctuating net asset value subjecting OLGIF participants to principal

volatility and investment losses.

Participant eligibility subject to the following OST-stipulated requirements: 
• Participants must have an investment policy statement (“IPS”) reviewed by the OSTF Board and

approved by the participant’s governing body;
• The OLGIF must be listed as an eligible investment in the participant’s IPS;
• The participant’s governing body must acknowledge the following in a resolution recorded in that

body’s meeting minutes:
 Investments in the OLGIF are subject to principal volatility and investment loss;
 A participant’s contributions to and withdrawals from OLGIF are subject to restriction by OST; and
 Affirmation that the OLGIF prospectus has been read and is understood by the participant’s board

and relevant staff; and

Key OLGIF investment guidelines include the following: 
• Assigned benchmark is the Barclays 1-5 Year Government/Corporate Index;
• No derivatives, 100% cash bond composition;
• Benchmark duration band of ±20% (currently assigned benchmark duration has ranged between 2.6 to

2.7 years over the 5-year period ending December 31, 2015);
• Investment grade rating on all asset purchases; and
• U.S. dollar-denominated assets only.

Recommendation 
Staff recommends OIC approve Oregon Local Government guidelines in Appendix A. 



APPENDIX A 
INVESTMENT GUIDELINES 

 
 

The mission of the Investment Division is “To Generate the Highest Returns Prudently 
Possible for Fund Beneficiaries” where Fund refers to the Oregon Local Government 
Intermediate Fund (hereafter referred to as the “Fund”). 

 
The overall return objective established by the Oregon Investment Council (“OIC” 

or “Council”) is to achieve returns in excess of the Fund’s designated benchmark. 
 

1. ASSET CLASSES AND ALLOCATIONS 
 

On an annual basis, the Council assesses asset allocation guidelines for the Fund’s 
approved investment categories. 

 
In accordance with its established asset allocation guidelines, the Council may 

select one or more external fixed income investment managers (the “Manager” or 
“Managers”) with demonstrated experience and expertise and whose investment 
methodologies will collectively result in the implementation of the Council’s intended 
asset allocation. 

 
Managers within the above-described structure shall acquire and manage a fixed 

income securities portfolio and reinvest the sales and income proceeds of that portfolio on 
behalf of the Fund.  Additionally, these managers shall act as an internal 
advisor/research resource to the Oregon State Treasury Investment Division (the 
“Investment Division”).  Managers shall further act in the capacity defined in Items 2.A. 
and B. below.  This capacity is intended to complement fixed income asset management 
functions as performed by the Investment Division. 

 
2. INVESTMENT GUIDELINES 

 
A. Manager Role and Performance Expectations.  Managers retained by the 

Council shall invest with a primary objective of capital preservation and consistent with 
normal fixed income management risks.  The secondary objective for these managers is to 
generate a rate of return from fixed income securities in excess of the Barclays Capital 1-5 
Year Government/Credit Index (the “Benchmark”) net of all costs and fees over the 
course of a complete market cycle.  In the event a Manager invests according to more than 
one mandate, the Manager and Investment Division staff will agree from time to time, in 
writing, on the allocation of investment funds to each mandate. 

 
B. Manager Style.  Managers retained by the Council may utilize an active 

management style including, but not limited, to a combination of quantitative and 
subjective valuation techniques designed to add value over the specified benchmark. 

 
C. Eligible Securities.  Securities eligible for investment include the following: 



(i) The Oregon Short Term Fund (the “OSTF”); 
(ii) Obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States (U.S.) Treasury or by 

U.S. federal agencies and instrumentalities, including inflation-indexed 
obligations; 

(iii) Non-U.S. Government Securities and their Instrumentalities; 
• Non-U.S. government securities and Instrumentalities must have

minimum long-term ratings of AA-, Aa3 or better at the time of purchase.
(iv) Certificates of deposit; 
(v) Bankers acceptances that are eligible for discount at a U.S. Federal Reserve 

Bank; 
(vi) Corporate debt obligations (e.g., commercial paper, term debt, etc.); 
(vii) Taxable and non-taxable municipal debt securities issued by U.S. states or 

local governments and their agencies, authorities and sponsored enterprises; 
(viii) U.S. Agency mortgage-backed securities (MBS) which include both pass-

through securities and Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMOs).  The 
weighted average life at purchase shall be 5 years or less; 

(ix) Commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBS) which must be rated triple-
A at the time of purchase and have a weighted average life of 5 years or less; 

(x) Asset-backed securities (ABS) which must be rated triple-A at the time of 
purchase and have a weighted average life of 5 years or less; 

(xi) Repurchase agreements, collateralized a t  1 02% with U.S. Government 
securities or U.S. Agency mortgage securities as defined above.  The 
maximum term of these agreements will be 90 days, and the collateral 
must be marked-to-market daily. 

(xii) Cash equivalent investments defined as any security that has an effective 
duration under one year, a weighted average life of less than one year 
and spread duration less than one year; and 

(xiii) State Street Short Term Investment Fund (STIF). 

D. Exposure Constraints.  Investments shall be constrained as follows: 
(i) Managers may invest up to a 3% maximum exposure in any one security, 

excluding U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government Agency obligations (including 
Agency MBS); 

(ii) Investments rated below investment grade at time of purchase are not 
allowed; 

(iii) No more than 5% of the par value of portfolio shall be invested in the 
securities of any one issuer.  This restriction does not apply to obligations 
issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury or by U.S. federal agencies and 
instrumentalities; 

(iv) No more than 25% of the portfolio shall be invested in the securities of one 
sector.  This restriction does not apply to obligations issued or guaranteed by 
the U.S. Treasury or by U.S. federal agencies and instrumentalities; 

(v) No more than 25% of the portfolio may be invested in MBS; 
(vi) No more than 25% of the portfolio may be invested in ABS; and 
(vii) No more than 25% of the portfolio may be invested in CMBS. 

2 



E. Maturity.  The maximum maturity on any allowed investment is constrained as 
follows: 

(i) The maximum stated maturity should not be greater than 10.25 years from 
the date of settlement unless otherwise noted; and 

(ii) For ABS, MBS and CMBS, weighted average life will be used to measure 
maturity limitations. 

F. Duration.  Managers shall invest their respective Fund allocations consistent 
with a target duration band of ± 20% (percent) relative to Benchmark duration. 

G. Credit Criteria.  In addition to the eligibility requirements described above, 
securities considered for purchase must be rated investment grade at the time of purchase.  
Benchmark rating methodology shall be used to determine the rating on any Fund holding. 

For certain securities or instruments, such as newly-issued bonds, expected ratings 
may be used until actual ratings are issued and assigned.  In such cases, the securities or 
instruments may be purchased in anticipation of rating assignments that comply with 
these investment guidelines.  Should the actual rating assigned to a security or 
instrument diverge from the expected rating, a breach of these investment guidelines will 
not be deemed, but Investment Division staff and Manager will consult and reach a 
mutually agreed upon resolution. 

The minimum-weighted, average credit quality of a Manager’s respective Fund 
allocation will be one rating category below that of the Benchmark.  For example, if the 
Benchmark’s average credit quality is Aa2, the minimum-weighted, average credit quality 
of a Manager’s respective Fund allocation should be no lower than A2. 

H. Diversification.  The Council expects Managers to pursue broad diversification 
by market sector, industry and issuer.  Net exposure to any single issuer, or issuing trust of 
structured securities such as ABS or MBS, excluding U.S. Treasury obligations and 
obligations of U.S. Government Agencies (including Agency MBS), shall at the time of 
purchase not represent more than 5% of a Manager’s respective Fund allocation. 

I. Absolute Restrictions.  The following types of investments are prohibited: 
(i) Non-U.S. Dollar investments. 
(ii) Short sales of cash securities; 
(iii) Derivatives such as swaps, options, forwards and futures; 
(iv) Margin purchases, lending or borrowing or other uses of leverage or 

derivatives to create positions greater than 100% of the market value of 
assets under management; 

(v) Commodities or common stocks; and  
(vi) Securities issued by the Manager, its parent or other Manager-related 

subsidiaries. 

J. Time Horizon and Monitoring.  Expected performance results shall be achieved 

3 



over a full market cycle as defined by a consecutive three- to five-year period. 
 

K. Tax Status.  Fund earnings are exempt from taxation; therefore, tax 
considerations are not a constraint on investment management decisions. 
 

L. Liquidity Needs.  All investment income and sales proceeds shall be reinvested 
by the Managers. 
 

M. Council Policies and State and Federal Regulations.  In performing their duties 
hereunder, Managers shall at all times comply with existing Council policies as furnished to 
said managers from time to time as well as all applicable State and Federal laws, rules and 
regulations. 

(i) Dodd-Frank Compliance.  Managers shall: 
a. Be familiar with and understand Regulation §23.450 promulgated by 

the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”); 
b. Have policies and procedures reasonably designed to ensure that 

Managers satisfy the applicable requirements of CFTC Regulation 
§23.450(b); 

c. Meet the independence test of CFTC Regulation §23.450(c); and 
d. Comply with the applicable requirements of CFTC Regulation 

§23.450(b) by agreement, condition of employment, law, rule, 
regulation or other enforceable duty. 

 
N. Cross Trades.  Cross trades are permitted at prevailing market levels, in 

accordance with “PTE 95-66”. 
 

3. PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS 
 
There are various methods of calculating and reporting investment performance results.  For 
mandates contemplated by these guidelines, investment performance results shall be 
calculated on a time-weighted, total return basis which includes all realized and accrued 
interest as well as all realized and unrealized gains and losses as reported by the Fund 
custodian.  Performance results shall further be computed and reported after the deduction of 
all transaction charges and fees, including investment management fees. 
 
Prior to the expiration of the time horizon for performance measurement set forth in paragraph 
2.I. above, performance deviating from expectations shall be noted in writing to Managers at 
which time these managers shall be placed on “watch list” status by Investment Division 
personnel.  Such managers shall develop a “plan of action” (the “Plan”) for how to rectify 
deficient performance so that subsequent performance results can reasonably be expected to 
meet Council objectives.  This plan shall be reviewed for reasonableness and viability by the 
Investment Division staff member then functioning as the “Director” or “Senior Investment 
Officer” who shall also monitor and assess the Plan’s implementation and execution.  
However, notwithstanding the foregoing and whether or not the Managers fulfill their 
performance expectations, the Council may at any time exercise its right to terminate 
Managers “at will” according to the terms of Section 7 of the Investment Management 

4 
 



Agreement. 

5 



TAB 6 – OPERF Q4 2015 PERFORMANCE & RISK REPORT 



December 31, 2015

Oregon Public Employees

Retirement Fund (OPERF)

Investment Measurement Service

Quarterly Review

The following report was prepared by Callan Associates Inc. ("CAI") using information from sources that include the following: fund trustee(s); fund

custodian(s); investment manager(s); CAI computer software; CAI investment manager and fund sponsor database; third party data vendors; and other outside

sources as directed by the client. CAI assumes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information provided, or methodologies employed, by

any information providers external to CAI. Reasonable care has been taken to assure the accuracy of the CAI database and computer software. Callan does

not provide advice regarding, nor shall Callan be responsible for, the purchase, sale, hedge or holding of individual securities, including, without limitation

securities of the client (i.e., company stock) or derivatives in the client’s accounts. In preparing the following report, CAI has not reviewed the risks of individual

security holdings or the conformity of individual security holdings with the client’s investment policies and guidelines, nor has it assumed any responsibility to do

so. Advice pertaining to the merits of individual securities and derivatives should be discussed with a third party securities expert. Copyright 2016 by Callan

Associates Inc.



Table of Contents
December 31, 2015

Market Overview

Market Overview 3

Asset Allocation

Actual vs Target Asset Allocation 12

Historical Asset Allocation 13

Asset Allocation Across Investment Managers 14

Total Fund Performance

Total Fund Performance vs Large Public Funds 18

Asset Class Rankings 24

Asset Class Performance 26

Public Equity

Domestic Equity 46

International Equity 51

Fixed Income 57

Benchmark Definitions 65

Callan Research/Education 67

Disclosures 70



M
a

rk
e

t O
v
e

rv
ie

w

Market Overview



10/31/15

Mo. Ending

11/30/15

Mo. Ending

12/31/15

Mo. Ending

Quarter

Last

Quarters

Last 2

Quarters

Last 3

Last Year Years

Last 3

Years

Last 5

Years

Last 10

Years

Last 15

MSCI:ACWI 7.9 (0.8) (1.8) 5.1 (4.7) (4.2) (1.8) 8.3 6.7 5.3 4.7

Russell:3000 Index 7.9 0.6 (2.1) 6.3 (1.4) (1.3) 0.5 14.7 12.2 7.4 5.4

Russell:3000 Growth 8.4 0.5 (1.7) 7.1 0.7 1.0 5.1 16.6 13.3 8.5 4.5

Russell:3000 Value 7.4 0.6 (2.4) 5.4 (3.6) (3.6) (4.1) 12.8 11.0 6.1 6.0

MegaCap

Russell:Top 50 9.8 0.4 (0.8) 9.3 3.3 4.8 4.3 14.6 12.7 7.3 --

Russell:Top 200 8.9 0.4 (1.4) 7.7 0.9 1.8 2.4 15.4 12.9 7.2 4.2

Russell:Top 200 Growth 9.6 0.3 (1.2) 8.6 4.2 4.9 8.2 17.7 14.4 8.8 4.0

Russell:Top 200 Value 8.2 0.4 (1.7) 6.8 (2.4) (1.4) (3.4) 13.0 11.3 5.6 4.5

Large Cap

S&P:500 8.4 0.3 (1.6) 7.0 0.1 0.4 1.4 15.1 12.6 7.3 5.0

S&P:500 HQ 6.2 0.9 (1.2) 5.9 2.0 0.7 1.9 16.3 14.0 7.7 7.2

S&P:500 LQ 8.7 1.0 (3.6) 5.8 (4.7) (5.9) (4.2) 15.8 11.9 8.7 8.5

Russell:1000 Index 8.1 0.3 (1.8) 6.5 (0.8) (0.7) 0.9 15.0 12.4 7.4 5.3

Russell:1000 Growth 8.6 0.3 (1.5) 7.3 1.6 1.8 5.7 16.8 13.5 8.5 4.3

Russell:1000 Value 7.5 0.4 (2.2) 5.6 (3.2) (3.1) (3.8) 13.1 11.3 6.2 5.9

MidCap

S&P:400 Mid Cap 5.6 1.4 (4.2) 2.6 (6.1) (7.1) (2.2) 12.8 10.7 8.2 8.3

Russell:Midcap 6.2 0.3 (2.7) 3.6 (4.7) (6.1) (2.4) 14.2 11.4 8.0 8.1

Russell:Midcap Growth 6.3 0.2 (2.3) 4.1 (4.2) (5.3) (0.2) 14.9 11.5 8.2 5.9

Russell:Midcap Value 6.1 0.3 (3.1) 3.1 (5.2) (7.0) (4.8) 13.4 11.3 7.6 9.1

Small Cap

S&P:600 Small Cap 6.1 2.7 (4.8) 3.7 (5.9) (5.7) (2.0) 13.6 11.5 8.0 8.9

Russell:2000 Index 5.6 3.3 (5.0) 3.6 (8.8) (8.4) (4.4) 11.7 9.2 6.8 7.3

Russell:2000 Growth 5.7 3.7 (4.8) 4.3 (9.3) (7.5) (1.4) 14.3 10.7 8.0 6.0

Russell:2000 Value 5.6 2.8 (5.3) 2.9 (8.2) (9.3) (7.5) 9.1 7.7 5.6 8.2

Russell:Microcap 5.4 3.8 (5.2) 3.7 (10.5) (8.0) (5.2) 12.7 9.2 5.1 8.0

Non-US Equity

MSCI:ACWI ex US 7.5 (2.1) (1.9) 3.3 (9.2) (8.5) (5.2) 1.9 1.5 3.4 4.5

MSCI:EAFE US$ 7.8 (1.6) (1.4) 4.7 (6.0) (5.4) (0.8) 5.0 3.6 3.0 3.5

MSCI:EAFE Gr w/ net div 8.2 (0.7) (0.8) 6.7 (2.6) (1.7) 4.1 6.8 4.6 4.0 3.3

MSCI:EAFE Val w/net div 7.4 (2.5) (1.9) 2.7 (9.4) (9.2) (5.7) 3.1 2.5 2.0 3.6

MSCI:EAFE Small Cap 6.0 0.0 0.7 6.8 (0.5) 3.8 9.6 10.4 6.3 4.6 8.4

MSCI:Emer Markets 7.1 (3.9) (2.2) 0.7 (17.2) (16.5) (14.6) (6.4) (4.5) 3.9 8.9

Fixed Income

Barclays:Aggregate Index 0.0 (0.3) (0.3) (0.6) 0.7 (1.0) 0.6 1.4 3.2 4.5 5.0

Barclays:US TIPS Index 0.3 (0.1) (0.8) (0.6) (1.8) (2.8) (1.4) (2.3) 2.6 3.9 5.5

Barclays:Gov/Credit Long 0.4 (0.6) (0.8) (0.9) 1.2 (6.4) (3.3) 1.7 7.0 6.4 7.1

Barclays:Credit A Long 0.5 (0.2) (0.6) (0.2) 2.4 (5.3) (2.3) 2.2 7.0 5.9 6.9

Barclays:High Yield CP 2.8 (2.2) (2.5) (2.1) (6.8) (6.8) (4.5) 1.7 5.1 7.0 7.7

Barclays:Muni 1-10 Blend 0.4 0.1 0.3 0.8 2.1 1.6 2.4 2.2 3.6 4.1 4.3

Barclays:Gl Agg xUS UH 0.3 (2.8) 1.2 (1.3) (0.6) (1.5) (6.0) (4.1) (0.8) 3.1 4.6

Barclays:Gl Agg xUS DH 0.5 0.3 (0.2) 0.6 2.1 (0.6) 1.4 3.7 4.3 4.2 4.6

JPM:EMBI+ 3.5 (0.4) (1.3) 1.8 0.8 0.0 1.8 (0.3) 5.0 6.7 8.7

Other Assets

Bloomberg Commodity (0.4) (7.3) (3.1) (10.5) (23.5) (19.9) (24.7) (17.3) (13.5) (6.4) (1.0)

S&P GSCI 0.2 (9.0) (8.6) (16.6) (32.7) (26.8) (32.9) (23.7) (15.2) (10.6) (4.2)

Gold (S&P Spot Price Index) 2.3 (6.7) (0.5) (4.9) (9.5) (10.4) (10.5) (14.2) (5.7) 7.4 9.5

NAREIT Equity Index 5.9 (0.5) 1.8 7.3 9.4 (1.5) 3.2 11.2 12.0 7.4 11.2

Alerian MLP Index 9.7 (8.1) (3.6) (2.8) (24.3) (28.9) (32.6) (3.4) 1.5 8.7 12.4

Preliminary Returns for Various Periods - December 31, 2015



Market Environment 
As of December 31, 2015

3

Index Quarter
Last

Last Year Years
Last 3

Years
Last 5

Years
Last 10

Years
Last 15

Russell:3000 Index 6.27 0.48 14.74 12.18 7.35 5.39
Russell:1000 Index 6.50 0.92 15.01 12.44 7.40 5.25
Russell:2000 Index 3.59 (4.41) 11.65 9.19 6.80 7.28

MSCI:ACWI x US (Net) 3.24 (5.66) 1.50 1.06 2.92 4.03
MSCI:EAFE US$ 4.71 (0.81) 5.01 3.60 3.03 3.54
MSCI:Emer Markets 0.73 (14.60) (6.42) (4.47) 3.95 8.87

Barclays:Aggregate Index (0.57) 0.55 1.44 3.25 4.51 4.97

NFI-ODCE Index 3.34 15.02 13.81 13.66 6.53 7.94
NAREIT Equity Index 7.26 3.20 11.23 11.96 7.41 11.16

Markets bounced back in October from a wildly disappointing third quarter but were not able to stabilize 
before fear and uncertainty returned. After hitting an all-time high in July, U.S. equity markets had a 
strong fourth quarter (+6.27%) ending the year basically flat (Russell 3000 Index: +0.5%). International 
equity markets ticked up in the fourth quarter, rising 3.2%, but still ended the year down 5.7% (MSCI 
ACWI ex-U.S.) after a tumultuous year including fears of a 'Grexit,' unrest in the Middle East, and a 
slowing Chinese economy. Oil prices fell 30% in 2015 amid concerns of oversupply, declining demand, 
and a strong U.S. dollar. This impacted corporate profits in the Energy and Materials sectors but boosted 
the amount of money in consumers' pockets. Oil was still searching for a bottom as we entered 2016 and 
continued to weigh on the global markets. The U.S. dollar strengthened in the fourth quarter as global 
monetary policies diverged, acting as a headwind to domestic GDP and hurting exports. 

The Federal Reserve decided to finally raise interest rates in December after seven years of a near zero 
rate policy. The 0.25% increase was supported by two years of strong job creation and other positive 
economic data. 

GDP growth in the fourth quarter sputtered as the economy grew at a modest 0.7%. The newest reading 
contrasts with the robust second quarter expansion of 3.9% and the average third quarter increase of 
2.0%. This brought full year growth for 2015 to 2.4%, on par with the uninspiring pace that we have seen 
throughout the recovery. Inventory stockpiles, declining net exports, and business investment all weighed 
on the economy during the fourth quarter. Headline inflation continues to remain low with the decline in 
oil prices but ticked up slightly in December to 0.7% year-over-year. Core CPI (which excludes food and 
energy) finally broke through the Fed's target of 2.0%, reaching an increase of 2.1% for the year.  

The job market continued to gain steam in the U.S. as employers added 292,000 positions to payrolls in 
December. Coming off the heels of strong October and November payroll reports, average monthly job 
creation in the fourth quarter posted its highest pace in a year, adding 284,000 positions per month. The 
past two years have been the best for job creation since 1999. The unemployment rate remained steady 
at 5.0%, down from 5.6% at the start of 2015. Despite the encouraging job growth numbers, average 
hourly earnings only rose 2.5% throughout the year. This is above trend in the current expansion but still 
below historical averages.

Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Periodic Table of Returns 
As of December 31, 2015

S&P:500

7.0%
S&P:500

1.4%

S&P:500

15.1%
S&P:500

12.6%

S&P:500

7.3%
Russell:2000 Index

3.6%

Russell:2000 Index

(4.4%)

Russell:2000 Index

11.7%

Russell:2000 Index

9.2%

Russell:2000 Index

6.8%

MSCI:ACWI x US (Net)

3.2%

MSCI:ACWI x US (Net)

(5.7%)

MSCI:ACWI x US (Net)

1.5%
MSCI:ACWI x US (Net)

1.1%
MSCI:ACWI x US (Net)

2.9%

MSCI:Emer Markets

0.7%

MSCI:Emer Markets

(14.6%)

MSCI:Emer Markets

(6.4%)

MSCI:Emer Markets

(4.5%)

MSCI:Emer Markets

3.9%

Index
Barclays:Aggregate

(0.6%)

Index
Barclays:Aggregate

0.5%

Index
Barclays:Aggregate

1.4%

Index
Barclays:Aggregate

3.2%

Index
Barclays:Aggregate

4.5%

ML:High Yield CP Idx

(2.1%)

ML:High Yield CP Idx

(4.6%)

ML:High Yield CP Idx

1.6%

ML:High Yield CP Idx

4.8%

ML:High Yield CP Idx

6.7%

NFI-ODCE Index

3.3%

NFI-ODCE Index

15.0%

NFI-ODCE Index

13.8%

NFI-ODCE Index

13.7%

NFI-ODCE Index

6.5%

3 Month T-Bill

0.0%

3 Month T-Bill

0.1%

3 Month T-Bill

0.1%

3 Month T-Bill

0.1%
3 Month T-Bill

1.2%

Russell:3000 Index

6.3%

Russell:3000 Index

0.5%

Russell:3000 Index

14.7%
Russell:3000 Index

12.2%

Russell:3000 Index

7.4%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 10 Years

4
    Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



U.S. Equity Overview 
As of December 31, 2015

5    

Index Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Years
Last 10

Years
Last 15

Russell:3000 Index 6.27 0.48 14.74 12.18 7.35 5.39
Russell:1000 Index 6.50 0.92 15.01 12.44 7.40 5.25
Russell:1000 Growth 7.32 5.67 16.83 13.53 8.53 4.33
Russell:1000 Value 5.64 (3.83) 13.08 11.27 6.16 5.86

Russell:2000 Index 3.59 (4.41) 11.65 9.19 6.80 7.28
Russell:2000 Growth 4.32 (1.38) 14.28 10.67 7.95 6.03
Russell:2000 Value 2.88 (7.47) 9.06 7.67 5.57 8.17

Russell:Microcap 3.74 (5.16) 12.70 9.23 5.13 7.99

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

S&P 500 Index Sector Returns

Cons Disc Cons Staples Energy Financials Health Care

Industrials Info Tech Materials Telecom Svc Utilities

5.8

7.6

0.2

6.0

9.2

8.0

9.2
9.7

7.6

1.1

U.S. equities rebounded nicely in October as concerns over decelerating economic growth in China and 
weakening commodity prices abated. Unfortunately, these issues reappeared in December and markets 
sold off slightly at the end of the year but managed to end the quarter up 6.3% (Russell 3000 Index). 2015 
was disappointing for U.S. equities as the broad market ended only 48 basis points into positive territory. 

The S&P 500 fared slightly better than the broad market and ended the quarter and year up 7.0% and 
1.4%, respectively. All economic sectors in the S&P 500 increased with Materials (+9.7%), IT (+9.2%) and 
Health Care (+9.2%) leading the way. The Energy (+0.2%) and Utilities (+1.1%) sectors trailed. 

Large cap stocks fared better than small caps for the quarter (Russell 1000 Index: 6.5%; Russell 2000 
Index: 3.6%) and the year (Russell 1000 Index: 0.9%; Russell 2000 Index: -4.4%; Russell Microcap Index: 
-5.2%). In large cap stocks, growth outperformed value slightly over the quarter (Russell 1000 Growth 
Index: 7.3%; Russell 1000 Value Index: 5.6%) and more dramatically over the trailing year (Russell 1000 
Growth Index: 5.7%; Russell 1000 Value Index: -3.8%). Small cap stocks experienced similar results for 
the quarter (Russell 2000 Growth Index: 4.3%; Russell 2000 Value Index: 2.9%) and year (Russell 2000 
Growth Index: -1.4%; Russell 2000 Value Index: -7.5%).

Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Non-U.S. Equity Overview 
As of December 31, 2015

Index Last Quarter Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Years
Last 10

Years
Last 15

MSCI:ACWI x US (Net) 3.24 (5.66) 1.50 1.06 2.92 4.03
MSCI:ACWI x US Gr 5.04 (0.91) 3.90 2.48 4.02 3.96
MSCI:ACWI x US Val 1.50 (9.59) (0.08) 0.49 2.68 4.87

MSCI:EAFE US$ 4.71 (0.81) 5.01 3.60 3.03 3.54
MSCI:EAFE LC(Net) 6.34 5.33 12.30 7.85 3.22 2.67

MSCI:Emer Markets 0.73 (14.60) (6.42) (4.47) 3.95 8.87

MSCI:ACWI SC x US 5.28 2.60 5.64 2.63 4.95 8.24

(7.5)

(5.0)

(2.5)

0.0

2.5

5.0

7.5

10.0

12.5

MSCI Regional Returns

MSCI:Pacific ex Jpn MSCI:EM Europe MSCI: EM Asia MSCI:Europe

MSCI: EM Lat Am MSCI:Japan

8.3

(5.1)

3.5
2.5

(2.6)

9.3

Equity markets outside of the U.S. managed to end the quarter in positive territory, but were not able to 
match the performance of their U.S. counterparts. The broad non-U.S. market (MSCI ACWI ex-U.S.) 
gained 3.2% during the fourth quarter but fell in value over the calendar year (-5.7%). The strengthening 
dollar took a bite out of results for investors as local returns were stronger over the quarter (MSCI EAFE 
Local Currency Index: +6.3%; MSCI EAFE US$ Index: +4.71%) and year (MSCI EAFE Local Currency 
Index: +5.3%; MSCI EAFE US$ Index: -0.8%). Emerging markets managed to eke out positive returns 
over the fourth quarter (MSCI Emerging Markets: +0.7%) but were down significantly over 2015 (-14.6%).  
 
Regional returns were mixed during the quarter with Japan (+9.3%) and the Pacific ex-Japan (+8.3%) 
experiencing the best returns. Meanwhile, emerging markets in Europe (-5.1%) and Latin America (-2.6%) 
trailed all other regions. International style index dispersion was even more pronounced than in the U.S. 
as growth and value were 354 basis points apart (MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. Growth Index: +5.0%; MSCI ACWI 
ex-U.S. Value Index: +1.5%) during the fourth quarter. International small cap stocks gained ground over 
the quarter (MSCI ACWI ex-U.S. Small Cap Index: +5.3%) and year (+2.6%).

6    Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Fixed Income Overview 
As of December 31, 2015

7

Index Quarter
Last

Last Year Years
Last 3

Years
Last 5

Years
Last 10

Years
Last 15

Barclays:Aggregate Index (0.57) 0.55 1.44 3.25 4.51 4.97
Barclays:Govt Index (0.91) 0.86 1.01 2.77 4.10 4.53
Barclays:Credit (0.52) (0.77) 1.49 4.38 5.18 5.82
Barclays:US TIPS Index (0.64) (1.44) (2.27) 2.55 3.93 5.51
Barclays:Mortgage Idx (0.10) 1.51 2.01 2.96 4.64 4.90
ML:High Yield CP Idx (2.09) (4.55) 1.64 4.84 6.74 7.41
3 Month T-Bill 0.03 0.05 0.05 0.07 1.24 1.61

CS:Lev Loan (1.96) (0.39) 2.56 3.62 4.02 4.40

JPM:EMBI Global 1.55 1.23 (0.07) 5.11 6.72 8.54
JPM:GBI-EM Gl Div (0.01) (14.92) (9.95) (3.48) 4.31 --

The Federal Reserve moved to normalize monetary policy by raising the Fed Funds Rate for the first 
time in nine years. The Federal Open Market Committee unanimously voted for the rate hike as 
employment markets have steadily healed and inflation is expected to move toward their target. In this 
environment, the yield curve flattened as the short end rose more than the long end. The Barclays 
Aggregate Index fell 0.6% for the quarter while remaining in positive territory over the year (+0.6%). 
Credit securities performed roughly in-line with the broader market in the last quarter of 2015 (Barclays 
Corporate Index: -0.5%) but were in the red for the calendar year (-0.8%). Inflation protected securities 
(Barclays US TIPS Index) also fell 0.6% in the quarter and were down 1.4% for the year. High yield 
bonds, with their large exposure to the energy industry, sold off during the quarter (ML High Yield CP 
Index: -2.1%) and posted a 4.6% decline for 2015. Levered loans also suffered in the fourth quarter, 
declining 2.0% (CS:Lev Loan). The JPM:GBI-EM Gl Div Index stabilized (-0.01%) and was flat for the 
quarter while the JPM:EMBI Global Index rallied 1.6%.

    Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Real Estate Overview 
As of December 31, 2015

8

Index Quarter
Last

Last Year Years
Last 3

Years
Last 5

Years
Last 10

Years
Last 15

Private Real Estate:
NCREIF:Total Index 2.91 13.33 12.04 12.18 7.76 8.96
NCREIF:Apartment Index 2.73 11.99 10.90 11.86 7.29 8.89
NCREIF:Hotel Index 3.03 13.20 10.63 10.38 6.51 6.88
NCREIF:Industrial Idx 3.19 14.87 13.53 13.40 7.88 8.98
NCREIF:Office Index 2.58 12.50 11.28 11.41 7.69 8.18
NCREIF:Retail Index 3.46 15.28 13.75 13.32 8.74 11.10

NFI-ODCE Index 3.34 15.02 13.81 13.66 6.53 7.94
NFI-ODCE Income Index 1.14 4.76 5.01 5.19 5.45 6.14
NFI-ODCE Appreciation Index 2.20 9.88 8.46 8.13 1.05 1.73

Public Real Estate:
NAREIT Equity Index 7.26 3.20 11.23 11.96 7.41 11.16

Other:
Russell:3000 Index 6.27 0.48 14.74 12.18 7.35 5.39
Barclays:Aggregate Index (0.57) 0.55 1.44 3.25 4.51 4.97
CPI-U Index (0.60) 0.73 1.00 1.53 1.86 2.07

The NCREIF Property Index advanced 2.91%, recording a 1.20% income return and a 1.72% 
appreciation return during the quarter. The NCREIF Property Index cash-flow return appreciated 0.64% 
for the quarter and 3.10% for the trailing four quarters. There were 210 asset trades, representing $11.3 
billion of overall transactional volume, comfortably ahead of the $5.1 billion 10-year quarterly 
transaction average and the prior peak of $8.7 billion in the second quarter of 2007. 

Pricing remained stable as equal-weighted transactional capitalization rates decreased to 5.90%, a 
slight retreat from the 2015 high (+5.91%) during the third quarter. Over the course of the prior cycle, 
quarterly equal-weighted transactional capitalization rates dipped to a low of 5.46% in the fourth quarter 
of 2007 and expanded to a peak of 8.46% in the third quarter of 2009. During the fourth quarter of 
2015, appraisal capitalization rates decreased from 4.67% to 4.58%. As markets peaked over the prior 
cycle, appraisal capitalization rates declined to a low of 4.89% in the third quarter of 2008. 

During 2015, MSCI and S&P Dow Jones announced that in August 2016, they will begin to break out 
real estate into a distinct sector rather than continuing to include it in the broader group of Financials. 
There are currently twenty-five companies included in the S&P 500 Index that will now be included in 
the new real estate sector. While most commercial real estate in the U.S. is traded in the private 
markets, this change indicates the increasing importance of publicly listed real estate.  

    Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Hedge Fund Overview 
As of December 31, 2015

9

Index Quarter
Last

Last Year Years
Last 3

Years
Last 5

Years
Last 10

Years
Last 15

Diversified Hedge Fund-of-Funds:
Hedge Fund of Funds Database 0.40 (0.09) 4.72 3.54 3.96 5.28
Absolute Return FoF Database (1.15) (2.45) 2.98 2.23 3.58 5.08
Hedge FoF Long/Short Database 0.85 0.29 6.14 3.76 4.17 5.28

HFRI Fund of Funds Compos 0.77 (0.23) 3.96 2.11 2.27 3.46

CS:Hedge Fund Idx (0.12) (0.71) 4.30 3.55 4.97 5.95
CS:Convert Arbitage (0.58) 0.81 1.67 2.76 4.42 4.94
CS:Event-Driven (2.32) (6.29) 3.20 2.02 4.91 6.85
CS:Distressed (1.76) (5.30) 4.05 3.81 4.82 7.80
CS:Evt Driven Multi (2.55) (6.67) 2.86 1.08 5.12 6.45
CS:Risk Arb 0.81 0.41 1.30 1.50 3.55 3.65
CS:Emerging 2.79 (0.22) 3.30 2.55 5.17 8.06
CS:Fx-Inc Arb 0.03 0.59 2.90 4.84 3.84 4.50
CS:Global Macro 0.62 0.17 2.52 3.70 6.79 9.04
CS:Long/Short Eq 1.58 3.56 8.77 5.23 5.80 5.98
CS:Mgd Futures (1.05) (0.93) 4.54 1.22 4.21 5.40
CS:Mkt Neut Eq (0.04) 1.69 3.16 2.96 (1.44) 1.39
CS:Multi-Strat 0.51 3.84 7.01 6.77 6.17 6.89
CS:Short Bias (4.29) 2.38 (10.15) (9.72) (8.90) (7.19)

Other:
Russell:3000 Index 6.27 0.48 14.74 12.18 7.35 5.39
MSCI:ACWI x US (Net) 3.24 (5.66) 1.50 1.06 2.92 4.03
Barclays:Aggregate Index (0.57) 0.55 1.44 3.25 4.51 4.97

As a proxy for hedge funds without implementation costs, the Credit Suisse Hedge Fund Index (CS HFI) 
slipped 0.12% in the fourth quarter. By contrast, the median manager in the Callan Hedge 
Fund-of-Funds Database edged ahead 0.40%, net of all fees.  

Within the CS HFI, the major sector winner was Long/Short Equity (+1.58%). Event-Driven Multi-Strategy 
(-2.55%), which is typically more focused on soft catalysts, fell particularly hard as investors fled crowded 
trades in this space. Distressed (-1.76%) also lost ground with credit spreads widening, but outpaced the 
Barclays High Yield Credit Index (-2.07%).  

Within Callan's Hedge Fund-of-Funds Database, market exposures marginally affected performance. 
Aided by the U.S. equity market rally, the median Callan Long/Short Equity FOF (+0.85%) outpaced the 
Callan Absolute Return FOF (-1.15%). With diversifying exposures to both non-directional and 
directional styles, the Core Diversified FOF modestly gained 0.37%. 

    Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Capital Market Returns 
As of December 31, 2015

10

Index Quarter
Last

Last Year Years
Last 3

Years
Last 5

Years
Last 10

Years
Last 15

U.S. Equity:
Russell:3000 Index 6.27 0.48 14.74 12.18 7.35 5.39
S&P:500 7.04 1.38 15.13 12.57 7.31 5.00
Russell:1000 Index 6.50 0.92 15.01 12.44 7.40 5.25
Russell:1000 Growth 7.32 5.67 16.83 13.53 8.53 4.33
Russell:1000 Value 5.64 (3.83) 13.08 11.27 6.16 5.86
Russell:Midcap Index 3.62 (2.44) 14.18 11.44 8.00 8.15
Russell:Midcap Growth 4.12 (0.20) 14.88 11.54 8.16 5.85
Russell:Midcap Value 3.12 (4.78) 13.40 11.25 7.61 9.12
Russell:2000 Index 3.59 (4.41) 11.65 9.19 6.80 7.28
Russell:2000 Growth 4.32 (1.38) 14.28 10.67 7.95 6.03
Russell:2000 Value 2.88 (7.47) 9.06 7.67 5.57 8.17

U.S. Fixed Income:
Barclays:Aggregate Index (0.57) 0.55 1.44 3.25 4.51 4.97
Barclays:Gov/Credit Bond (0.74) 0.15 1.21 3.39 4.47 5.01
Barclays:Gov/Credit Long (0.94) (3.30) 1.70 6.98 6.45 7.07
Barclays:Gov/Credit 1-3 (0.36) 0.65 0.69 0.98 2.74 3.21
Barclays:Credit (0.52) (0.77) 1.49 4.38 5.18 5.82
Barclays:Mortgage Idx (0.10) 1.51 2.01 2.96 4.64 4.90
Barclays:High Yld Corp (2.07) (4.47) 1.69 5.04 6.96 7.59
Barclays:US Universal Idx (0.55) 0.43 1.50 3.46 4.67 5.20

Real Estate:
NCREIF:Total Index 2.91 13.33 12.04 12.18 7.76 8.96
NAREIT Composite Idx 7.13 2.05 9.94 11.29 6.65 10.59

Global Equity:
MSCI:ACWI 5.15 (1.84) 8.26 6.66 5.31 4.67
MSCI:AC WORLD IMI 4.91 (2.19) 7.86 6.11 4.98 4.69

Non-U.S. Equity:
MSCI:EAFE US$ 4.71 (0.81) 5.01 3.60 3.03 3.54
MSCI:EAFE LC(Net) 6.34 5.33 12.30 7.85 3.22 2.67
MSCI:ACWI ex US 3.30 (5.25) 1.94 1.51 3.38 4.46
MSCI:AC Wld Net x US LC 4.81 1.86 9.05 5.79 3.60 3.48
MSCI:ACWI SC ex US 5.28 2.60 5.64 2.63 4.95 8.24
MSCI:Emer Markets 0.73 (14.60) (6.42) (4.47) 3.95 8.87

Other:
3 Month T-Bill 0.03 0.05 0.05 0.07 1.24 1.61
US DOL:CPI All Urban Cons (0.60) 0.73 1.00 1.53 1.86 2.07

    Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



A
s
s
e

t A
llo

c
a

tio
n

Asset Allocation



Actual vs Target Asset Allocation
As of December 31, 2015

The top left chart shows the Fund’s asset allocation as of December 31, 2015. The top right chart shows the Fund’s target
asset allocation as outlined in the investment policy statement. The bottom chart ranks the fund’s asset allocation and the
target allocation versus the Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B).

Actual Asset Allocation

Domestic Equity
19%

International Equity
18%

Global Equity
1%

Fixed Income
22%Real Estate

12%

Private Equity
21%

Opportunity
2%

Alternative
3%

Cash
2%

Target Asset Allocation

Domestic Equity
20%

International Equity
20%

Global Equity
1%

Fixed Income
24%

Real Estate
13%

Private Equity
20%

Alternative
3%

$000s Weight Percent $000s
Asset Class Actual Actual Target Difference Difference
Domestic Equity      12,789,117   18.8%   20.2% (1.5%) (990,753)
International Equity      12,116,398   17.8%   20.2% (2.4%) (1,663,471)
Global Equity         795,050    1.2%    1.0%    0.2%         114,563
Fixed Income      14,869,818   21.9%   23.5% (1.6%) (1,121,635)
Real Estate       8,239,207   12.1%   12.5% (0.4%) (266,885)
Private Equity      13,982,582   20.5%   20.0%    0.5%         372,834
Opportunity       1,286,288    1.9%    0.0%    1.9%       1,286,288
Alternative       2,299,979    3.4%    2.5%    0.9%         598,761
Cash       1,670,299    2.5%    0.0%    2.5%       1,670,299
Total      68,048,739  100.0%  100.0%

Asset Class Weights vs Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B)

W
e

ig
h

ts

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

Domestic Fixed Cash Real International Alternative Global
Equity Income Estate Equity Equity

(90)(83) (50)(38)

(32)
(100)

(19)(29)

(63)
(43)

(25)(32)

(87)(88)

10th Percentile 41.98 32.92 9.79 14.18 24.71 35.57 42.97
25th Percentile 34.96 26.65 3.21 13.24 23.10 23.99 39.20

Median 25.96 21.91 1.61 9.64 19.70 16.16 28.47
75th Percentile 21.17 17.03 0.80 5.64 14.66 10.23 7.95
90th Percentile 18.93 11.48 0.65 3.25 11.96 5.02 0.00

Fund 18.79 21.85 2.45 14.00 17.81 23.93 1.17

Target 20.25 23.50 0.00 12.50 20.25 22.50 1.00

% Group Invested 100.00% 95.65% 69.57% 86.96% 100.00% 95.65% 30.43%

* Current Quarter Target = 23.5% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 20.2% Russell 3000 Index, 20.2% MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index, 20.0% Russell 3000

+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag, 12.5% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag, 1.2% CPI + 400 bps, 1.2% CPI + 400 bps and 1.0% MSCI All Count Wld-Net.

 12
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Actual vs Target Historical Asset Allocation

The Historical asset allocation for a fund is by far the largest factor explaining its performance. The charts below show the
fund’s historical actual asset allocation, the fund’s historical target asset allocation, and the historical asset allocation of the
average fund in the Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B).

Actual Historical Asset Allocation

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Domestic Equity

International Equity

Global Equity

Fixed Income

Real Estate

Private Equity

Total Alternative

Total Opportunity

Cash Equiv

Target Historical Asset Allocation

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Alternative Inv

Domestic Equity

International Equity

Global Equity

Fixed Income

Real Estate

Private Equity

Total Alternative

Average Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B) Historical Asset Allocation

0% 0%

10% 10%

20% 20%

30% 30%

40% 40%

50% 50%

60% 60%

70% 70%

80% 80%

90% 90%

100% 100%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Hedge Funds

Global Balanced

Cash Equiv

Global Equity Broad

Intl Fixed-Inc

Real Estate

Other Alternatives

Intl Equity

Domestic Fixed

Domestic Broad Eq

* Current Quarter Target = 23.5% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 20.2% Russell 3000 Index, 20.2% MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index, 20.0% Russell 3000

+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag, 12.5% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag, 1.2% CPI + 400 bps, 1.2% CPI + 400 bps and 1.0% MSCI All Count Wld-Net.

 13
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Asset Allocation

The table below contrasts the distribution of assets across the Fund’s investment managers as of December 31, 2015, with
the distribution as of September 30, 2015.

Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers

December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015

Market Value % of Total Fund Market Value % of Total Fund
Public Equity* $25,700,565,434 37.41% $26,376,320,570 38.72%

Domestic Equity* $12,789,117,203 18.61% $12,862,535,129 18.88%

Large Cap Growth $886,402,510 1.29% $1,333,618,538 1.96%
BlackRock Russell 1000 Growth 886,402,510 1.29% 1,333,618,531 1.96%

Large Cap Value $1,843,475,864 2.68% $1,936,309,047 2.84%
Aronson, Johnson & Ortiz 1,187,098,077 1.73% 1,127,763,156 1.66%
BlackRock Russell 1000 Value 656,377,787 0.96% 808,545,883 1.19%

Small Cap Growth $128,860,411 0.19% $223,943,317 0.33%
Next Century Small Cap 8,039 0.00% 98,645,080 0.14%
EAM MicroCap Growth 128,852,372 0.19% 125,298,238 0.18%

Small Cap Value $728,010,370 1.06% $700,579,466 1.03%
AQR Capital Management 203,522,349 0.30% 193,153,490 0.28%
Boston Company Asset Management 226,404,730 0.33% 219,586,606 0.32%
DFA MicroCap Value 181,094,170 0.26% 175,054,371 0.26%
Callan US Microcap Value 116,989,121 0.17% 112,784,998 0.17%

Market Oriented $9,073,974,732 13.21% $8,628,784,837 12.67%
PIMCO (liquidating) 1,014,256 0.00% 737,222 0.00%
Russell Fundamental LC OST managed 1,243,858,897 1.81% 1,176,469,354 1.73%
DFA Large Cap Core 3,370,650,570 4.91% 3,230,651,702 4.74%
Wanger Asset Management 733,505,453 1.07% 716,675,408 1.05%
Wellington Mgmt - Domestic Equity 371,506,619 0.54% 343,446,135 0.50%
Russell 2000 Synthetic - OST managed 340,746,724 0.50% 328,174,165 0.48%
S&P 500 - OST managed 1,812,021,158 2.64% 1,692,181,140 2.48%
S&P 400 - OST managed 472,523,126 0.69% 460,280,287 0.68%
OST Risk Premia Strategy 729,162,185 1.06% 680,906,645 1.00%

Other
Transitional & Closed Accounts 26,351,477 0.04% 2,500,658 0.00%
Shott Capital Management 6,219,524 0.01% 33,842,164 0.05%
Shott Annex 3 0.00% 2,936,049 0.00%
Transition Account II - Domestic Equity 95,822,313 0.14% 21,052 0.00%

International Equity $12,116,398,307 17.64% $12,598,369,543 18.49%

International Market Oriented (Core) $6,171,196,672 8.98% $6,615,545,888 9.71%
Northern Trust Non-US Eq (liquidating) 188,241 0.00% 229,391 0.00%
Arrowstreet Capital 1,190,506,401 1.73% 1,130,140,548 1.66%
Arrowstreet Capital (liquidating) 1,257,373 0.00% 1,467,249 0.00%
Lazard Asset Management 922,167,214 1.34% 892,111,344 1.31%
Pyramis Global Advisors 863,594,236 1.26% 984,032,635 1.44%
Wells Cap International CEF 407,579,101 0.59% 389,272,491 0.57%
Lazard International CEF 612,867,139 0.89% 569,937,871 0.84%
AQR Capital Management 938,757,494 1.37% 995,857,575 1.46%
SSgA MSCI World ex US Net Index 1,235,725,089 1.80% 1,654,193,423 2.43%

International Value $1,629,667,749 2.37% $1,585,351,910 2.33%
Acadian Asset Management 810,426,301 1.18% 789,743,376 1.16%
Brandes Investment Partners 819,241,448 1.19% 795,608,534 1.17%

International Growth $1,396,059,981 2.03% $1,315,052,500 1.93%
TT International 669,999,640 0.98% 638,932,466 0.94%
Walter Scott Management 726,060,342 1.06% 676,112,341 0.99%
UBS Global Asset Mgmt Americas 7,483 0.00% 7,692 0.00%

All Returns and market values provided by custodian.

*Domestic Equity and Public Equity composites include Shott Cap. Mgmt and Transitional Accounts for this page only.

 14
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Asset Allocation

The table below contrasts the distribution of assets across the Fund’s investment managers as of December 31, 2015, with
the distribution as of September 30, 2015.

Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers

December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015

Market Value % of Total Fund Market Value % of Total Fund
International Small Cap $1,323,280,075 1.93% $1,306,988,305 1.92%

DFA International Small Cap 271,998,300 0.40% 260,924,919 0.38%
Harris Associates 264,155,728 0.38% 258,971,203 0.38%
Pyramis Select Small Cap 307,293,457 0.45% 337,489,756 0.50%
Victory Capital Management 233,495,119 0.34% 219,492,930 0.32%
EAM International Micro Cap 117,609,813 0.17% 106,347,351 0.16%
DFA International Micro Cap 128,727,658 0.19% 123,762,146 0.18%

Emerging Markets $1,596,193,829 2.32% $1,775,430,940 2.61%
Genesis Emerging Markets 545,901,067 0.79% 542,636,032 0.80%
Arrowstreet Emerging Markets 383,419,174 0.56% 382,408,989 0.56%
BlackRock Tiered Emerging Markets -2 (0.00%) 180,449,700 0.26%
Westwood Global Investment 237,259,893 0.35% 244,775,877 0.36%
William Blair and Company 183,025,354 0.27% 180,630,603 0.27%
DFA Emerging Market Small Cap 112,594,925 0.16% 109,946,819 0.16%
William Blair Emerging Mkt Small Cap 133,993,415 0.20% 134,582,921 0.20%

Global Equity $795,049,924 1.16% $915,415,898 1.34%
Alliance Bernstein Global Value 795,049,924 1.16% 915,415,898 1.34%

Fixed Income $14,869,818,368 21.64% $14,945,905,543 21.94%

Core Fixed Income $5,478,673,593 7.97% $5,496,693,655 8.07%
Alliance Bernstein 1,365,480,263 1.99% 1,373,060,522 2.02%
Blackrock 1,373,170,524 2.00% 1,378,863,743 2.02%
Wellington 1,359,825,845 1.98% 1,366,440,889 2.01%
Western Asset 1,380,196,960 2.01% 1,378,328,502 2.02%

Short Term Fixed Income $4,972,619,922 7.24% $4,979,240,395 7.31%
Wellington Short Duration 1,261,216,607 1.84% 1,260,127,166 1.85%
Western Asset Short Duration 1,240,444,859 1.81% 1,241,319,994 1.82%
Alliance Bernstein Short Duration 1,238,491,480 1.80% 1,241,522,732 1.82%
Blackrock Short Duration 1,232,466,976 1.79% 1,236,270,504 1.81%

BIG Fixed Income $4,418,516,613 6.43% $4,470,013,183 6.56%
KKR Asset Management 2,715,727,542 3.95% 2,744,824,198 4.03%
Oak Hill 1,702,789,072 2.48% 1,725,188,985 2.53%

Total Real Estate $8,239,207,267 11.99% $7,878,622,928 11.57%

Real Estate excluding REITs $6,298,741,155 9.17% $6,035,048,842 8.86%

Total REITs $1,940,466,111 2.82% $1,843,574,086 2.71%

Total Domestic REITs $1,437,547,569 2.09% $1,342,638,048 1.97%
ABKB - LaSalle Advisors 950,407,088 1.38% 883,161,260 1.30%
Woodbourne Investment Management 84,166,655 0.12% 84,372,457 0.12%
Cohen & Steers 402,973,825 0.59% 375,104,331 0.55%

Total Global REITs $502,918,543 0.73% $500,936,038 0.74%
Morgan Stanley 420,159,052 0.61% 418,894,133 0.61%
European Investors 82,759,491 0.12% 82,041,905 0.12%

All Returns and market values provided by custodian.

 15
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Asset Allocation

The table below contrasts the distribution of assets across the Fund’s investment managers as of December 31, 2015, with
the distribution as of September 30, 2015.

Asset Distribution Across Investment Managers

December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015

Market Value % of Total Fund Market Value % of Total Fund

Total Private Equity $13,982,581,934 20.55% $14,235,715,663 21.10%

Opportunity Portfolio $1,286,287,827 1.89% $1,169,579,948 1.73%

Alternative Portfolio $2,299,979,451 3.38% $1,690,121,013 2.50%

Cash Mobilization Fund $1,398,613,407 2.06% $931,751,596 1.38%

Total Variable Fund $655,618,552 0.96% $645,349,664 0.96%
BlackRock ACWI Index Fund 644,223,584 0.95% 636,958,654 0.94%
Variable Cash Fund 11,394,967 0.02% 8,391,007 0.01%
Transition Account - Variable 1 0.00% 1 0.00%

Overlay $271,685,789 0.40% $248,788,750 0.37%

Total Regular Account $68,048,750,845 100.0% $67,476,806,011 100.0%

All Returns and market values provided by custodian.

 16
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



T
o

ta
l F

u
n

d
 P

e
rfo

rm
a

n
c
e

Total Fund Performance



Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)
Performance vs Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B)
Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Return Ranking
The chart below illustrates fund rankings over various periods versus the Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B). The bars represent
the range of returns from the 10th percentile to the 90th percentile for each period for all funds in the Very Lrg Public Funds
(>10B). The numbers to the right of the bar represent the percentile rankings of the fund being analyzed. The table below the
chart details the rates of return plotted in the graph above.

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Last Year Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years

(11)

(33)

(28)(29) (11)(17)

(26)

(66)

(16)(17)

10th Percentile 2.57 9.05 8.45 11.11 6.64
25th Percentile 1.71 8.58 8.04 10.63 6.23

Median 1.00 7.91 7.57 9.95 6.02
75th Percentile 0.14 6.57 6.76 9.43 5.86
90th Percentile (0.41) 5.60 6.40 8.34 5.54

Total
Regular Account 2.38 8.44 8.41 10.60 6.54

Policy Target 1.57 8.32 8.35 9.77 6.50

* Current Quarter Target = 41.5% MSCI All Count Wld-Net, 23.5% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 20.0% Russell 3000
+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag, 12.5% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag and 2.5% CPI + 400 bps.
Total Regular Account performance is gross for public market funds and net for private market funds.

 18
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)
Performance vs Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B)
Recent Periods

Return Ranking
The chart below illustrates fund rankings over various periods versus the Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B). The bars represent
the range of returns from the 10th percentile to the 90th percentile for each period for all funds in the Very Lrg Public Funds
(>10B). The numbers to the right of the bar represent the percentile rankings of the fund being analyzed. The table below the
chart details the rates of return plotted in the graph above.

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

(11)
(33)

(36)(14)

(47)(48)
(11)

(2)

(14)
(43)

10th Percentile 2.57 8.77 19.02 14.64 2.72
25th Percentile 1.71 7.96 17.39 14.00 1.46

Median 1.00 7.00 15.24 13.38 0.56
75th Percentile 0.14 6.12 13.59 12.57 (0.11)
90th Percentile (0.41) 5.71 9.71 11.21 (0.77)

Total Regular Account 2.38 7.55 15.82 14.58 2.48

Policy Target 1.57 8.24 15.61 16.57 0.80

(40%)

(30%)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

(56)(91)

(53)
(83)

(50)
(16)

(23)(14)

(27)(40)

10th Percentile 14.49 24.39 (20.46) 10.98 16.56
25th Percentile 13.83 23.00 (24.85) 9.68 15.72

Median 13.37 20.88 (26.76) 8.87 14.58
75th Percentile 12.26 17.47 (27.96) 7.56 13.25
90th Percentile 11.36 13.77 (29.34) 6.65 10.63

Total Regular Account 12.89 19.76 (26.76) 9.90 15.66

Policy Target 11.32 15.52 (23.04) 10.52 14.89

* Current Quarter Target = 41.5% MSCI All Count Wld-Net, 23.5% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 20.0% Russell 3000
+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag, 12.5% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag and 2.5% CPI + 400 bps.
Total Regular Account performance is gross for public market funds and net for private market funds.

 19
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)
Performance vs Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B)
Rolling Periods

Return Ranking
The chart below illustrates fund rankings over various periods versus the Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B). The bars represent
the range of returns from the 10th percentile to the 90th percentile for each period for all funds in the Very Lrg Public Funds
(>10B). The numbers to the right of the bar represent the percentile rankings of the fund being analyzed. The table below the
chart details the rates of return plotted in the graph above.

5.0%

5.5%

6.0%

6.5%

7.0%

7.5%

8.0%

8.5%

9.0%

9.5%

10 Years Ended 10 Years Ended 10 Years Ended 10 Years Ended
12/2015 12/2014 12/2013 12/2012

(16)(17)

(6)

(11)

(2)

(9)

(1)

(10)

10th Percentile 6.64 7.42 7.77 8.52
25th Percentile 6.23 7.05 7.56 8.37

Median 6.02 6.76 7.32 8.08
75th Percentile 5.86 6.47 7.04 7.53
90th Percentile 5.54 6.09 6.65 7.02

Total Regular Account 6.54 7.65 8.34 8.99

Policy Target 6.50 7.33 7.78 8.54

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

10 Years Ended 10 Years Ended 10 Years Ended
12/2011 12/2010 12/2009

(4)

(32)
(7)

(48)
(8)

(55)

10th Percentile 6.23 5.64 4.36
25th Percentile 5.99 5.43 4.21

Median 5.69 4.99 3.99
75th Percentile 5.27 4.70 3.16
90th Percentile 4.82 4.38 2.86

Total Regular Account 6.65 5.71 4.67

Policy Target 5.87 5.01 3.86

* Current Quarter Target = 41.5% MSCI All Count Wld-Net, 23.5% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 20.0% Russell 3000
+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag, 12.5% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag and 2.5% CPI + 400 bps.
Total Regular Account performance is gross for public market funds and net for private market funds.

 20
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Total Regular Account
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the return versus risk relationship. The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the benchmark
over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B) (Gross)
Ten Years Ended December 31, 2015

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
(1.5 )

(1.0 )

(0.5 )

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

Total Regular Account

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

4 6 8 10 12 14
5.0

5.5

6.0

6.5

7.0

7.5

8.0

Total Regular Account

Policy Target

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

Rolling 40 Quarter Tracking Error vs Policy Target

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

1.8%

2.0%

2.2%

2.4%

2.6%

2.8%

3.0%

3.2%

3.4%

3.6%

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Regular Account

Very Lrg PF >10B

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Policy Target
Rankings Against Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B) (Gross)
Ten Years Ended December 31, 2015

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(62)

(97) (97) (97)

10th Percentile 11.81 3.10 3.86 4.36
25th Percentile 11.50 2.40 3.16 3.53

Median 11.16 2.10 2.83 3.10
75th Percentile 10.06 1.90 2.68 2.86
90th Percentile 8.52 1.79 2.35 2.53

Total
Regular Account 10.57 1.55 1.96 2.13

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

1.10

1.20

1.30

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(62)

(3)

(62)

10th Percentile 1.21 0.95 1.24
25th Percentile 1.17 0.94 1.21

Median 1.13 0.94 1.18
75th Percentile 1.02 0.92 1.06
90th Percentile 0.86 0.84 0.90

Total
Regular Account 1.10 0.97 1.11

 21
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Total Regular Account
Historical Consistency Analysis

Consistency of Return(%) and Sharpe Ratio
The first chart below illustrates the consistency of return(%) over rolling three year periods versus the Policy Target. The gray
area represents the range of return(%) for the 10th through 90th percentile for the Very Lrg PF >10B. The second chart
below illustrates the consistency of sharpe ratio over rolling three year periods. The tables provide summary statistics for the
median manager of the group and the portfolio.

Rolling Three Year Return(%) Relative to Policy Target
Ten Years Ended December 31, 2015

R
e

tu
rn

(%
)

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Regular Account

Rolling Three Year Period Analysis Median Portfolio

Average Annual Return(%) 7.32% 8.30%
% Positive Periods 80% 78%
Average Ranking 50 28

Rolling Three Year Sharpe Ratio Relative to Policy Target
Ten Years Ended December 31, 2015

S
h

a
rp

e
 R

a
ti
o

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Regular Account

Rolling Three Year Period Analysis Median Portfolio

Average Annual Sharpe Ratio 0.85% 1.24%
% Positive Periods 75% 78%
Average Ranking 50 19

 22
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Risk and Risk Adjusted Return Statistics
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Standard Deviation
vs Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B)

P
e

rc
e

n
t

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

5 Years Ended 5 Years Ended 5 Years Ended 5 Years Ended 5 Years Ended
12/2015 12/2014 12/2013 12/2012 12/2011

(84)
(77) (89)(78)

(67)
(76)

(62)

(82)

(57)

(84)

10th Percentile 8.63 9.74 12.46 15.72 15.33
25th Percentile 8.12 9.04 11.83 15.20 14.83

Median 7.29 8.25 11.18 14.66 14.22
75th Percentile 6.76 7.24 10.06 13.44 13.21
90th Percentile 5.55 6.11 8.41 11.35 10.99

Total
Regular Account 6.00 6.70 10.40 14.25 14.06

Policy Target 6.64 7.09 9.91 12.69 12.24

Sharpe Ratio
vs Very Lrg Public Funds (>10B)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

5 Years Ended 5 Years Ended 5 Years Ended 5 Years Ended 5 Years Ended
12/2015 12/2014 12/2013 12/2012 12/2011

(10)
(13)

(8)
(13)

(16)(30)

(27)(21)
(31)(39)

10th Percentile 1.39 1.52 1.33 0.26 0.11
25th Percentile 1.14 1.31 1.19 0.19 0.06

Median 0.98 1.13 1.11 0.15 0.02
75th Percentile 0.90 1.06 1.06 0.11 0.00
90th Percentile 0.84 1.04 1.02 0.06 (0.02)

Total
Regular Account 1.39 1.56 1.23 0.18 0.05

Policy Target 1.25 1.45 1.18 0.20 0.04

 23
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Asset Class Rankings

Total Regular Account performance is gross for public market funds and net for private market funds.

Total Asset Class Performance
One Year Ended December 31, 2015

R
e

tu
rn

s

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

CAI Pub Fund: CAI Pub Fund:10+ Public Fund 10+ Pub Pln- Real
10+ Dom Eq Intl Eq B US FI Estate

(82)
(30)

(20)

(59)

(5)(31)

(50)

(22)

10th Percentile 1.02 (0.90) 0.56 14.86
25th Percentile 0.66 (2.35) 0.24 12.76

Median (0.06) (3.24) (0.04) 10.35
75th Percentile (0.41) (5.90) (0.67) 7.16
90th Percentile (7.62) (7.69) (2.44) 2.37

Asset Class Composite (0.74) (2.22) 0.74 10.33

Composite Benchmark 0.48 (4.60) 0.16 13.48

Weighted
Ranking

37

Total Asset Class Performance
Three Years Ended December 31, 2015

R
e

tu
rn

s

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

CAI Pub Fund: CAI Pub Fund:10+ Public Fund 10+ Pub Pln- Real
10+ Dom Eq Intl Eq B US FI Estate

(76)
(61)

(1)

(70) (30)
(66)

(24)
(39)

10th Percentile 15.63 3.87 2.75 14.06
25th Percentile 15.26 3.78 2.38 12.58

Median 14.97 2.99 1.43 11.62
75th Percentile 14.08 0.98 0.64 10.67
90th Percentile 13.53 0.28 0.09 9.20

Asset Class Composite 14.04 4.30 1.90 12.71

Composite Benchmark 14.74 2.02 1.15 11.91

Weighted
Ranking

33

* Current Quarter Target = 23.5% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 20.2% Russell 3000 Index, 20.2% MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index, 20.0% Russell 3000

+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag, 12.5% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag, 1.2% CPI + 400 bps, 1.2% CPI + 400 bps and 1.0% MSCI All Count Wld-Net.

 24
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Asset Class Rankings

Total Regular Account performance is gross for public market funds and net for private market funds.

Total Asset Class Performance
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

R
e

tu
rn

s

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

CAI Pub Fund: CAI Pub Fund:10+ Public Fund 10+ Pub Pln- Real
10+ Dom Eq Intl Eq B US FI Estate

(74)
(45)

(5)

(73)

(41)

(79)

(17)

(24)

10th Percentile 13.53 3.08 5.76 14.11
25th Percentile 12.44 2.80 4.90 12.47

Median 12.09 2.56 3.87 11.90
75th Percentile 11.35 0.99 3.51 11.33
90th Percentile 9.58 0.20 2.64 9.75

Asset Class Composite 11.46 3.29 4.45 13.53

Composite Benchmark 12.18 1.27 3.44 12.55

Weighted
Ranking

36

Total Asset Class Performance
Six and One-Quarter Years Ended December 31, 2015

R
e

tu
rn

s

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

CAI Pub Fund: CAI Pub Fund:10+ Public Fund 10+ Pub Pln- Real
10+ Dom Eq Intl Eq B US FI Estate

(66)(55)

(26)

(77)

(28)

(83)

(68)
(77)

10th Percentile 15.37 7.80 6.56 15.52
25th Percentile 13.82 5.48 5.89 12.80

Median 13.50 4.74 4.86 12.02
75th Percentile 12.81 3.82 4.18 10.47
90th Percentile 11.71 2.77 3.56 8.50

Asset Class Composite 13.30 5.43 5.75 10.98

Composite Benchmark 13.44 3.56 3.90 10.32

Weighted
Ranking

43

* Current Quarter Target = 23.5% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 20.2% Russell 3000 Index, 20.2% MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index, 20.0% Russell 3000

+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag, 12.5% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag, 1.2% CPI + 400 bps, 1.2% CPI + 400 bps and 1.0% MSCI All Count Wld-Net.

 25
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  10

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Total Public Equity 4.50% (1.75%) 8.74% 6.75% 5.02%
  MSCI ACWI IMI Net 4.91% (2.19%) 7.86% 6.11% 4.98%
  CAI Global Equity Broad Style 5.30% 0.06% 10.13% 7.83% 5.89%

Domestic Equity 5.25% (0.87%) 13.82% 11.21% 6.86%
  Russell 3000 Index 6.27% 0.48% 14.74% 12.18% 7.35%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq 5.72% (0.26%) 14.21% 11.80% 7.25%

International Equity 3.86% (2.59%) 3.92% 2.93% 4.51%
  MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) 3.52% (4.60%) 2.02% 1.27% 3.38%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq 3.32% (4.38%) 2.70% 2.12% 3.68%

Total Fixed Income (0.51%) 0.54% 1.69% 4.25% 5.54%
  Custom FI Benchmark (15) (0.80%) 0.16% 1.15% 3.41% 4.56%
  CAI Pub Fund: 10+ US FI (0.67%) (0.46%) 1.29% 3.62% 4.88%

Total Real Estate (19) 2.65% 9.81% 12.25% 12.96% 7.08%
Total Real Estate ex REITs (20) 1.83% 12.55% 13.43% 13.73% 7.10%
  NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag 3.09% 13.48% 11.91% 12.55% 8.02%
  Public Plan - Real Estate 4.07% 12.10% 12.30% 12.31% 6.10%

Total Private Equity (21) (0.25%) 7.79% 13.23% 13.02% 10.56%
  Russell 3000 + 300 BPS Qtr Lag (6.54%) 2.49% 15.87% 16.64% 10.50%

Total Alternative (0.15%) (4.32%) 1.94% - -
  CPI + 4% 0.38% 4.76% 5.03% - -

Opportunity Portfolio 0.62% 2.14% 8.52% 8.97% -
  Russell 3000 Index 6.27% 0.48% 14.74% 12.18% 7.35%
  CPI + 5% 0.45% 5.39% 5.72% 6.41% 6.84%

Total Regular Account 2.00% 2.11% 8.19% 8.15% 6.27%
Total Regular Account ex-Overlay 1.98% 2.02% 8.15% 8.05% 6.30%
  OPERF Policy Benchmark* (1) 1.00% 1.57% 8.32% 8.35% 6.50%

* Current Quarter Target = 41.5% MSCI All Count Wld-Net, 23.5% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 20.0% Russell 3000
+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag, 12.5% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag and 2.5% CPI + 400 bps.
All returns reported net-of-fee.

 26
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Public Equity (1.75%) 3.31% 26.68% 17.47% (8.23%)
  MSCI ACWI IMI Net (2.19%) 3.84% 23.55% 16.38% (7.89%)
  CAI Global Equity Broad Style 0.06% 4.14% 28.19% 18.06% (7.58%)

Domestic Equity (0.87%) 9.85% 35.41% 16.30% (0.79%)
  Russell 3000 Index 0.48% 12.56% 33.55% 16.42% 1.03%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq (0.26%) 11.82% 33.56% 15.68% 1.38%

International Equity (2.59%) (2.88%) 18.62% 18.92% (13.45%)
  MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) (4.60%) (3.89%) 15.82% 17.04% (14.31%)
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq (4.38%) (2.94%) 16.72% 18.11% (13.18%)

Total Fixed Income 0.54% 3.52% 1.04% 10.33% 6.12%
  Custom FI Benchmark (15) 0.16% 3.04% 0.28% 8.61% 5.19%
  CAI Pub Fund: 10+ US FI (0.46%) 6.31% (1.79%) 6.86% 7.56%

Total Real Estate (19) 9.81% 14.16% 12.83% 13.64% 14.44%
Total Real Estate ex REITs (20) 12.55% 12.01% 15.79% 10.76% 17.69%
  NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag 13.48% 11.26% 11.00% 11.00% 16.10%
  Public Plan - Real Estate 12.10% 13.46% 11.35% 11.94% 12.71%

Total Private Equity (21) 7.79% 15.90% 16.19% 14.41% 11.06%
  Russell 3000 + 300 BPS Qtr Lag 2.49% 21.24% 25.19% 34.02% 3.57%

Total Alternative (4.32%) 4.44% 6.02% (0.84%) -
  CPI + 4% 4.76% 4.78% 5.56% 5.80% -

Opportunity Portfolio 2.14% 8.81% 15.00% 18.44% 1.50%
  Russell 3000 Index 0.48% 12.56% 33.55% 16.42% 1.03%
  CPI + 5% 5.39% 5.33% 6.46% 6.68% 8.21%

Total Regular Account 2.11% 7.29% 15.59% 14.29% 2.22%
Total Regular Account ex-Overlay 2.02% 7.28% 15.57% 14.15% 1.98%
  OPERF Policy Benchmark* (1) 1.57% 8.24% 15.61% 16.57% 0.80%

* Current Quarter Target = 41.5% MSCI All Count Wld-Net, 23.5% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 20.0% Russell 3000
+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag, 12.5% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag and 2.5% CPI + 400 bps.
All returns reported net-of-fee.

 27
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Total Public Equity 15.69% 36.91% (42.57%) 8.85% 18.92%
  MSCI ACWI IMI Net 14.34% 36.42% (42.34%) 11.16% 20.91%
  CAI Global Equity Broad Style 13.01% 34.34% (42.10%) 12.83% 22.59%

Domestic Equity 19.03% 32.86% (39.89%) 5.34% 13.94%
  Russell 3000 Index 16.93% 28.34% (37.31%) 5.14% 15.72%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq 18.83% 32.00% (39.71%) 5.08% 15.97%

International Equity 14.12% 41.10% (43.25%) 16.03% 26.89%
  MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) 12.73% 43.60% (45.70%) 17.12% 27.16%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq 13.04% 41.49% (44.30%) 14.45% 26.68%

Total Fixed Income 10.78% 25.73% (9.86%) 4.84% 5.84%
  Custom FI Benchmark (15) 6.69% 7.97% 2.94% 6.34% 4.79%
  CAI Pub Fund: 10+ US FI 9.02% 12.92% (2.05%) 6.87% 4.58%

Total Real Estate (19) (1.88%) (9.40%) (13.59%) 10.20% 27.30%
Total Real Estate ex REITs (20) (9.41%) (17.30%) (5.61%) 17.41% 25.75%
  NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag 5.84% (22.11%) 5.27% 17.30% 17.62%
  Public Plan - Real Estate 12.08% (20.04%) (15.23%) 9.55% 21.54%

Total Private Equity (21) 16.44% (4.36%) (8.75%) 25.76% 15.73%
  Russell 3000 + 300 BPS Qtr Lag 14.27% (0.91%) (18.09%) 19.64% 13.31%

Opportunity Portfolio 12.37% 37.47% (24.85%) 3.01% -
  Russell 3000 Index 16.93% 28.34% (37.31%) 5.14% 15.72%
  CPI + 5% 6.68% 8.37% 4.56% 9.35% 7.45%

Total Regular Account 12.62% 19.41% (26.96%) 9.66% 15.30%
Total Regular Account ex-Overlay 12.56% 18.19% (25.83%) 9.71% 15.52%
  OPERF Policy Benchmark* (1) 11.32% 15.52% (23.04%) 10.52% 14.89%

* Current Quarter Target = 46.0% MSCI All Count Wld-Net, 27.0% OPERF Total Custom FI Benchmark, 16.0% Russell 3000
+ 300 BPS Qtr Lag and 11.0% NCREIF Property Index Qtr Lag.
All returns reported net-of-fee.

 28
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



P
u

b
lic

 E
q

u
ity

Public Equity



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  10

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Total Public Equity 4.50% (1.75%) 8.74% 6.75% 5.02%
  MSCI ACWI IMI Net 4.91% (2.19%) 7.86% 6.11% 4.98%
  CAI Global Equity Broad Style 5.30% 0.06% 10.13% 7.83% 5.89%

Domestic Equity 5.25% (0.87%) 13.82% 11.21% 6.86%
  Russell 3000 Index 6.27% 0.48% 14.74% 12.18% 7.35%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq 5.72% (0.26%) 14.21% 11.80% 7.25%

International Equity 3.86% (2.59%) 3.92% 2.93% 4.51%
  MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) 3.52% (4.60%) 2.02% 1.27% 3.38%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq 3.32% (4.38%) 2.70% 2.12% 3.68%

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 30
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Public Equity (1.75%) 3.31% 26.68% 17.47% (8.23%)
  MSCI ACWI IMI Net (2.19%) 3.84% 23.55% 16.38% (7.89%)
  CAI Global Equity Broad Style 0.06% 4.14% 28.19% 18.06% (7.58%)

Domestic Equity (0.87%) 9.85% 35.41% 16.30% (0.79%)
  Russell 3000 Index 0.48% 12.56% 33.55% 16.42% 1.03%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq (0.26%) 11.82% 33.56% 15.68% 1.38%

International Equity (2.59%) (2.88%) 18.62% 18.92% (13.45%)
  MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) (4.60%) (3.89%) 15.82% 17.04% (14.31%)
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq (4.38%) (2.94%) 16.72% 18.11% (13.18%)

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 31
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Total Public Equity 15.69% 36.91% (42.57%) 8.85% 18.92%
  MSCI ACWI IMI Net 14.34% 36.42% (42.34%) 11.16% 20.91%
  CAI Global Equity Broad Style 13.01% 34.34% (42.10%) 12.83% 22.59%

Domestic Equity 19.03% 32.86% (39.89%) 5.34% 13.94%
  Russell 3000 Index 16.93% 28.34% (37.31%) 5.14% 15.72%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq 18.83% 32.00% (39.71%) 5.08% 15.97%

International Equity 14.12% 41.10% (43.25%) 16.03% 26.89%
  MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) 12.73% 43.60% (45.70%) 17.12% 27.16%
  CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq 13.04% 41.49% (44.30%) 14.45% 26.68%

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 32
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  10

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Domestic Equity 5.25% (0.87%) 13.82% 11.21% 6.86%
Russell 3000 Index 6.27% 0.48% 14.74% 12.18% 7.35%
CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq 5.72% (0.26%) 14.21% 11.80% 7.25%

Market Oriented 5.16% (1.70%) 13.25% 10.84% -
Russell 3000 Index 6.27% 0.48% 14.74% 12.18% 7.35%
CAI All Cap: Broad DB 5.16% (0.76%) 14.13% 10.59% 7.02%

Large Cap Growth 7.33% 6.52% 16.03% 12.43% -
Russell 1000 Growth Index 7.32% 5.67% 16.83% 13.53% 8.53%
CAI Lrg Cap Growth Style 7.61% 6.61% 17.41% 13.43% 8.32%

Large Cap Value 5.38% (1.71%) 13.16% 11.43% -
Russell 1000 Value Index 5.64% (3.83%) 13.08% 11.27% 6.16%
CAI Large Cap Value Style 5.38% (3.03%) 13.63% 11.32% 6.11%

Small Cap Growth (0.49%) (4.95%) 13.12% 8.38% -
Russell 2000 Growth Index 4.32% (1.38%) 14.28% 10.67% 7.95%
CAI Sm Cap Growth Style 2.90% (1.37%) 14.04% 10.76% 8.03%

Small Cap Value 3.92% (5.20%) 10.15% 8.03% -
Russell 2000 Value Index 2.88% (7.47%) 9.06% 7.67% 5.57%
CAI Small Cap Value Style 2.64% (4.31%) 12.31% 10.11% 7.20%

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 33
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Domestic Equity (0.87%) 9.85% 35.41% 16.30% (0.79%)
Russell 3000 Index 0.48% 12.56% 33.55% 16.42% 1.03%
CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq (0.26%) 11.82% 33.56% 15.68% 1.38%

Market Oriented (1.70%) 11.07% 33.05% 16.57% (1.20%)
Russell 3000 Index 0.48% 12.56% 33.55% 16.42% 1.03%
CAI All Cap: Broad (0.76%) 9.65% 36.62% 13.56% (2.00%)

Large Cap Growth 6.52% 9.04% 34.48% 15.37% (0.29%)
Russell 1000 Growth Index 5.67% 13.05% 33.48% 15.26% 2.64%
CAI Lrg Cap Growth Style 6.61% 11.95% 35.62% 16.10% (0.05%)

Large Cap Value (1.71%) 8.37% 36.03% 17.37% 1.03%
Russell 1000 Value Index (3.83%) 13.45% 32.53% 17.51% 0.39%
CAI Large Cap Value Style (3.03%) 12.41% 34.60% 16.53% (0.00%)

Small Cap Growth (4.95%) (3.58%) 57.92% 11.33% (7.19%)
Russell 2000 Growth Index (1.38%) 5.60% 43.30% 14.59% (2.91%)
CAI Sm Cap Growth Style (1.37%) 2.37% 46.90% 14.22% (1.59%)

Small Cap Value (5.20%) 3.04% 36.83% 15.52% (4.69%)
Russell 2000 Value Index (7.47%) 4.22% 34.52% 18.05% (5.50%)
CAI Small Cap Value Style (4.31%) 6.41% 39.12% 18.16% (3.32%)

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 34
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Domestic Equity 19.03% 32.86% (39.89%) 5.34% 13.94%
Russell 3000 Index 16.93% 28.34% (37.31%) 5.14% 15.72%
CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq 18.83% 32.00% (39.71%) 5.08% 15.97%

Market Oriented 21.09% - - - -
Russell 3000 Index 16.93% 28.34% (37.31%) 5.14% 15.72%
CAI All Cap: Broad 17.72% 32.33% (38.15%) 8.72% 13.70%

Large Cap Growth 17.87% - - - -
Russell 1000 Growth Index 16.71% 37.21% (38.44%) 11.81% 9.07%
CAI Lrg Cap Growth Style 16.94% 35.86% (40.01%) 15.68% 7.40%

Large Cap Value 14.67% - - - -
Russell 1000 Value Index 15.51% 19.69% (36.85%) (0.17%) 22.25%
CAI Large Cap Value Style 14.48% 24.19% (37.42%) 0.67% 18.20%

Small Cap Growth 35.71% - - - -
Russell 2000 Growth Index 29.09% 34.47% (38.54%) 7.05% 13.35%
CAI Sm Cap Growth Style 29.31% 37.53% (43.18%) 14.04% 12.74%

Small Cap Value 22.83% - - - -
Russell 2000 Value Index 24.50% 20.58% (28.92%) (9.78%) 23.48%
CAI Small Cap Value Style 27.98% 34.34% (33.69%) (7.72%) 17.71%

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 35
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  10

Quarter Year Years Years Years

International Equity 3.86% (2.59%) 3.92% 2.93% 4.51%
MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) 3.52% (4.60%) 2.02% 1.27% 3.38%
CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq 3.32% (4.38%) 2.70% 2.12% 3.68%

International Market Oriented (Core) 4.51% (1.16%) 5.29% 4.11% -
MSCI World Ex-US IMI (Net) 4.17% (1.95%) 4.43% 3.00% 3.15%
CAI Core Int’l Equity 4.76% 1.08% 6.45% 4.91% 4.14%

International Value 2.80% (4.48%) 4.56% 3.29% -
MSCI ACWI x US (Net) 3.24% (5.66%) 1.50% 1.06% 2.92%
CAI Core Value Int’l Equity Style 3.99% (0.85%) 4.93% 3.07% 3.01%

International Growth 6.16% 1.91% 5.01% 3.02% -
MSCI World ex US 3.91% (3.04%) 3.93% 2.79% 2.92%
CAI Core Growth Int’l Equity Style 5.29% 3.09% 6.88% 5.13% 4.96%

International Small Cap 5.13% 6.06% 8.59% 4.67% -
ACWI Small Cap ex US 5.28% 2.60% 5.64% 2.63% 4.95%
CAI Int’l Small Cap Style 6.40% 9.26% 10.68% 7.54% 6.64%

Emerging Markets (0.04%) (14.55%) (4.77%) (2.39%) -
EM IMI Index 1.03% (13.86%) (6.12%) (4.59%) 3.94%
CAI Emerging Markets Equity DB 1.54% (11.93%) (3.05%) (2.12%) 5.58%

Global Equity 3.05% (3.25%) 11.93% 6.19% -
MSCI ACWI Value Net Index (14) 4.06% (6.26%) 5.69% 4.79% 3.88%
CAI Global Eq Broad Style 5.30% 0.06% 10.13% 7.83% 5.89%

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 36
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

International Equity (2.59%) (2.88%) 18.62% 18.92% (13.45%)
MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) (4.60%) (3.89%) 15.82% 17.04% (14.31%)
CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq (4.38%) (2.94%) 16.72% 18.11% (13.18%)

International Market Oriented (Core) (1.16%) (2.61%) 21.27% 19.29% (12.14%)
MSCI World Ex-US IMI (Net) (1.95%) (4.45%) 21.57% 16.55% (12.66%)
CAI Core Int’l Equity 1.08% (4.19%) 24.56% 18.99% (11.48%)

International Value (4.48%) (4.26%) 24.98% 15.11% (10.66%)
MSCI ACWI x US (Net) (5.66%) (3.87%) 15.29% 16.83% (13.71%)
CAI Core Value Int’l Equity Style (0.85%) (6.05%) 24.03% 15.92% (13.14%)

International Growth 1.91% (4.32%) 18.74% 18.27% (15.27%)
MSCI World ex US (3.04%) (4.32%) 21.02% 16.41% (12.21%)
CAI Core Growth Int’l Equity Style 3.09% (4.49%) 24.00% 20.70% (12.86%)

International Small Cap 6.06% (6.46%) 29.08% 18.66% (17.31%)
ACWI Small Cap ex US 2.60% (4.03%) 19.73% 18.52% (18.50%)
CAI Int’l Small Cap Style 9.26% (4.76%) 30.28% 22.99% (13.74%)

Emerging Markets (14.55%) 1.19% (0.12%) 21.71% (15.72%)
EM IMI Index (13.86%) (1.79%) (2.20%) 18.69% (19.49%)
CAI Emerging Markets Equity DB (11.93%) 0.78% 2.67% 20.35% (18.08%)

Global Equity (3.25%) 6.90% 35.56% 12.57% (14.45%)
MSCI ACWI Value Net Index (14) (6.26%) 2.86% 22.43% 15.55% (7.35%)
CAI Global Eq Broad Style 0.06% 4.14% 28.19% 18.06% (7.58%)

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 37
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

International Equity 14.12% 41.10% (43.25%) 16.03% 26.89%
MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) 12.73% 43.60% (45.70%) 17.12% 27.16%
CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq 13.04% 41.49% (44.30%) 14.45% 26.68%

Global Equity 10.46% 36.25% (48.65%) - -
MSCI ACWI Value Net Index (14) 10.13% 34.63% (42.20%) 11.66% 20.95%
CAI Global Eq Broad Style 13.01% 34.34% (42.10%) 12.83% 22.59%

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 38
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Total Public Equity
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Total Public Equity’s portfolio posted a 4.56% return for the quarter placing it in the 71 percentile of the CAI Global
Equity Broad Style group for the quarter and in the 71 percentile for the last year.

Total Public Equity’s portfolio underperformed the MSCI ACWI IMI Net by 0.34% for the quarter and outperformed the
MSCI ACWI IMI Net for the year by 0.69%.

Performance vs CAI Global Equity Broad Style (Gross)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Last Quarter Last Last 2 Years Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
Year

(71)(62)

(71)
(76)

(70)(72)

(69)

(79)
(70)

(82)

(53)
(74)

(75)(79)

10th Percentile 7.67 4.90 5.20 13.63 10.79 15.56 8.54
25th Percentile 6.09 2.42 3.75 11.87 9.49 13.67 7.05

Median 5.34 0.11 2.35 10.20 8.13 12.42 6.09
75th Percentile 4.24 (1.96) 0.58 8.14 6.63 11.13 5.35
90th Percentile 3.44 (5.33) (2.46) 6.26 5.25 10.06 3.90

Total
Public Equity 4.56 (1.49) 1.03 9.05 7.07 12.23 5.34

MSCI ACWI
IMI Net 4.91 (2.19) 0.78 7.86 6.11 11.17 4.98

Relative Return vs MSCI ACWI IMI Net

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.8%)

(0.6%)

(0.4%)

(0.2%)

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Public Equity

CAI Global Equity Broad Style (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22
0%

5%

10%

15%

Total Public Equity

MSCI ACWI IMI Net

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 39
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Total Public Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Global Equity Broad Style (Gross)

(30%)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(71)(76)
(57)(55)

(66)(84)
(50)(66)

(58)(57)

(22)(32)

(30)(34)

10th Percentile 4.90 7.14 34.68 23.36 (1.80) 18.13 46.61
25th Percentile 2.42 5.85 31.76 20.30 (4.62) 14.97 39.41

Median 0.11 4.53 28.49 17.85 (6.99) 12.67 32.73
75th Percentile (1.96) 2.31 25.24 15.50 (9.84) 10.12 28.14
90th Percentile (5.33) 0.52 20.50 12.98 (13.55) 8.13 23.09

Total Public Equity (1.49) 3.61 27.05 17.84 (7.93) 16.07 37.37

MSCI ACWI IMI Net (2.19) 3.84 23.55 16.38 (7.89) 14.34 36.42

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI ACWI IMI Net

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Public Equity CAI Global Eq Broad Style

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI ACWI IMI Net
Rankings Against CAI Global Equity Broad Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

(4)

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(70)

(69)

10th Percentile 4.56 11.32
25th Percentile 3.26 9.49

Median 2.13 8.17
75th Percentile 0.56 6.43
90th Percentile (0.88) 5.06

Total
Public Equity 0.74 6.75

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(40)

(68)

(27)

10th Percentile 1.82 0.80 1.49
25th Percentile 1.31 0.68 1.01

Median 0.71 0.58 0.63
75th Percentile 0.13 0.45 0.13
90th Percentile (0.22) 0.36 (0.23)

Total Public Equity 0.88 0.49 0.95

 40
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Total Public Equity
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the return versus risk relationship. The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the benchmark
over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Global Equity Broad Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

0 2 4 6 8 10
(6 )

(4 )

(2 )

0

2

4

6

8

10

Total Public Equity

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22
0

5

10

15

Total Public Equity

MSCI ACWI IMI Net

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs MSCI ACWI IMI Net

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Public Equity

CAI Global Eq Broad Style

Risk Statistics Rankings vs MSCI ACWI IMI Net
Rankings Against CAI Global Equity Broad Style (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(50)

(96) (100) (100)

10th Percentile 16.70 3.69 5.14 6.06
25th Percentile 15.41 2.60 4.02 4.66

Median 14.24 1.88 3.13 3.50
75th Percentile 13.08 1.12 2.36 2.53
90th Percentile 11.16 0.62 1.84 1.88

Total
Public Equity 14.24 0.39 0.83 0.95

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

1.10

1.20

1.30

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(42)
(1)

(50)

10th Percentile 1.17 0.98 1.22
25th Percentile 1.10 0.97 1.12

Median 1.02 0.95 1.04
75th Percentile 0.93 0.92 0.95
90th Percentile 0.76 0.87 0.81

Total Public Equity 1.04 1.00 1.04

 41
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Active Share Structure Analysis
For One Quarter Ended December 31, 2015

This analysis compares multiple portfolios and composites in an active share context, illustrating the varying degrees of
active risk taken by individual portfolios, and how they combine into active risk profiles for composites and the equity
structure. Two sources of active share (active risk) are shown: 1) Total Holdings-Based Active Share based on individual
position comparisons to the index (and the subcomponent from holding non-index securities), and 2) Sector Exposure Active
Share that quantifies the more macro-level sector differences from the index.

Active Share Analysis
Ended December 31, 2015

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20% 22%
0%

50%

100%

Public Equity

Domestic Equity

Domestic Market Oriented

Large Cap Growth

Large Cap Value

Small Cap Growth

Small Cap Value

Int’l Market Oriented

International Value

International Growth

International Small Cap

Global Equity

International Equity

Sector Exposure Active Share

H
o

ld
in

g
s
-B

a
s
e

d
 T

o
ta

l 
A

c
ti
v
e

 S
h

a
re

Weight Total Non-Idx Sector Number Security
% Index Act Share Act Share Act Share Securities Diverse

Public Equity 100.00% AC WORLD IMI 32.96% 2.41% 3.92% 9721 342.11

Domestic Equity 49.70% Russell 3000 24.52% 0.72% 5.03% 2482 134.91
Domestic Market Oriented 35.35% Russell 3000 23.99% 0.62% 7.25% 1406 121.43
Large Cap Growth 3.45% Russell 1000 Growth 0.91% 0.40% 0.53% 643 39.63
Large Cap Value 7.18% Russell 1000 Value 48.09% 8.35% 0.72% 718 41.11
Small Cap Growth 0.50% Russell 2000 Growth 94.15% 18.19% 14.64% 197 61.82
Small Cap Value 2.84% Russell 2000 Value 54.83% 9.61% 13.45% 1096 171.33

International Equity 47.20% MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI 41.54% 3.80% 7.26% 7256 223.71
Int’l Market Oriented 24.04% WORLD ex USA IMI 39.90% 6.53% 7.74% 1324 139.18
International Value 6.35% MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI VaI 79.48% 14.87% 18.67% 600 50.07
International Growth 5.44% MSCI World ex US Growth 72.01% 16.68% 10.98% 109 33.57
International Small Cap 5.16% ACWI Sm Cap ex US 70.98% 15.42% 10.33% 3041 184.42

Global Equity 3.10% MSCI All Count Wld-Net 92.86% 5.89% 14.49% 66 24.47

 42
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Public Equity
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against CAI Global Equity Broad Core Style
as of December 31, 2015

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(92)

(75)

(56)

(47)

(69)

(57)

(46)
(41)

(50)
(43)

(55)
(49)

10th Percentile 73.02 20.33 3.50 13.88 3.22 0.72
25th Percentile 51.66 17.45 2.80 11.40 2.87 0.36

Median 38.94 15.23 2.11 9.82 2.35 (0.02)
75th Percentile 30.86 13.45 1.73 8.09 2.01 (0.35)
90th Percentile 24.45 12.03 1.43 6.93 1.41 (0.53)

Public Equity 20.48 14.80 1.85 10.20 2.35 (0.08)

MSCI ACWI IMI Net 30.96 15.50 1.97 10.46 2.48 (0.01)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. The regional allocation chart compares the manager’s geographical region weights with those
of the benchmark as well as the median region weights of the peer group.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Financials
19.9%

21.4%
20.6%

Information Technology
14.8%
14.8%
15.1%

Consumer Discretionary
13.9%

13.2%
14.7%

Industrials
12.7%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

11.6%
10.8%

Health Care
11.3%

12.2%
14.7%

Consumer Staples
9.5%
9.5%

10.2%

Energy
6.8%

5.7%
5.3%

Materials
4.6%
4.9%

4.2%

Telecommunications
3.3%
3.6%

3.1%

Utilities
2.4%

3.1%
1.3%

Miscellaneous
1.0%

Pooled Vehicles
0.0%

Public Equity MSCI ACWI IMI Net CAI Global Eq Broad Core

Sector Diversification
Manager 3.11 sectors

Index 3.05 sectors

Regional Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

North America

63.0%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

55.8%

55.1%

Dev Europe/Mid East

18.4%

22.6%

30.1%

Emerging Markets

8.8%

9.8%

2.0%

Japan

7.2%

8.1%

10.6%

Pacific Basin

2.6%

3.7%

2.1%

Public Equity MSCI ACWI IMI Net CAI Global Eq Broad Core

Country Diversification
Manager 0.81 countries

Index 0.96 countries

 43
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Public Equity
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market.
The middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Global Eq Broad Core
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Public Equity

AC WORLD IMI

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

19.9% (243) 18.7% (273) 21.7% (323) 60.3% (839)

6.7% (386) 8.5% (544) 8.8% (549) 24.0% (1479)

3.5% (776) 4.7% (1079) 3.2% (592) 11.4% (2447)

1.3% (1290) 2.2% (2696) 0.9% (513) 4.4% (4499)

31.4% (2695) 34.0% (4592) 34.6% (1977) 100.0% (9264)

21.1% (248) 23.0% (266) 25.6% (318) 69.8% (832)

5.2% (445) 6.9% (582) 7.2% (645) 19.3% (1672)

2.9% (1044) 3.5% (1358) 2.8% (1071) 9.2% (3473)

0.6% (947) 0.7% (1066) 0.4% (650) 1.8% (2663)

29.8% (2684) 34.1% (3272) 36.1% (2684) 100.0% (8640)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

31.4%

(2695)

29.8%

(2684) 34.0%

(4592)

34.1%

(3272)

34.6%

(1977)
36.1%

(2684)

Bar #1=Public Equity (Combined Z: -0.08 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.07)

Bar #2=AC WORLD IMI (Combined Z: -0.01 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.01)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

0.1 0.0

3.3 3.6

13.9 13.3

9.6 9.5

6.8
5.7

20.0
21.3

11.3 12.2 13.0
11.6

0.0 0.0
2.4 3.1

4.6 4.9

14.9 14.9

Bar #1=Public Equity

Bar #2=AC WORLD IMI

Value

Core

Growth

 44
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Public Equity
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Global Eq Broad Core
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Public Equity

AC WORLD IMI

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

5.6% (440) 6.3% (493) 10.0% (370) 21.9% (1303)

19.1% (850) 19.7% (1157) 16.9% (663) 55.7% (2670)

3.5% (684) 4.2% (680) 4.7% (371) 12.3% (1735)

3.2% (721) 3.9% (2262) 3.1% (573) 10.1% (3556)

31.4% (2695) 34.0% (4592) 34.6% (1977) 100.0% (9264)

6.0% (457) 6.8% (487) 9.1% (480) 21.9% (1424)

16.8% (792) 19.4% (1198) 19.4% (894) 55.6% (2884)

3.6% (528) 4.3% (671) 4.5% (505) 12.5% (1704)

3.4% (907) 3.5% (916) 3.1% (805) 10.0% (2628)

29.8% (2684) 34.1% (3272) 36.1% (2684) 100.0% (8640)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/

FM

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

31.4%

(2695)

29.8%

(2684) 34.0%

(4592)

34.1%

(3272)

34.6%

(1977)
36.1%

(2684)

Bar #1=Public Equity (Combined Z: -0.08 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.07)

Bar #2=AC WORLD IMI (Combined Z: -0.01 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.01)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/FM

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

0.1 0.0

3.3 3.6

13.9 13.3

9.6 9.5

6.8
5.7

20.0
21.3

11.3 12.2 13.0
11.6

0.0 0.0
2.4 3.1

4.6 4.9

14.9 14.9

Bar #1=Public Equity

Bar #2=AC WORLD IMI

Value

Core

Growth

 45
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Domestic Equity
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Domestic Equity’s portfolio posted a 5.28% return for the quarter placing it in the 55 percentile of the CAI Pub Fund:10+
Dom Eq group for the quarter and in the 82 percentile for the last year.

Domestic Equity’s portfolio underperformed the Russell 3000 Index by 0.99% for the quarter and underperformed the
Russell 3000 Index for the year by 1.22%.

Performance vs CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq (Gross)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Last Quarter Last Last 2 Years Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
Year

(55)
(8)

(82)
(30)

(83)

(16)

(76)
(61)

(74)
(45)

(35)(60)

(70)(48)

10th Percentile 6.22 1.02 7.32 15.63 13.53 18.29 7.88
25th Percentile 5.95 0.66 5.90 15.26 12.44 16.17 7.58

Median 5.51 (0.06) 5.53 14.97 12.09 15.33 7.32
75th Percentile 4.75 (0.41) 5.24 14.08 11.35 14.62 6.97
90th Percentile 3.33 (7.62) 1.80 13.53 9.58 13.65 5.38

Domestic
Equity 5.28 (0.74) 4.53 14.04 11.46 15.47 7.12

Russell
3000 Index 6.27 0.48 6.35 14.74 12.18 15.04 7.35

Relative Return vs Russell 3000 Index

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1.5%)

(1.0%)

(0.5%)

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Domestic Equity

CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

12.0 12.5 13.0 13.5 14.0 14.5 15.0
9.0%

9.5%

10.0%

10.5%

11.0%

11.5%

12.0%

12.5%

13.0%

13.5%

14.0%

Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 46
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Domestic Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq (Gross)

(20%)

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(82)(30)

(95)(16)

(20)(60)

(50)(54)

(79)(44)

(31)(70)

(30)
(81)

10th Percentile 1.02 14.03 36.71 18.43 7.32 24.67 43.59
25th Percentile 0.66 12.49 35.56 16.82 3.29 20.28 33.61

Median (0.06) 11.76 34.21 16.63 0.73 18.05 30.79
75th Percentile (0.41) 10.81 32.80 15.19 (0.34) 16.30 28.84
90th Percentile (7.62) 10.34 25.94 9.60 (3.14) 15.60 27.24

Domestic Equity (0.74) 10.07 35.74 16.60 (0.52) 19.40 33.26

Russell 3000 Index 0.48 12.56 33.55 16.42 1.03 16.93 28.34

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Russell 3000 Index

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(4%)

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Domestic Equity CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Russell 3000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

(5)

0

5

10

15

20

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(71)

(71)

10th Percentile 1.88 14.36
25th Percentile (0.06) 12.04

Median (0.43) 11.62
75th Percentile (1.26) 10.70
90th Percentile (1.99) 9.86

Domestic Equity (1.17) 10.85

(1.5)

(1.0)

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(89)

(71)

(78)

10th Percentile 1.21 1.06 0.56
25th Percentile (0.07) 0.89 0.21

Median (0.25) 0.86 (0.13)
75th Percentile (0.53) 0.78 (0.45)
90th Percentile (1.06) 0.70 (0.63)

Domestic Equity (1.00) 0.80 (0.48)

 47
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Domestic Equity
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the return versus risk relationship. The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the benchmark
over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

0 1 2 3 4 5
(3.0 )

(2.5 )

(2.0 )

(1.5 )

(1.0 )

(0.5 )

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

Domestic Equity

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

12.0 12.5 13.0 13.5 14.0 14.5 15.0
9.0

9.5

10.0

10.5

11.0

11.5

12.0

12.5

13.0

13.5

14.0

Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs Russell 3000 Index

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Domestic Equity

CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Russell 3000 Index
Rankings Against CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(27)

(43) (58) (59)

10th Percentile 14.60 4.47 4.49 4.52
25th Percentile 14.23 2.07 2.45 2.61

Median 13.91 0.90 1.26 1.50
75th Percentile 12.84 0.64 0.78 0.92
90th Percentile 12.29 0.35 0.56 0.58

Domestic
Equity 14.18 1.07 1.18 1.33

0.85

0.90

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(18)

(35)

(27)

10th Percentile 1.08 1.00 1.08
25th Percentile 1.04 1.00 1.06

Median 1.02 0.99 1.03
75th Percentile 0.91 0.97 0.95
90th Percentile 0.91 0.89 0.91

Domestic Equity 1.05 0.99 1.05

 48
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Domestic Equity
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against Pub Pln- Domestic Equity
as of December 31, 2015

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(63)

(19)

(92)

(29)

(92)

(48)

(94)

(72)

(21)(20)

(95)

(68)

10th Percentile 78.88 17.53 2.79 13.23 2.19 0.27
25th Percentile 44.43 17.06 2.68 12.41 2.00 0.16

Median 31.68 16.79 2.55 11.53 1.83 0.07
75th Percentile 25.69 16.28 2.39 10.42 1.73 (0.04)
90th Percentile 16.41 15.90 2.25 10.21 1.55 (0.10)

Domestic Equity 28.51 15.74 2.22 9.98 2.05 (0.17)

Russell 3000 Index 51.97 17.01 2.56 10.88 2.09 (0.01)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. Diversification by number and concentration of holdings are also compared to the benchmark
and peer group. Issue Diversification represents by count, and Diversification Ratio by percent, the number of holdings that
account for half of the portfolio’s market value.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Information Technology
18.4%

19.8%
19.3%

Financials
18.0%
18.2%

20.2%

Consumer Discretionary
13.7%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

13.5%
13.2%

Industrials
13.0%

10.7%
11.2%

Health Care
12.5%

14.8%
13.5%

Consumer Staples
8.0%

8.8%
7.3%

Energy
7.7%

6.0%
5.1%

Materials
3.4%

3.1%
3.2%

Telecommunications
2.7%

2.2%
1.4%

Utilities
2.6%
3.0%

2.0%

Miscellaneous
0.0%

Pooled Vehicles
0.0%

3.5%

Domestic Equity Russell 3000 Index Pub Pln- Dom Equity

Sector Diversification
Manager 3.00 sectors

Index 2.82 sectors

Diversification
December 31, 2015

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Number of Issue
Securities Diversification

(16)

(6)

10th Percentile 2964 122
25th Percentile 1852 111

Median 974 91
75th Percentile 641 56
90th Percentile 503 51

Domestic Equity 2482 135

Russell 3000 Index 2968 86

Diversification Ratio
Manager 5%

Index 3%

Style Median 9%

 49
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
Domestic Equity
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various market capitalization and style segments of the domestic equity market. The market is
segmented quarterly by capitalization and style. The capitalization segments are dictated by capitalization decile breakpoints.
The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight fundamental factors used in the MSCI
stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market capitalization and style score of the
portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays the current portfolio and index
weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market. The middle chart illustrates the
total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total growth, value, and "combined
Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Pub Fund:10+ Dom Eq
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Russell 3000 Index

Domestic Equity Domestic Equity

Russell 3000 Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

24.9% (94) 16.6% (98) 18.7% (105) 60.2% (297)

7.8% (180) 8.3% (218) 7.7% (204) 23.9% (602)

3.8% (278) 5.0% (381) 2.8% (191) 11.7% (850)

1.4% (272) 2.0% (333) 0.8% (111) 4.2% (716)

38.0% (824) 31.9% (1030) 30.1% (611) 100.0% (2465)

26.9% (94) 20.6% (95) 26.2% (104) 73.8% (293)

5.6% (178) 6.1% (209) 6.0% (201) 17.8% (588)

2.2% (326) 3.0% (489) 2.2% (361) 7.5% (1176)

0.3% (255) 0.5% (442) 0.2% (185) 1.0% (882)

35.1% (853) 30.2% (1235) 34.7% (851) 100.0% (2939)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

38.0%

(824)

35.1%

(853)

31.9%

(1030)

30.2%

(1235)

30.1%

(611) 34.7%

(851)

Bar #1=Domestic Equity (Combined Z: -0.17 Growth Z: -0.04 Value Z: 0.13)

Bar #2=Russell 3000 Index (Combined Z: -0.01 Growth Z: 0.00 Value Z: 0.01)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

2.7 2.2

13.7 13.5

8.0 8.8
7.7

6.0

18.0 18.2

12.6
14.8

13.0

10.7

2.6 3.0 3.4 3.1

18.4
19.8

Bar #1=Domestic Equity

Bar #2=Russell 3000 Index

Value

Core

Growth

 50
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



International Equity
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Quarterly Summary and Highlights
International Equity’s portfolio posted a 3.96% return for the quarter placing it in the 47 percentile of the CAI Pub
Fund:10+ Intl Eq group for the quarter and in the 20 percentile for the last year.

International Equity’s portfolio outperformed the MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) by 0.44% for the quarter and
outperformed the MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5) for the year by 2.38%.

Performance vs CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq (Gross)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Last Quarter Last Last 2 Years Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
Year

(47)(55)

(20)

(59)

(25)

(71)

(1)

(70)
(5)

(73)

(32)

(74)

(8)

(65)

10th Percentile 5.30 (0.90) (1.57) 3.87 3.08 12.59 4.82
25th Percentile 4.77 (2.35) (2.38) 3.78 2.80 10.44 4.60

Median 3.82 (3.24) (3.09) 2.99 2.56 8.81 3.61
75th Percentile 3.00 (5.90) (4.63) 0.98 0.99 7.99 2.82
90th Percentile 2.79 (7.69) (5.27) 0.28 0.20 7.06 2.70

International
Equity 3.96 (2.22) (2.37) 4.30 3.29 9.66 4.87

MSCI ACWI ex-US
IMI Index (5) 3.52 (4.60) (4.24) 2.02 1.27 8.09 3.38

Relative Returns vs
MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5)

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(0.6%)

(0.4%)

(0.2%)

0.0%

0.2%

0.4%

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

International Equity

CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

14.2 14.4 14.6 14.8 15.0 15.2 15.4 15.6
0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5)

International Equity

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 51
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



International Equity
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq (Gross)

(30%)
(20%)
(10%)

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(20)(59) (24)(86)

(28)(66) (21)(79)

(53)(86)

(27)(52)

(56)(26)

10th Percentile (0.90) (1.20) 19.73 29.08 (10.25) 16.50 56.00
25th Percentile (2.35) (2.53) 19.69 19.12 (12.37) 14.68 43.98

Median (3.24) (3.02) 17.61 18.37 (13.09) 12.89 41.87
75th Percentile (5.90) (3.52) 15.48 17.49 (14.00) 11.82 36.69
90th Percentile (7.69) (4.11) 12.42 6.92 (16.10) 9.61 34.32

International Equity (2.22) (2.52) 19.02 19.34 (13.14) 14.49 41.62

MSCI ACWI ex-US
IMI Index (5) (4.60) (3.89) 15.82 17.04 (14.31) 12.73 43.60

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5)

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

International Equity CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5)
Rankings Against CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

3

4

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(12)

(15)

10th Percentile 2.05 3.46
25th Percentile 1.69 2.85

Median 1.27 2.55
75th Percentile (0.23) 0.97
90th Percentile (1.05) 0.13

International
Equity 2.01 3.23

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

3

4

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(15)

(15)

(12)

10th Percentile 2.77 0.23 2.49
25th Percentile 1.59 0.19 1.45

Median 1.45 0.17 1.27
75th Percentile (0.17) 0.06 (0.19)
90th Percentile (1.04) 0.01 (1.07)

International Equity 2.26 0.21 2.31

 52
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



International Equity
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the return versus risk relationship. The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the benchmark
over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

0.6 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6
(1.5 )

(1.0 )

(0.5 )

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

International Equity

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

14.2 14.4 14.6 14.8 15.0 15.2 15.4 15.6
0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

International Equity

MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5)

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

0.6%

0.8%

1.0%

1.2%

1.4%

1.6%

1.8%

2.0%

2.2%

2.4%

2.6%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

International Equity

CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq

Risk Statistics Rankings vs MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (5)
Rankings Against CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(34)

(85)
(62) (76)

10th Percentile 15.51 1.17 1.45 1.45
25th Percentile 15.11 0.99 1.34 1.40

Median 14.90 0.47 1.00 1.02
75th Percentile 14.51 0.36 0.80 0.87
90th Percentile 14.42 0.02 0.66 0.74

International
Equity 15.07 0.15 0.89 0.87

0.94

0.95

0.96

0.97

0.98

0.99

1.00

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(34) (37) (34)

10th Percentile 1.03 1.00 1.03
25th Percentile 1.00 1.00 1.00

Median 0.98 1.00 0.99
75th Percentile 0.96 0.99 0.96
90th Percentile 0.95 0.99 0.95

International Equity 1.00 1.00 1.00

 53
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



International Equity
Equity Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Portfolio Characteristics Percentile Rankings
Rankings Against Pub Pln- International Equity
as of December 31, 2015

P
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 R
a

n
k
in

g

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Weighted Median Price/Fore- Price/Book Forecasted Dividend MSCI
Market Cap casted Earnings Earnings Growth Yield Combined Z-Score

(81)

(65) (67)(64) (67)(66)

(40)

(53)

(45)

(26)

(62)

(72)

10th Percentile 33.89 16.18 2.23 12.97 3.14 0.51
25th Percentile 30.40 15.44 2.06 11.15 2.94 0.33

Median 25.14 14.64 1.67 10.02 2.59 0.16
75th Percentile 18.62 13.64 1.50 9.18 2.32 (0.04)
90th Percentile 12.68 13.35 1.38 8.34 2.20 (0.19)

International Equity 15.97 13.93 1.57 10.43 2.65 0.06

MSCI ACWI
ex-US IMI Index 20.02 14.09 1.58 9.98 2.90 (0.02)

Sector Weights
The graph below contrasts the manager’s sector weights with those of the benchmark and median sector weights across the
members of the peer group. The magnitude of sector weight differences from the index and the manager’s sector
diversification are also shown. The regional allocation chart compares the manager’s geographical region weights with those
of the benchmark as well as the median region weights of the peer group.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Financials
22.0%

25.4%
26.5%

Consumer Discretionary
14.0%

12.7%
11.8%

Industrials
12.8%
12.7%

11.6%

Consumer Staples
11.5%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

10.1%
10.8%

Information Technology
10.6%

9.0%
7.5%

Health Care
10.1%

9.2%
9.6%

Materials
5.8%

6.8%
7.3%

Energy
5.6%
5.5%
6.0%

Telecommunications
3.7%

5.2%
5.6%

Utilities
2.0%

3.3%
3.4%

Miscellaneous
1.8%

Pooled Vehicles
0.1%

International Equity MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index

Pub Pln- Intl Equity

Sector Diversification
Manager 3.10 sectors

Index 2.94 sectors

Regional Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Dev Europe/Mid East

47.1%

47.2%

46.5%

Emerging Markets

21.8%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

20.7%

20.3%

Japan

19.1%

17.9%

17.8%

Pacific Basin

7.1%

8.3%

9.1%

North America

4.8%

5.9%

6.2%

International Equity MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index

Pub Pln- Intl Equity

Country Diversification
Manager 4.85 countries

Index 4.97 countries

 54
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
International Equity
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each capitalization/style segment of the market.
The middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

International Equity

MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Total

Value Core Growth Total

14.3% (121) 16.9% (144) 22.3% (173) 53.5% (438)

6.1% (200) 9.7% (296) 11.2% (315) 27.1% (811)

4.2% (495) 5.6% (682) 4.7% (408) 14.6% (1585)

1.5% (1090) 2.3% (2453) 1.0% (437) 4.9% (3980)

26.2% (1906) 34.6% (3575) 39.3% (1333) 100.0% (6814)

16.7% (123) 20.8% (136) 21.4% (160) 58.8% (419)

6.2% (252) 8.5% (329) 9.7% (385) 24.4% (966)

4.2% (692) 4.9% (854) 4.2% (707) 13.3% (2253)

1.2% (884) 1.4% (971) 0.8% (593) 3.5% (2448)

28.3% (1951) 35.6% (2290) 36.1% (1845) 100.0% (6086)

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

26.2%

(1906)
28.3%

(1951) 34.6%

(3575)

35.6%

(2290)
39.3%

(1333)

36.1%

(1845)

Bar #1=International Equity (Combined Z: 0.06 Growth Z: 0.04 Value Z: -0.02)

Bar #2=MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.00)

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

0.1 0.0

3.8
5.2

14.1 12.9 11.9
10.1

5.7 5.5

22.3
25.2

10.1 9.3

13.3 12.7

0.0 0.0
2.0

3.2
5.9 6.8

10.8
9.1

Bar #1=International Equity

Bar #2=MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index

Value

Core

Growth

 55
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Current Holdings Based Style Analysis
International Equity
As of December 31, 2015

This page analyzes the current investment style of a portfolio utilizing a detailed holdings-based style analysis to determine
actual exposures to various regional and style segments of the international/global equity market. The market is segmented
quarterly by region and style. The style segments are determined using the "Combined Z Score", based on the eight
fundamental factors used in the MSCI stock style scoring system. The upper-left style map illustrates the current market
capitalization and style score of the portfolio relative to indices and/or peers. The upper-right style exposure matrix displays
the current portfolio and index weights and stock counts (in parentheses) in each region/style segment of the market. The
middle chart illustrates the total exposures and stock counts in the three style segments, with a legend showing the total
growth, value, and "combined Z" (growth - value) scores. The bottom chart exhibits the sector weights as well as the style
weights within each sector.

Style Map vs CAI Pub Fund:10+ Intl Eq
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

Value Core Growth

Mega

Large

Mid

Small

Micro

International Equity

MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index

Style Exposure Matrix
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

12.0% (435) 14.0% (501) 21.1% (358) 47.1% (1294)

0.9% (87) 1.9% (102) 1.3% (46) 4.1% (235)

6.8% (677) 10.1% (693) 10.0% (364) 26.9% (1734)

6.5% (707) 8.5% (2279) 6.9% (565) 21.8% (3551)

26.2% (1906) 34.6% (3575) 39.3% (1333) 100.0% (6814)

12.6% (450) 14.7% (503) 18.9% (471) 46.2% (1424)

1.4% (94) 3.2% (152) 1.6% (84) 6.1% (330)

7.2% (519) 10.1% (688) 9.1% (497) 26.4% (1704)

7.0% (888) 7.7% (947) 6.5% (793) 21.2% (2628)

28.3% (1951) 35.6% (2290) 36.1% (1845) 100.0% (6086)

Europe/

Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/

FM

Total

Value Core Growth Total

Combined Z-Score Style Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Value Core Growth

26.2%

(1906)
28.3%

(1951) 34.6%

(3575)

35.6%

(2290)
39.3%

(1333)

36.1%

(1845)

Bar #1=International Equity (Combined Z: 0.06 Growth Z: 0.04 Value Z: -0.02)

Bar #2=MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index (Combined Z: -0.02 Growth Z: -0.01 Value Z: 0.00)

Europe/Mid East

N. America

Pacific

Emerging/FM

Sector Weights Distribution
Holdings as of December 31, 2015

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

COMMUN CONCYC CONSTA ENERGY FINANC HEALTH INDEQU MISC PUBUTL RAWMAT TECH

0.1 0.0

3.8
5.2

14.1 12.9 11.9
10.1

5.7 5.5

22.3
25.2

10.1 9.3

13.3 12.7

0.0 0.0
2.0

3.2
5.9 6.8

10.8
9.1

Bar #1=International Equity

Bar #2=MSCI ACWI ex-US IMI Index

Value

Core

Growth

 56
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



F
ix

e
d

 In
c
o

m
e

Fixed Income



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods ended December
31, 2015. Negative returns are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The
first set of returns for each asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

Returns for Periods Ended December 31, 2015

Last Last Last
Last Last  3  5  10

Quarter Year Years Years Years

Total Fixed Income (0.51%) 0.54% 1.69% 4.25% 5.54%
  Custom FI Benchmark (15) (0.80%) 0.16% 1.15% 3.41% 4.56%
  CAI Pub Fund: 10+ US FI (0.67%) (0.46%) 1.29% 3.62% 4.88%

Core Fixed Income (0.33%) 0.61% 1.96% 4.31% 5.41%
  Custom FI Benchmark (16) (0.57%) 0.55% 1.50% 3.68% 4.70%
  CAI Core Bond Style (0.51%) 0.72% 1.77% 3.85% 4.93%

Short Term Fixed Income (0.13%) 0.90% - - -
  Barclays Gov/Credit 1-3 Y (0.36%) 0.65% 0.69% 0.98% 2.74%
  CAI Defensive F-I Style (0.27%) 0.84% 0.88% 1.35% 2.87%

BIG Fixed Income (1.15%) 0.22% 3.51% 5.42% -
  HY/Leveraged Loans & Bond Index (23)(2.11%) (1.68%) 1.94% 3.76% 4.94%
  Leveraged Bank Loans (2.70%) (2.18%) 1.83% 3.72% 4.30%

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 58
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Fixed Income 0.54% 3.52% 1.04% 10.33% 6.12%
  Custom FI Benchmark (15) 0.16% 3.04% 0.28% 8.61% 5.19%
  CAI Pub Fund: 10+ US FI (0.46%) 6.31% (1.79%) 6.86% 7.56%

Core Fixed Income 0.61% 6.87% (1.42%) 9.08% 6.79%
  Custom FI Benchmark (16) 0.55% 5.97% (1.87%) 6.79% 7.32%
  CAI Core Bond Style 0.72% 6.21% (1.48%) 6.37% 7.75%

Short Term Fixed Income 0.90% 1.02% - - -
  Barclays Gov/Credit 1-3 Y 0.65% 0.77% 0.64% 1.26% 1.59%
  CAI Defensive F-I Style 0.84% 1.13% 0.66% 2.14% 1.98%

BIG Fixed Income 0.22% 2.36% 8.09% 13.15% 3.78%
  HY/Leveraged Loans & Bond Index (23)(1.68%) 1.83% 5.82% 11.13% 2.14%
  Leveraged Bank Loans (2.18%) 1.52% 6.34% 10.09% 3.24%

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 59
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Investment Manager Returns

The table below details the rates of return for the Fund’s investment managers over various time periods. Negative returns
are shown in red, positive returns in black. Returns for one year or greater are annualized. The first set of returns for each
asset class represents the composite returns for all the fund’s accounts for that asset class.

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Total Fixed Income 25.73% (9.86%) 4.84% 5.84% 3.67%
  Custom FI Benchmark (15) 7.97% 2.94% 6.34% 4.79% 3.01%
  CAI Pub Fund: 10+ US FI 12.92% (2.05%) 6.87% 4.58% 3.04%

Core Fixed Income 22.00% (7.96%) 4.74% 5.89% 3.71%
  Custom FI Benchmark (16) 7.97% 2.94% 6.34% 4.79% 3.01%
  CAI Core Bond Style 11.50% 0.30% 6.20% 4.68% 2.78%

BIG Fixed Income 42.92% - - - -
  HY/Leveraged Loans & Bond Idx (23) 53.14% (28.39%) 2.06% 8.01% 4.50%
  Leveraged Bank Loans 45.30% (28.54%) 2.54% 7.35% 5.09%

All returns reported net-of-fee.

 60
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Total Fixed Income
Period Ended December 31, 2015

Investment Philosophy
Current Benchmark = 40% Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond, 40% Barclays Capital U.S. 1-3 Govt/Credit Bond Index,
15% S&P/LSTA Leveraged Loan Index, and 5% BofA ML High Yield Master II Index.


Quarterly Summary and Highlights
Total Fixed Income’s portfolio posted a (0.48)% return for the quarter placing it in the 27 percentile of the Public Fund
10+ B US FI group for the quarter and in the 5 percentile for the last year.

Total Fixed Income’s portfolio outperformed the Oregon Custom FI Benchmark by 0.32% for the quarter and
outperformed the Oregon Custom FI Benchmark for the year by 0.58%.

Performance vs Public Fund 10+ B US FI (Gross)

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Last Quarter Last Last 2 Years Last 3 Years Last 5 Years Last 7 Years Last 10 Years
Year

(27)
(76)

(5)
(31)

(77)

(92)
(30)

(66)

(41)

(80)

(16)

(88)

(25)

(80)

10th Percentile (0.12) 0.56 4.79 2.75 5.76 8.54 6.50
25th Percentile (0.46) 0.24 3.61 2.38 4.90 7.61 5.68

Median (0.63) (0.04) 2.98 1.43 3.87 5.89 4.97
75th Percentile (0.78) (0.67) 2.28 0.64 3.51 5.09 4.62
90th Percentile (1.15) (2.44) 1.70 0.09 2.64 4.38 3.67

Total Fixed Income (0.48) 0.74 2.23 1.90 4.45 8.22 5.72

Oregon Custom
FI Benchmark (0.80) 0.16 1.59 1.15 3.41 4.51 4.56

Relative Returns vs
Oregon Custom FI Benchmark

R
e
la

ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Fixed Income

Public Fund 10+ B US FI (Gross)
Annualized Five Year Risk vs Return

2 3 4 5 6 7
0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

Total Fixed Income

Oregon Custom FI Benchmark

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

 61
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Total Fixed Income
Return Analysis Summary

Return Analysis
The graphs below analyze the manager’s return on both a risk-adjusted and unadjusted basis. The first chart illustrates the
manager’s ranking over different periods versus the appropriate style group. The second chart shows the historical quarterly
and cumulative manager returns versus the appropriate market benchmark. The last two charts illustrate the manager’s
ranking relative to their style using various risk-adjusted return measures.

Performance vs Public Fund 10+ B US FI (Gross)

(15%)
(10%)
(5%)

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

531
8691 611

620 7292
18

94

2

91

93

15 9379 1229

10th Percentile 0.56 11.62 0.34 9.57 11.04 12.31 19.25 3.21 8.22 6.54
25th Percentile 0.24 6.44 (0.70) 8.56 8.85 9.94 15.52 1.30 7.74 4.90

Median (0.04) 5.95 (1.83) 7.41 7.47 8.72 11.99 (1.36) 6.72 4.55
75th Percentile (0.67) 4.68 (3.49) 6.41 6.12 7.27 9.64 (4.69) 6.55 4.15
90th Percentile (2.44) 3.37 (4.99) 5.52 5.22 6.87 8.27 (8.90) 5.27 2.86

Total
Fixed Income 0.74 3.73 1.24 10.55 6.32 10.97 25.95 (9.74) 4.93 5.93

Oregon Custom
FI Benchmark 0.16 3.04 0.28 8.61 5.19 6.69 7.97 2.94 6.34 4.79

Cumulative and Quarterly Relative Return vs Oregon Custom FI Benchmark

R
e

la
ti
v
e

 R
e

tu
rn

s

(3%)

(2%)

(1%)

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Fixed Income Public Fund 10+ B US FI

Risk Adjusted Return Measures vs Oregon Custom FI Benchmark
Rankings Against Public Fund 10+ B US FI (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

(2)

(1)

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Alpha Treynor
Ratio

(29)

(29)

10th Percentile 1.73 5.20
25th Percentile 1.06 4.32

Median 0.67 4.05
75th Percentile (0.07) 3.22
90th Percentile (0.42) 2.82

Total
Fixed Income 0.94 4.27

(0.5)

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Information Sharpe Excess Return
Ratio Ratio Ratio

(3)

(2)

(7)

10th Percentile 0.83 1.60 1.14
25th Percentile 0.46 1.40 0.49

Median 0.32 1.18 0.29
75th Percentile (0.02) 0.88 0.05
90th Percentile (0.14) 0.72 (0.27)

Total Fixed Income 1.14 1.67 1.26

 62
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Total Fixed Income
Risk Analysis Summary

Risk Analysis
The graphs below analyze the risk or variation of a manager’s return pattern. The first scatter chart illustrates the
relationship, called Excess Return Ratio, between excess return and tracking error relative to the benchmark. The second
scatter chart displays the return versus risk relationship. The third chart shows tracking error patterns versus the benchmark
over time. The last two charts show the ranking of the manager’s risk statistics versus the peer group.

Risk Analysis vs Public Fund 10+ B US FI (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

0 1 2 3 4 5 6
(4 )

(3 )

(2 )

(1 )

0

1

2

3

Total Fixed Income

Tracking Error

E
x
c
e

s
s
 R

e
tu

rn

2 3 4 5 6 7
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Total Fixed Income

Oregon Custom FI Benchmar

Standard Deviation

R
e

tu
rn

s

Rolling 12 Quarter Tracking Error vs Oregon Custom FI Benchmark

T
ra

c
k
in

g
 E

rr
o

r

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

9%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Fixed Income

Public Fund 10+ B US FI

Risk Statistics Rankings vs Oregon Custom FI Benchmark
Rankings Against Public Fund 10+ B US FI (Gross)
Five Years Ended December 31, 2015

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

Standard Downside Residual Tracking
Deviation Risk Risk Error

(92)

(96)
(95) (95)

10th Percentile 5.54 2.69 4.84 4.84
25th Percentile 4.33 2.10 3.44 3.37

Median 3.42 1.55 2.41 2.36
75th Percentile 2.77 0.65 1.42 1.39
90th Percentile 2.66 0.53 1.26 1.24

Total
Fixed Income 2.62 0.18 0.82 0.80

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

Beta R-Squared Rel. Std.
Deviation

(54)
(5)

(92)

10th Percentile 1.30 0.82 2.29
25th Percentile 1.14 0.73 1.79

Median 1.06 0.49 1.41
75th Percentile 0.91 0.36 1.15
90th Percentile 0.84 0.29 1.10

Total Fixed Income 1.03 0.91 1.08

 63
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



Total Fixed Income
Bond Characteristics Analysis Summary

Portfolio Characteristics
This graph compares the manager’s portfolio characteristics with the range of characteristics for the portfolios which make up
the manager’s style group. This analysis illustrates whether the manager’s current holdings are consistent with other
managers employing the same style.

Fixed Income Portfolio Characteristics
Rankings Against CAI Core Bond Plus Style
as of December 31, 2015

(2)

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Average Effective Coupon OA
Duration Life Yield Rate Convexity

(100)(99)

(99)

(100) (25)

(100)

(87)
(99)

(9)
(76)

10th Percentile 5.63 9.57 4.42 4.55 0.58
25th Percentile 5.47 8.31 4.08 4.17 0.29

Median 5.33 7.97 3.61 3.82 0.19
75th Percentile 4.98 7.36 3.25 3.46 0.08
90th Percentile 4.72 6.73 3.03 3.06 (0.10)

Total Fixed Income 3.08 5.55 4.09 3.31 0.59

OPERF Total
Custom FI Bmk 3.23 4.26 2.02 2.40 0.06

Sector Allocation and Quality Ratings
The first graph compares the manager’s sector allocation with the average allocation across all the members of the
manager’s style. The second graph compares the manager’s weighted average quality rating with the range of quality ratings
for the style.

Sector Allocation
December 31, 2015

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

Corp (US$ denom)
34.1%

40.2%
24.6%

US Bk Ln
16.7%

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

5
0

%
M

g
r 

M
V

15.1%

US  RMBS
10.9%

23.4%
11.5%

US Trsy
10.5%

17.1%
38.5%

US  ABS
8.9%

4.4%
0.2%

US CMBS
5.3%

6.4%
0.7%

Cash
4.0%

0.8%

Gov Rel (US$ denom)
3.8%

0.7%
9.4%

Other
2.0%
1.9%

0.0%

US CMOs
1.7%

0.2%

Gov Rel (nonUS$ den)
1.0%

Corp (non US$ denom)
1.0%

5.0%

US Muni
0.1%

US Prfd
0.1%

Total Fixed Income CAI Core Bond Plus Style

OPERF Total Custom FI Bmk

Quality Ratings
vs CAI Core Bond Plus Style

BBB+

A-

A

A+

AA-

AA

AA+

AAA

Trsy

Weighted Average
Quality Rating

(92)

(53)

10th Percentile AA-
25th Percentile A+

Median A+
75th Percentile A
90th Percentile A-

Total Fixed Income A-

OPERF Total
Custom FI Bmk A

 64
Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)



B
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
 D

e
fin

itio
n

s

Benchmark Definitions



66 

State of Oregon - PERS 

(1) Prior to September 30, 2013, policy benchmark is 46% MSCI ACWI Net, 27% Custom FI Benchmark, 16% Russell 
3000+300 QTR lag, and 11% NCREIF Property 1 QTR lag. From October 31, 2013 to current, policy benchmark is 41.50% 
MSCI ACWI Net, 23.50% Custom FI Benchmark, 20% Russell 3000+300 QTR lag, 12.50% NCREIF Property QTR lag, and 
2.50% CPI+400 bps 

(2) Overlay - inception date is November 1, 2005. 
(3) Prior to March 31, 2008, index is Russell 3000. From April 1, 2008 to current, index is MSCI ACWI IMI Net. 
(4) The start date for the Total Public Equity benchmark is January 1, 2008, when public equities were restructured to an ACWI 

asset allocation. 
(5) Effective June 1, 2008, MSCI completed the implementation of the Investable Market Index(IMI - Large Cap+Mid Cap+Small 

Cap). The MSCI ACWI ex US IMI Net Index was formally adopted as the benchmark for the International Equity Fund. 
Benchmark performance through May 31, 2008, is MSCI ACWI ex US Gross and is linked thereafter with the MSCI ACWI ex 
US IMI Net Index. 

(6) Benchmark performance through May 31, 2008, is the applicable MSCI Standard Gross Index and is linked thereafter with 
the MSCI Standard Net Index. 

(7)   Prior to June 1 2008, index is MSCI ACWI ex US Value. From June 1 2008 onwards, index is MSCI ACWI ex US Value IMI.

(8)   Prior to June 1 2008, index is MSCI World ex US Growth. From June 1, 2008 onwards, index is MSCI World ex US Growth
       (Net) 

 (9) Benchmark performance through May 31, 2008, is the applicable MSCI Standard Gross Index and is linked thereafter with 
the MSCI IMI Net Index. 

(10) Benchmark performance through May 31, 2008, is the applicable MSCI Standard Gross Index and is linked thereafter with 
the MSCI Standard Net Index. 

(11) Benchmark performance through May 31, 2008, is the applicable MSCI Standard Gross Index and is linked thereafter with 
the MSCI Standard Net Index. 

(12) Benchmark performance through May 31, 2008, is the applicable MSCI Standard Gross Index and is linked thereafter with 
the MSCI IMI Net Index. 

(13) Benchmark performance through May 31, 2008, is the applicable MSCI Standard Gross Index and is linked thereafter with 
the MSCI Standard Net Index. 

(14) Benchmark performance through March 31, 2010 is the applicable MSCI AC World (NET) and is linked thereafter with the 
MSCI ACWI Value Net Index. 

(15) Prior to February 28, 2011, index is Oregon Custom FI 90/10 Benchmark (90% BC US Universal Index and 10% SSBI Non-
US World Gov't Bond Hedged Index). From March 1, 2011 to December 31, 2013, index is Oregon Custom FI Benchmark 
(60% BC US Universal Index, 20% S&P/LSTA Leveraged Loan Index, 10% JMP EMBI Global Index, and 10% BofA ML High 
Yield Master II Index). From January 1, 2014 to Current, index is Oregon Custom FI Benchmark (40% Barclays Capital U.S. 
Aggregate Bond, 40% Barclays Capital U.S. 1-3 Govt/Credit Bond Index, 15% S&P/LSTA Leveraged Loan Index, and 5% 
BofA ML High Yield Master II Index). 

(16) Prior to February 28, 2011, index is Oregon Custom External FI 90/10 Benchmark (90% BC US Universal and 10% SSBI 
Non-US World Gov't Bond Hedged Index). From March 1, 2011 to December 31, 2013, index is Oregon Custom External FI 
Benchmark (90% BC US Universal Index and 10% JMP EMBI Global Index). From January 1, 2014 to Current, index is 
Oregon Custom External FI Benchmark (100% Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond). 

(17) 65% S&P-LSTA/35% Merrill HY Master II. 
(18) 85% S&P-LSTA/15% Merrill HY Master II. 
(19) Returns reported quarterly and lagged one quarter. 
(20) Returns reported quarterly and lagged one quarter. 
(21) Beginning in September 2010, the Private Equity return now combines the estimated return from the most recent quarter 

with a revision component that trues up the past two quarters' reported returns with the past two quarters' actual returns. 
(22) Prior to May 1, 2005, index is R3000+500 bps Qtr Lag. 
(23) 75% S&P-LSTA/25% Merrill HY Master II. 



C
a

lla
n

 R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
/E

d
u

c
a

tio
n

Callan Research/Education



Ρεσεαρχη ανδ Εδυχατιοναλ Προγραmσ

Τηε Χαλλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ Ινστιτυτε προϖιδεσ ρεσεαρχη τηατ κεεπσ χλιεντσ υπδατεδ ον τηε λατεστ ινδυστρψ τρενδσ ωηιλε ηελπινγ τηεm λεαρν 

τηρουγη χαρεφυλλψ στρυχτυρεδ εδυχατιοναλ προγραmσ. 

Ρεχεντ Ρεσεαρχη

Πλεασε ϖισιτ ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/ρεσεαρχη το σεε αλλ οφ ουρ πυβλιχατιονσ.

ςιδεο: Τηε Εδυχατιον οφ Βετα Ιν τηισ βριεφ ϖιδεο, Ευγενε Ποδκα−

mινερ δεσχριβεσ τηε ρεασονσ ηε δεχιδεδ το εξπλορε τηε �σmαρτ βετα� 

τοπιχ ιν δεταιλ.

2015 Αλτερνατιϖε Ινϖεστmεντσ Συρϖεψ Ουρ 

2015 Αλτερνατιϖε Ινϖεστmεντσ Συρϖεψ προ−

ϖιδεσ ινστιτυτιοναλ ινϖεστορσ α χυρρεντ ρεπορτ ον 

ασσετ αλλοχατιον τρενδσ ανδ ινϖεστορ πραχτιχεσ. 

Ινσιδε Χαλλαν�σ Dαταβασε, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Τηισ ρεπορτ γραπησ 

περφορmανχε ανδ ρισκ δατα φροm Χαλλαν�σ προπριεταρψ δαταβασε 

αλονγσιδε ρελεϖαντ mαρκετ ινδιχεσ.

Χαπιταλ Μαρκετ Ρεϖιεω, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Ινσιγητσ ον τηε εχονο−

my and recent performance in equities, ixed income, alternatives, 

ρεαλ εστατε, ανδ mορε. 

Μαρκετ Πυλσε Φλιπβοοκ, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Α θυαρτερλψ mαρκετ ρεφ−

ερενχε γυιδε χοϖερινγ ινϖεστmεντ ανδ φυνδ σπονσορ τρενδσ ιν τηε 

U.S. economy, U.S. and non-U.S. equities and ixed income, alter−

natives, and deined contribution. 

ΕΣΓ Φαχτορσ: Υ.Σ. Ινϖεστορ Υσαγε 

Χρψσταλιζεσ Τηισ χηαρτιχλε λοοκσ ατ ΕΣΓ 

φροm τηε περσπεχτιϖεσ οφ Υ.Σ. ασσετ οωνερσ 

ανδ γλοβαλ ινϖεστmεντ mαναγερσ, ρεϖεαλινγ 

γροωινγ ινχορπορατιον οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ ιν 

ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον mακινγ.

Τηε Dεπαρτmεντ οφ Λαβορ Wειγησ ιν ον ΕΣΓ: Κεψ Τακεαωαψσ 

φροm Ιντερπρετιϖε Βυλλετιν 2015−01 Α συmmαρψ οφ τηε DΟΛ�σ Ιν−

terpretive Bulletin 2015-011, relating to the iduciary standard un−

δερ ΕΡΙΣΑ χονσιδερινγ εχονοmιχαλλψ ταργετεδ ινϖεστmεντσ (ΕΤΙσ), 

ανδ τηε ιmπλιχατιονσ φορ ινϖεστορσ.

Ηεδγε Φυνδ Μονιτορ, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Αυτηορ ϑιm ΜχΚεε 

προϖιδεσ θυαρτερλψ περφορmανχε ανδ α σναπσηοτ οφ τηε ασσετ 

χλασσ. Τηισ θυαρτερ�σ χοϖερ στορψ: �Βεψονδ τηε Γλιττερ ανδ Ρεγρετ:  

Ρεασσεσσινγ Ηεδγε Φυνδσ� Ρολε ιν Ασσετ Αλλοχατιον.�

ςιδεο: Ιν τηε Σποτλιγητ−Ταργετ Dατε Φυνδσ Λορι Λυχασ δισχυσσ−

εσ σοmε οφ τηε τρενδσ τηατ αρε χαυσινγ ταργετ δατε φυνδσ το ηαϖε 

λοωερ φεεσ.

ΕΣΓ Ιντερεστ ανδ Ιmπλεmεντατιον Συρϖεψ Ρεσυλτσ οφ Χαλλαν�σ 

τηιρδ αννυαλ συρϖεψ το ασσεσσ τηε στατυσ οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορ ιντεγρα−

τιον ιν τηε Υ.Σ. ινστιτυτιοναλ mαρκετ.

DΧ Οβσερϖερ, 3ρδ Θυαρτερ 2015 Χοϖερ στορψ: Μεετινγ τηε Χηαλ−

λενγε οφ Μαναγεδ Αχχουντ Σελεχτιον ανδ Εϖαλυατιον.

Γραδινγ τηε Πενσιον Προτεχτιον Αχτ, Τεν Ψεαρσ Λατερ: Συχ−

χεσσ Στοριεσ ανδ Νεαρ Μισσεσ  Χαλλαν γραδεσ τηε περφορmανχε 

οφ νινε κεψ ΠΠΑ προϖισιονσ οϖερ τηε παστ δεχαδε, λιστινγ τηεm 

φροm λεαστ το mοστ εφφεχτιϖε.

Πριϖατε Μαρκετσ Τρενδσ, Φαλλ 2015 Γαρψ Ροβερτσον συmmα−

ριζεσ τηε mαρκετ ενϖιρονmεντ, ρεχεντ εϖεντσ, περφορmανχε, ανδ 

οτηερ ισσυεσ ινϖολϖινγ πριϖατε εθυιτψ.

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 
ΙΝςΕΣΤΜΕΝΤΣ 
ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

Εδυχατιον

4τη Θυαρτερ 2015

2015 Αλτερνατιϖε Ινϖεστmεντσ Συρϖεψ

Οβσερϖατιονσ φροm Υ.Σ. Ινστιτυτιοναλ Ινϖεστορσ

ΧΑΛΛΑΝ 

ΙΝςΕΣΤΜΕΝΤΣ 

ΙΝΣΤΙΤΥΤΕ

Συρϖεψ

Ενϖιρονmενταλ, σοχιαλ, ανδ γοϖερνανχε (ΕΣΓ) ισσυεσ αρε θυιχκλψ 

εϖολϖινγ ιν mυλτιπλε διmενσιονσ, ινχλυδινγ τηε ρεγυλατορψ ατmο−

σπηερε. Ιν τηισ χηαρτιχλε, Χαλλαν λοοκσ ατ ΕΣΓ φροm τηε περσπεχ−

τιϖεσ οφ Υ.Σ. ασσετ οωνερσ ανδ γλοβαλ ινϖεστmεντ mαναγερσ. Wε 

present key indings from two independent surveys: on the front, 
Υ.Σ. ινϖεστορσ� ινχορπορατιον οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ, ανδ ον τηε ρεϖερσε, 

ινϖεστmεντ mαναγερσ� υτιλιζατιον οφ ΕΣΓ χονσιδερατιονσ. 

Ιν Οχτοβερ 2015, τηε Dεπαρτmεντ οφ Λαβορ ισσυεδ αν ιντερπρετιϖε 

βυλλετιν το χλαριφψ τηατ χονσιδερατιον οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ χαν βε αχχεπτ−

αβλε υνδερ τηε ριγητ χιρχυmστανχεσ. Τηισ γυιδανχε ωασ ισσυεδ 

αφτερ ουρ συρϖεψ ωασ χονδυχτεδ ιν Σεπτεmβερ 2015, βυτ χουλδ 

αφφεχτ φυτυρε συρϖεψ ρεσυλτσ. Wε συρϖεψεδ Υ.Σ.−βασεδ ινστιτυτιοναλ 

ασσετ οωνερσ το ασσεσσ αττιτυδεσ τοωαρδ ρεσπονσιβλε ανδ συσταιν−

αβλε ινϖεστmεντ. Μορε τηαν 240 υνιθυε ινστιτυτιοναλ φυνδσ τηατ 

ρεπρεσεντ αππροξιmατελψ ∃2.4 τριλλιον ιν ασσετσ ρεσπονδεδ. Χοm−

paring indings to our irst annual survey in 2013, we note growing 
ινχορπορατιον οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ ιν ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον mακινγ. 

Τοπ Ρεασονσ φορ Ινχορπορατινγ ΕΣΓ Τοπ Ρεασονσ Αγαινστ Ινχορπορατινγ ΕΣΓ

Ινϖεστορσ Ινχορπορατινγ ΕΣΓ Φαχτορσ (2013 ϖσ. 2015)

0% 60%

We expect to achieve an improved
risk profile without sacrificing return

My fund must consider ESG factors as
part of our fiduciary responsibility

 My fund has other goals besides
maximizing risk-adjusted returns,

 and we believe that ESG factors can
 help us attain these other goals

The fund's Investment Policy Statement
dictates that we consider ESG factors 49%

38%

39%

35%

ΕΣΓ Φαχτορσ:  

Υ.Σ. Ινϖεστορ Υσαγε Crystalizes

Χηανγεσ το Υ.Σ. Ινϖεστορ ςιεωσ ον ΕΣΓ (Στρονγλψ αγρεε ορ αγρεε) 

Λοοκ φορ τηε φυλλ ρεσυλτσ οφ τηισ συρϖεψ ατ ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/ρεσεαρχη/

2013 2015

22%

29%

2013 2015

14% 15% 15%

22%

37%

27%

31%

39%

All Respondents Corporate Public Endowment Foundation

2013 2015

DC

24%

2015

DB

7%

2013 2015

26%

26%

31%

35%

26%

26%

31%

35%

<∃500 mιλλιον

∃500 mιλλιον � 
∃3 βιλλιον

∃3 βιλλιον � 
∃20 βιλλιον

>∃20 βιλλιον

60%

55%
23%

17%6% 12%

Οϖεραλλ, ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ 
αρε οφ εθυαλ ορ γρεατερ 
ιmπορτανχε ασ τραδιτιοναλ 
φυνδαmενταλ φαχτορσ 
(such as proitability 
ανδ ϖαλυατιον) ωηεν 
εϖαλυατινγ χοmπανιεσ

ΕΣΓ ινϖεστινγ ισ α 
σηορτ−τερm τρενδ

Ενγαγεmεντ ισ 
mορε εφφεχτιϖε 
τηαν διϖεστmεντ

20152013

Our latest survey results reveal ESG incorporation rates increased from 22% in 2013 to 
29% ιν 2015 αmονγ Υ.Σ.−βασεδ ινστιτυτιοναλ ινϖεστορσ. Ελεϖεν περχεντ οφ ρεσπονδεντσ τηατ 

ηαϖε νοτ ινχορπορατεδ ΕΣΓ αρε χονσιδερινγ δοινγ σο, ον παρ ωιτη πρεϖιουσ ψεαρσ.

Βψ φυνδ τψπε, φουνδατιονσ ανδ ενδοωmεντσ have the highest rates of ESG adoption at 39% 
and 37%, respectively. Πυβλιχ φυνδ υσαγε οφ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ ηασ νεαρλψ δουβλεδ ιν τηε παστ τωο

years, from 15% in 2013 to 27% in 2015. Χορπορατε funds were lat overall at 15%, but reveal 
substantial differences when plan type is considered. Corporate deined beneit plans have a 
mere 7% ESG incorporation rate, while nearly one-quarter of deined contribution plans (24%) 
ηαϖε υτιλιζεδ ΕΣΓ.

Incorporation of ESG factors increases with fund size; 35% of funds larger than $20 billion 
υσε ΕΣΓ ιν σοmε ασπεχτ οφ ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον mακινγ. Τοπ ρεασονσ χιτεδ βψ τηοσε τηατ δο 

ινχορπορατε ΕΣΓ ανδ τηοσε τηατ δο νοτ ηαϖε χηανγεδ λιττλε ιν τηε παστ τηρεε ψεαρσ.

Ινχορπορατιον Ρατεσ βψ Φυνδ Σιζε

 Crystalizes

Ιτ ισ υνχλεαρ ωηατ τηε 

ϖαλυε προποσιτιον ισ
47%

Ι ηαϖε νοτ σεεν αmπλε 

ρεσεαρχη τψινγ ΕΣΓ φαχτορσ 

το ουτπερφορmανχε

45%

Μψ φυνδ ωιλλ νοτ χονσιδερ ανψ φαχτορσ 

that are not purely inancial in our 

ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον mακινγ

39%



�Wε τηινκ τηε βεστ ωαψ το λεαρν σοmετηινγ ισ το τεαχη ιτ. 

Εντρυστινγ χλιεντ εδυχατιον το ουρ χονσυλταντσ ανδ σπεχιαλιστσ 

ενσυρεσ τηατ τηεψ ηαϖε α τοταλ χοmmανδ οφ τηειρ συβϕεχτ 

mαττερ. Τηισ ισ ονε ρεασον ωηψ εδυχατιον ανδ ρεσεαρχη ηαϖε 

been cornerstones of our irm for more than 40 years.” 

Ρον Πεψτον, Χηαιρmαν ανδ ΧΕΟ

Χαλλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ Ινστιτυτε ανδ τηε �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε�

Εϖεντσ

Μισσ ουτ ον α Χαλλαν χονφερενχε ορ ωορκσηοπ? Εϖεντ συmmα−

ριεσ ανδ σπεακερσ� πρεσεντατιονσ αρε αϖαιλαβλε ον ουρ ωεβσιτε:  

ηττπσ://ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/εδυχατιον/ΧΙΙ/ 

Τηε Νατιοναλ Χονφερενχε, το βε ηελδ ϑανυαρψ 25�27 ιν Σαν Φραν−

χισχο, χονσιστσ οφ γενεραλ σεσσιονσ ωιτη πρεσεντατιονσ βψ ωορλδ, πο−

λιτιχαλ, αρτσ, σχιενχε, ανδ ινϖεστmεντ ινδυστρψ σπεακερσ. Τηε γενεραλ 

σεσσιονσ αρε φολλοωεδ βψ σmαλλερ βρεακουτ σεσσιονσ ον τιmελψ ιν−

δυστρψ τοπιχσ λεδ βψ Χαλλαν σπεχιαλιστσ. Αττενδεεσ ινχλυδε πλαν/φυνδ 

σπονσορσ, ινϖεστmεντ mαναγερσ, ανδ Χαλλαν ασσοχιατεσ. 

Σαϖε τηε δατε φορ ουρ Ρεγιοναλ Wορκσηοπσ: ϑυνε 28 ιν Ατλαντα, 

ϑυνε 29 ιν Σαν Φρανχισχο, Οχτοβερ 25 ιν Νεω Ψορκ, ανδ Οχτοβερ 

26 ιν Χηιχαγο. Αλσο mαρκ ψουρ χαλενδαρσ φορ ουρ φαλλ Ινϖεστmεντ 

Μαναγερ Χονφερενχε, Σεπτεmβερ 11−13.

Φορ mορε ινφορmατιον αβουτ ρεσεαρχη ορ εδυχατιοναλ εϖεντσ, 

πλεασε χονταχτ Αννα Wεστ: 415.974.5060 / ινστιτυτε≅χαλλαν.χοm

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ 

Εδυχατιοναλ Σεσσιονσ

Τηε Χεντερ φορ Ινϖεστmεντ Τραινινγ, βεττερ κνοων ασ τηε �Χαλλαν 

Χολλεγε,� προϖιδεσ α φουνδατιον οφ κνοωλεδγε φορ ινδυστρψ προφεσ−

σιοναλσ ωηο αρε ινϖολϖεδ ιν τηε ινϖεστmεντ δεχισιον−mακινγ προ−

cess. It was founded in 1994 to provide clients and non-clients alike 
ωιτη βασιχ− το ιντερmεδιατε−λεϖελ ινστρυχτιον. Ουρ νεξτ σεσσιον ισ:

Ιντροδυχτιον το Ινϖεστmεντσ

Ατλαντα, ΓΑ, Απριλ 19�20, 2016

Σαν Φρανχισχο, ΧΑ, ϑυλψ 19�20, 2016

Χηιχαγο, ΙΛ, Οχτοβερ 18�19, 2016

Τηισ σεσσιον φαmιλιαριζεσ φυνδ σπονσορ τρυστεεσ, σταφφ, ανδ ασσετ 

mαναγεmεντ αδϖισορσ ωιτη βασιχ ινϖεστmεντ τηεορψ, τερmινολογψ, 

ανδ πραχτιχεσ. Ιτ λαστσ ονε−ανδ−α−ηαλφ δαψσ ανδ ισ δεσιγνεδ φορ ιν−

διϖιδυαλσ ωηο ηαϖε λεσσ τηαν τωο ψεαρσ οφ εξπεριενχε ωιτη ασσετ−

mαναγεmεντ οϖερσιγητ ανδ/ορ συππορτ ρεσπονσιβιλιτιεσ. Τυιτιον φορ 

τηε Ιντροδυχτορψ �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε� σεσσιον ισ ∃2,350 περ περσον. 

Τυιτιον ινχλυδεσ ινστρυχτιον, αλλ mατεριαλσ, βρεακφαστ ανδ λυνχη ον 

each day, and dinner on the irst evening with the instructors.

Χυστοmιζεδ Σεσσιονσ

Τηε �Χαλλαν Χολλεγε� ισ εθυιππεδ το χυστοmιζε α χυρριχυλυm το 

meet the training and educational needs of a speciic organization.
Τηεσε ταιλορεδ σεσσιονσ ρανγε φροm βασιχ το αδϖανχεδ ανδ χαν 

take place anywhere—even at your ofice.

Λεαρν mορε ατ ηττπσ://ωωω.χαλλαν.χοm/εδυχατιον/χολλεγε/ ορ 

χονταχτ Κατηλεεν Χυννιε: 415.274.3029 / χυννιε≅χαλλαν.χοm

Υνιθυε πιεχεσ οφ ρεσεαρχη τηε 

Ινστιτυτε γενερατεσ εαχη ψεαρ50+

Τοταλ αττενδεεσ οφ τηε �Χαλλαν 

College” since 19943,300 Ψεαρ τηε Χαλλαν Ινϖεστmεντσ 

Ινστιτυτε ωασ φουνδεδ1980

Αττενδεεσ (ον αϖεραγε) οφ τηε 

Ινστιτυτε�σ αννυαλ Νατιοναλ Χονφερενχε500

Εδυχατιον: Βψ τηε Νυmβερσ



D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s

Disclosures



List of Callan’s Investment Manager Clients 

Confidential – For Callan Client Use Only 

Callan takes its fiduciary and disclosure responsibilities to clients very seriously. We recognize that there are numerous potential conflicts of interest 
encountered in the investment consulting industry and that it is our responsibility to manage those conflicts effectively and in the best interest of our 
clients.  At Callan, we employ a robust process to identify, manage, monitor and disclose potential conflicts on an on-going basis.   

The list below is an important component of our conflicts management and disclosure process.  It identifies those investment managers that pay Callan 
fees for educational, consulting, software, database or reporting products and services.  We update the list quarterly because we believe that our fund 
sponsor clients should know the investment managers that do business with Callan, particularly those investment manager clients that the fund sponsor 
clients may be using or considering using. Please refer to Callan’s ADV Part 2A for a more detailed description of the services and products that Callan 
makes available to investment manager clients through our Institutional Consulting Group, Independent Adviser Group and Fund Sponsor Consulting 
Group.  Due to the complex corporate and organizational ownership structures of many investment management firms, parent and affiliate firm 
relationships are not indicated on our list.  

Fund sponsor clients may request a copy of the most currently available list at any time. Fund sponsor clients may also request specific information 
regarding the fees paid to Callan by particular fund manager clients.  Per company policy, information requests regarding fees are handled exclusively 
by Callan’s Compliance Department. 

 

Quarterly List as of 

December 31, 2015 

Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. Page 1 of 2 

Manager Name 

1607 Capital Partners, LLC 

Aberdeen Asset Management 

Acadian Asset Management, Inc. 

Advisory Research 

Affiliated Managers Group 

AllianceBernstein 

Allianz Global Investors U.S. LLC 

Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America 

AlphaOne Investment Services 

American Century Investment Management 

Analytic Investors 

Apollo Global Management 

AQR Capital Management 

Ares Management 

Ariel Investments 

Aristotle Capital Management 

Artisan Partners Limited 

Atlanta Capital Management Co., L.L.C. 

AXA Rosenberg Investment Management 

Babson Capital Management LLC 

Bailard 

Baillie Gifford Overseas Limited 

Baird Advisors 

Bank of America 

Baring Asset Management 

Baron Capital Management 

BlackRock 

Blue Vista Capital Management 

BMO Asset Management 

BNP Paribas Investment Partners 

BNY Mellon Asset Management 

Boston Company Asset Management, LLC (The) 

Boston Partners 

Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. 

Brandywine Global Investment Management, LLC 

Brown Brothers Harriman & Company 

Cadence Capital Management 

Manager Name 

Calamos Advisors 

Capital Group 

CastleArk Management, LLC 

Causeway Capital Management 

Champlain Investment Partners 

Channing Capital Management, LLC 

Charles Schwab Investment Management 

Chartwell Investment Partners 

ClearBridge Investments, LLC (fka ClearBridge Advisors) 

Cohen & Steers 

Columbia Management Investment Advisors, LLC 

Columbus Circle Investors 

Corbin Capital Partners 

Cornerstone Investment Partners, LLC 

Cramer Rosenthal McGlynn, LLC 

Crawford Investment Council 

Credit Suisse Asset Management 

Crestline Investors 

Cutwater Asset Management 

DDJ Capital Management 

DE Shaw Investment Management LLC 

Delaware Investments 

DePrince, Race & Zollo, Inc. 

Deutsche Asset  & Wealth Management 

Diamond Hill Investments 

Duff & Phelps Investment Mgmt. 

Eagle Asset Management, Inc. 

EARNEST Partners, LLC 

Eaton Vance Management 

EnTrust Capital Inc. 

Epoch Investment Partners 

Fayez Sarofim & Company 

Federated Investors 

Fidelity Institutional Asset Management 

First Eagle Investment Management 

First Hawaiian Bank Wealth Management Division 

First State Investments 



  Knowledge. Experience. Integrity. December 31, 2015 Page 2 of 2 

Manager Name 

Fisher Investments 

FLAG Capital Management 

Fort Washington Investment Advisors, Inc. 

Franklin Templeton 

Fred Alger Management Co., Inc. 

Fuller & Thaler Asset Management 

GAM (USA) Inc. 

GE Asset Management 

Goldman Sachs Asset Management 

Grand-Jean Capital Management 

GMO (fka Grantham, Mayo, Van Otterloo & Co., LLC) 

Gresham Investment Management, LLC 

Guggenheim Investments Asset Management (fka Security Global) 

Harbor Capital 

Harding Loevner LP 

Harrison Street Real Estate Capital 

Hartford Funds 

Hartford Investment Management Co. 

Henderson Global Investors 

Hotchkis & Wiley 

HSBC Global Asset Management 

Income Research & Management 

Insight Investment Management 

Institutional Capital LLC 

INTECH Investment Management 

Invesco 

Investec Asset Management 

Janus Capital Group (fka Janus Capital Management, LLC) 

Jensen Investment Management 

J.P. Morgan Asset Management 

KeyCorp 

Kopernik Global Investors 

Lazard Asset Management 

LMCG Investments (fka Lee Munder Capital Group) 

Legal & General Investment Management America 

Lincoln National Corporation 

Logan Circle Partners, L.P. 

The London Company 

Longview Partners 

Loomis, Sayles & Company, L.P. 

Lord Abbett & Company 

Los Angeles Capital Management 

LSV Asset Management 

Lyrical Partners 

MacKay Shields LLC 

Man Investments 

Manulife Asset Management 

Martin Currie 

Marvin & Palmer Associates, Inc. 

MFS Investment Management 

MidFirst Bank 

Millstreet Capital Management 

Mondrian Investment Partners Limited 

Montag & Caldwell, Inc. 

Morgan Stanley Investment Management 

Mountain Lake Investment Management LLC 

MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 

Neuberger Berman, LLC (fka, Lehman Brothers) 

Newton Capital Management 

Northern Lights Capital Group 

Manager Name 

Northern Trust Asset Management 

Nuveen Investments Institutional Services Group LLC 

Old Mutual Asset Management 

OppenheimerFunds, Inc. 

Pacific Investment Management Company 

Palisade Capital Management LLC 

PanAgora Asset Management 

Paradigm Asset Management 

Parametric Portfolio Associates 

Peregrine Capital Management, Inc. 

PineBridge Investments (formerly AIG) 

Pinnacle Asset Management 

Pioneer Investment Management, Inc. 

PNC Capital Advisors, LLC (fka Allegiant Asset Mgmt) 

Principal Global Investors 

Private Advisors 

Prudential Investment Management, Inc. 

Putnam Investments, LLC 

Pyramis Global Advisors 

Pzena Investment Management, LLC 

RBC Global Asset Management (U.S.) Inc. 

Regions Financial Corporation 

Riverbridge Partners LLC 

Rothschild Asset Management, Inc. 

Royce & Associates 

RS Investments 

Russell Investment Management 

Santander Global Facilities 

Schroder Investment Management North America Inc. 

Scout Investments 

SEI Investments 

SEIX Investment Advisors, Inc. 

Smith Graham and Company 

Smith Group Asset Management 

Standard Life Investments 

Standish (fka, Standish Mellon Asset Management) 

State Street Global Advisors 

Stone Harbor Investment Partners, L.P. 

Systematic Financial Management 

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. 

Taplin, Canida & Habacht 

TIAA-CREF 

TCW Asset Management Company 

Tocqueville Asset Management 

UBS Asset Management 

Van Eck 

Versus Capital Group 

Victory Capital Management Inc. 

Vontobel Asset Management 

Voya Investment Management (fka ING) 

Waddell & Reed Asset Management Group 

WCM Investment Management 

WEDGE Capital Management 

Wellington Management Company, LLP 

Wells Capital Management 

Wells Fargo Private Bank 

Western Asset Management Company 

Westwood Management Corp. 

William Blair & Co., Inc. 

 



CLIENT: Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF) REPORT TYPE: EMAIL

ORGID: 12318 REPORT ID:    431 REPORT DATE: Dec 31, 2015

CONSULTANT OFFICE MAILING DUE DATE

Jim Callahan CA Feb 17 2016

BINDING: GBC Binding PRINT PAGE: DOUBLE

TOTAL COPIES CLIENT COPIES CONSULT COPIES

2 0 2

DATE MAILED:

TAB POS#: 1     PAGE NUMBER:   3

TAB POS#: 2     PAGE NUMBER:  13

TAB POS#: 3     PAGE NUMBER:  19

TAB POS#: 4     PAGE NUMBER:  31

TAB POS#: 5     PAGE NUMBER:  59

TAB POS#: 1     PAGE NUMBER:  67

TAB POS#: 2     PAGE NUMBER:  69

TAB POS#: 3     PAGE NUMBER:  72

END COPY INSERT PAGE NUMBER: 105



CLIENT: Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund (OPERF)

Mr. Jim Callahan

Executive Vice President and Manager

Callan Associates Inc.

600 Montgomery Street
Suite 800

San Francisco, CA 94111

Number of Reports

1

D8

Mr. Uvan Tseng

Senior Vice President

Callan Associates Inc.

600 Montgomery Street
Suite 800

San Francisco, CA 94111

Number of Reports

1

D8



Oregon State Treasury

Risk Dashboard

Q4 2015

March 9, 2016



1

1. Portfolio Overview
OPERF

Oregon Public Employee Retirement Fund

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318

Market Value (%) Market Value ($m) Market Value (%) Market Value ($m)

Capital Markets 59.3% $40,727,568 59.8% $38,894,823

Equity 37.7% $25,901,865 36.9% $23,991,990

Fixed Income 21.6% $14,825,703 22.9% $14,902,833

Alternatives Program 37.4% $25,716,593 37.2% $24,197,059

Alternatives Portfolio 3.4% $2,314,907 2.6% $1,688,947

Opportunity Portfolio 1.9% $1,288,935 1.8% $1,180,910

Private Equity 20.5% $14,107,227 21.4% $13,940,833

Real Estate 11.6% $7,997,768 11.3% $7,348,729

Overlay 0.2% $169,826 0.4% $248,613

Cash 1.9% $1,320,692 1.5% $1,006,654

Portfolio NAV 100.0% $68,717,318 100.0% $65,010,541

December 31, 2015

Portfolio Breakdown

December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015

37.7% 36.9%

21.6% 22.9%

3.4% 2.6%1.9% 1.8%

20.5% 21.4%

11.6% 11.3%

0.2% 0.4%

1.9% 1.5%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

12/31/2015 9/30/2015

Capital Allocation (%)

Equity Fixed Income Alternatives Portfolio

Opportunity Portfolio Private Equity Real Estate

Overlay Cash

$25.9 $24.0

$14.8 $14.9

$2.3 $1.7
$1.3

$1.2

$14.1
$13.9

$8.0
$7.3

$0.2
$0.2$1.3

$1.0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

12/31/2015 9/30/2015

M
il
li
o

n
s

Capital Allocation ($)

Equity Fixed Income Alternatives Portfolio

Opportunity Portfolio Private Equity Real Estate

Overlay Cash

83.7%

15.1%
1.2%

Exposures by Country Type (% NAV)

United States

Developed Int'l Excl. U.S.

Emerging Markets

Other



2

2a. Portfolio Risk (%)
OPERF

Portfolio Risk (%)

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318

1 SD (%) 95% VaR (%)

Month End 10.21% 16.80%

Quarter 10.28% 16.91%

Change -0.07% -0.12%

December 31, 2015

Analytical Risk

10.2% 10.3%

-0.1%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Stand-alone Risk (%)

Equity Alternative Foreign Exchange

Spreads Inflation Rates

Volatility Diversification Total

10.2% 10.3%

-0.1%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Contribution to Risk (%)

Equity Alternative Foreign Exchange

Spreads Inflation Rates

Volatility Total

37.7% 36.9%

21.6% 22.9%

37.7% 36.9%

3.0% 3.3%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

12/31/2015 9/30/2015

Capital Allocation (%)

Equity Fixed Income

Alternatives Program Other



3

2b. Portfolio Risk ($)
OPERF

Portfolio Risk ($mm)

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318

1 SD ($mm) 95% VaR ($mm)

Month End $7.0 $11.5

Quarter $6.7 $11.0

Change $0.3 $0.5

December 31, 2015

Analytical Risk

$7.0
$6.7

$0.3

-$4.0

-$2.0

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Contribution to Risk ($mm)

Equity Alternative Foreign Exchange

Spreads Inflation Rates

Volatility Total

$7.0
$6.7

$0.3

-$4.0

-$2.0

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Stand-alone Risk ($mm)

Equity Alternative Foreign Exchange

Spreads Inflation Rates

Volatility Diversification Total

$25.9 $24.0

$14.8
$14.9

$25.7
$24.2

$2.3

$1.9

$0.0

$20.0

$40.0

$60.0

$80.0

12/31/2015 9/30/2015

Capital Allocation ($m)

Equity Fixed Income

Alternatives Program Other



4

2c. Risk by Portfolio Sleeve
OPERF

Risk Breakdown by Portfolio Sleeve

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318

% NAV Standalone Risk Contribution to Risk Standalone Risk Contribution to Risk Market Value (m) Standalone Risk Contribution to Risk Standalone Risk Contribution to Risk

Capital Markets 58.4% 8.5% 4.9% 8.6% 5.0% Capital Markets 40,816,542.00$        5,857,210.21$         3,345,010.77$         5,905,389.38$         3,462,017.31$         

Equity 38.5% 12.5% 4.7% 13.5% 4.9% Equity 25,613,197.00$        8,610,305.49$         3,214,238.74$         9,277,931.09$         3,345,010.77$         

Fixed Income 20.0% 2.1% 0.2% 1.7% 0.2% Fixed Income 15,203,345.00$        1,438,492.28$         130,772.03$            1,163,182.76$         117,006.55$            

Alternatives Program 38.2% 13.9% 5.2% 14.0% 5.1% Alternatives Program 25,730,264.00$        9,560,123.36$         3,572,141.13$         9,649,598.96$         3,517,079.22$         

Alternatives Portfolio 3.4% 19.5% 0.4% 2.9% 0.1% Alternatives Portfolio 2,314,896.00$         13,441,987.70$        295,957.74$            1,975,345.86$         41,296.43$              

Opportunity Portfolio 1.9% 5.3% 0.1% 4.7% 0.1% Opportunity Portfolio 1,288,927.00$         3,675,382.20$         48,179.17$              3,255,535.17$         48,179.17$              

Private Equity 21.0% 19.0% 3.8% 20.6% 4.2% Private Equity 14,102,363.00$        13,104,733.53$        2,629,205.99$         14,178,440.69$        2,890,750.04$         

Real Estate 11.9% 11.2% 0.9% 11.5% 0.8% Real Estate 7,989,599.00$         7,729,315.00$         591,915.49$            7,928,914.41$         529,970.84$            

Cash 2.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% Cash 1,324,778.00$         82,592.86$              -$                        96,358.33$              -$                        

Total 100.0% 10.2% 10.2% 10.3% 10.3% Total $68,827,382 $7,027,276 $7,027,276 $7,075,455 $7,075,455

December 31, 2015

Analytical RiskAnalytical Risk

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 12/31/2015 9/30/2015

10.2% 10.2% 10.3% 10.3%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Standalone Risk Contribution to Risk Standalone Risk Contribution to Risk

12/31/2015 9/30/2015

Risk Contribution (%)

$7.03 $7.03 $7.08 $7.08

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

Standalone Risk Contribution to Risk Standalone Risk Contribution to Risk

12/31/2015 9/30/2015

M
il

li
o

n
s

Risk Contribution ($mm)

CashFixed IncomeEquity Alternatives Private EquityOpportunity Real Estate Total



5

2d. Capital Allocation and Risk Contribution Comparison
OPERF

Capital Allocation and Risk Contribution Comparison

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318

% NAV Contribution to Risk (Scaled) Contribution to Risk % NAV Contribution to Risk (Scaled) Contribution to Risk

Capital Markets 58.4% 47.6% 4.9% 59.8% 48.9% 5.0%

Equity 38.5% 45.7% 4.7% 36.9% 47.3% 4.9%

Fixed Income 20.0% 1.9% 0.2% 22.9% 1.7% 0.2%

Alternatives Program 38.2% 50.8% 5.2% 37.2% 49.7% 5.1%

Alternatives Portfolio 3.4% 4.2% 0.4% 2.6% 0.6% 0.1%

Opportunity Portfolio 1.9% 0.7% 0.1% 1.8% 0.7% 0.1%

Private Equity 21.0% 37.4% 3.8% 21.4% 40.9% 4.2%

Real Estate 11.9% 8.4% 0.9% 11.3% 7.5% 0.8%

Cash 2.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.6% 0.0% 0.0%

Total 100.0% 100.0% 10.2% 100.0% 100.0% 10.3%

9/30/201512/31/2015

December 31, 2015

Analytical Risk

100.0% 100.0%

10.2%

100.0% 100.0%

10.3%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

% NAV Contribution to Risk (Scaled) Contribution to Risk % NAV Contribution to Risk (Scaled) Contribution to Risk

12/31/2015 9/30/2015

Capital Allocation and Risk Contribution (%)

CashFixed IncomeEquity Alternatives Private EquityOpportunity Real Estate Total



6

3a. Explanatory Risk Factors (%)
OPERF

Explanatory Risk Factors

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change 12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change 12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change 12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Equity 5.40% 5.49% -0.09% 5.14% 5.24% -0.10% Alternative 480 475 5 Alternative 463 455 8

Alternative 4.80% 4.75% 0.05% 4.63% 4.55% 0.08% Private Equity 408 421 -13 Private Equity 384 395 -11

Foreign Exchange 1.77% 2.02% -0.25% 0.08% 0.13% -0.05% Real Estate 109 106 3 Real Estate 61 54 7

Spreads 0.76% 0.74% 0.02% 0.44% 0.50% -0.06% Hedge Funds 4 1 3 Hedge Funds 2 1 1

Inflation 0.01% 0.01% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% Index Time Series 19 7 12 Index Time Series 15 5 10

Rates 0.41% 0.47% -0.06% -0.08% -0.15% 0.07%

Volatility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% Equity 540 549 -9 Equity 514 524 -10

Diversif ication -2.94% -3.20% 0.26% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% WRLD Style 531 552 -21 WRLD Style 499 518 -19

Total 10.21% 10.28% -0.07% 10.21% 10.28% -0.07% WRLD Country 75 87 -12 WRLD Country 7 3 4

WRLD Sector 19 19 0 WRLD Sector -2 -2 0

Equity Specif ic 23 23 0 Equity Specif ic 1 1 0

Equity Indices 10 5 5 Equity Indices 8 4 4

Spreads 76 74 2 Spreads 44 50 -6

Corporate 59 55 4 Corporate 33 36 -3

Sw ap Spreads 1 1 0 Sw ap Spreads 0 0 0

Other Spreads 19 20 -1 Other Spreads 9 13 -4

USD EM 2 3 -1 USD EM 1 2 -1

Rates 41 47 -6 Rates -8 -15 7

USD Int Rates 41 47 -6 USD Int Rates -8 -15 7

Foreign Exchange 177 202 -25 Foreign Exchange 8 13 -5

FX Spot 177 202 -25 FX Spot 8 13 -5

Inflation 1 1 0 Inflation 0 0 0

USD Inflation 1 1 0 USD Inflation 0 0 0

Total 1021 1028 -7 Total 1021 1028 -7

Stand-alone Risk Risk Contribution Stand-alone Risk Risk Contribution

December 31, 2015

10.21% 10.28%

-0.07%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Stand-alone Risk

10.21% 10.28%

-0.07%

-4%

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Risk Contribution

VolatilityAlternativeEquity Foreign Exchange InflationSpreads Rates Diversif ication Total



7

3b. Explanatory Risk Factors ($)
OPERF

Explanatory Risk Factors

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change 12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change 12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change 12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Equity $3.71 $3.57 $0.14 $3.53 $3.41 $0.13 Alternative 3,232 3,090 142 Alternative 3,116 2,960 156

Alternative $3.30 $3.09 $0.21 $3.18 $2.96 $0.22 Private Equity 2,746 2,735 11 Private Equity 2,590 2,570 20

Foreign Exchange $1.22 $1.31 -$0.10 $0.05 $0.08 -$0.03 Real Estate 732 690 42 Real Estate 411 354 57

Spreads $0.52 $0.48 $0.04 $0.30 $0.33 -$0.02 Hedge Funds 25 7 18 Hedge Funds 11 4 7

Inflation $0.01 $0.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Index Time Series 125 43 82 Index Time Series 104 32 72

Rates $0.28 $0.31 -$0.02 -$0.05 -$0.10 $0.04

Volatility $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Equity 3,637 3,571 66 Equity 3,460 3,407 53

Diversif ication -$2.02 -$2.08 $0.06 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 WRLD Style 3,574 3,586 -12 WRLD Style 3,363 3,370 -7

Total $7.02 $6.68 $0.33 $7.02 $6.68 $0.33 WRLD Country 506 569 -63 WRLD Country 50 22 28

WRLD Sector 128 125 3 WRLD Sector -14 -11 -3

Equity Specif ic 157 149 8 Equity Specif ic 4 3 1

Equity Indices 66 30 36 Equity Indices 57 23 34

Spreads 512 480 32 Spreads 296 326 -30

Corporate 396 359 37 Corporate 223 232 -9

Sw ap Spreads 4 4 0 Sw ap Spreads -1 0 -1

Other Spreads 131 132 -1 Other Spreads 63 83 -20

USD EM 14 17 -3 USD EM 10 12 -2

Rates 277 306 -29 Rates -51 -96 45

USD Int Rates 275 305 -30 USD Int Rates -51 -96 45

Foreign Exchange 1,194 1,313 -119 Foreign Exchange 54 84 -30

FX Spot 1,194 1,313 -119 FX Spot 54 84 -30

Inflation 4 4 0 Inflation 2 2 0

USD Inflation 4 4 0 USD Inflation 2 2 0

Total 6,878 6,686 192 Total 6,878 6,686 192

December 31, 2015

Stand-alone Risk Contribution to Risk Stand-alone Risk (mm) Risk Contribution (mm)

$7.02 $6.68 

$0.33 

-$2.0

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Stand-alone Risk ($mm)

$7.02 $6.68 

$0.33 

-$2.0

$0.0

$2.0

$4.0

$6.0

$8.0

$10.0

$12.0

12/31/2015 9/30/2015 Change

Contribution to Risk ($mm)

VolatilityAlternativeEquity Foreign Exchange InflationSpreads Rates Diversif ication Total



8

4a. Scenario Analysis by Risk Factor
OPERF

Scenario Analysis by Risk Factor

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318
68717318 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

1.  2003 Treasury 

Backup

2.  2003 Mortgage 

Sell Off

3.  2007 Credit 

Crisis
4.  2008 Market 

Crash

5.  US Downgrade 

2011

6. Fed Tapering 

Talk 2013

7.  Chinese 

Market Crash
8. Rapid Deflation 9. Slow Deflation 1 2003 Treasury Backup 6 2013 Fed Tapering Scare

Equity 1.2% -0.4% -8.5% -10.4% -5.7% -3.5% -3.3% -6.9% -7.4%

Alternative 1.9% -0.3% -7.8% -10.4% -5.0% -2.3% -3.8% -6.4% -7.6%

Foreign Exchange -0.9% -0.3% 2.9% -1.7% -1.0% 0.2% -0.4% 0.1% -1.9%

Spreads 0.1% -0.1% -4.5% -3.7% -1.0% -0.4% -1.0% -0.6% -1.1%

Inflation 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Rates -0.8% -0.5% 0.7% 0.1% 0.6% -0.3% 0.1% 0.3% 0.5% 2 2003 Mortgage Sell Off

Volatility -0.2% 0.0% 0.6% 0.5% 0.5% 0.2% 0.5% 0.5% 0.6%

Other 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total 1.6% -1.5% -17.2% -26.1% -12.1% -6.3% -8.4% -13.6% -17.6% 7 Chinese Market Crash

Total ($mm) $1,079 -$1,010 -$11,792 -$17,956 -$8,308 -$4,357 -$5,759 -$9,311 -$12,060

3 2007 Credit Crisis 8 Rapid Deflation

9 Slow Deflation

4 2008 Market Crash

5 2011 US Downgrade

Oil price drops w hich causes short-

end of the inflation curve to drop. The 

short end of the nominal curve is held 

unchanged since nominal rates in the 

short end are already very low . Due to 

the new  round of quantitative easing 

agency mortgage rate spreads w iden. 

The period begins w ith an indication of 

a 50% chance of a US dow ngrade 

from S&P and ends w ith the Fed's 

Operation Tw ist announcement.  The 

stock market incurred losses w hile 

bond markets saw  gains due to f light 

to quality.

Chinese stoack market crash 

beginning w ith the popping of the 

stock market bubble on June 12, 2015. 

The timing and magnitude of 

Bernanke's testimony in front of 

Congress surprised the market, 

causing market volatility and both 

equity and bonds to sell off.  Emerging 

Markets suffered badly due to a f light 

of money to the US.An unexpected rise in Treasury yields 

engendered a massive sell-off of 

mortgage backed securities (MBS), 

resulting in increased MBS spreads 

and decreased credit spreads.  

Convexity selling as mortgage 

durations lengthen.

The Credit Crisis of 2007 resulted from 

the bursting of the housing bubble, a 

consequence of an unprecedented 

expansion of credit that helped feed a 

boom in the housing market. The 

bursting of the bubble forced banks to 

w rite dow n bad loans caused by 

mortgage delinquencies. The crisis 

saw  a massive decrease in Treasury 

yields and a w idening of both MBS 

and credit spreads.

Stress Testing

December 31, 2015

Stress Testing - Scenario Definitions

Oil price is kept unchanged. The 10yr 

inflation rate drops 200 bps. The 10yr 

nominal rate drops to historical low s 

w hile short-term nominal rates are 

held constant. Agency mortgage rate 

spreads tighten.

Treasuries sell-off resulting in a loss 

on interest rate returns. Equities and 

alternatives benefit as investors seek 

returns in other investments. 

Credit & liquidity crisis and equity 

market crash set off by Lehman 

Brothers bankruptcy. Signif icant 

credity spreads w idening caused by 

massive deleveraging.

1.6%

-1.5%

-17.2%

-26.1%

-12.1%

-6.3%

-8.4%

-13.6%

-17.6%

-30%

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

1.  2003 Treasury
Backup

2.  2003 Mortgage
Sell Off

3.  2007 Credit Crisis 4.  2008 Market
Crash

5.  US Downgrade
2011

6. Fed Tapering Talk
2013

7.  Chinese Market
Crash

8. Rapid Deflation 9. Slow Deflation

S
tr

e
s

s
 P

&
L

Equity Alternative Foreign Exchange Spreads Inflation Rates Volatility Other Total



9

4b. Scenario Analysis by Portfolio Sleeve
OPERF

Scenario Analysis by Portfolio Sleeve

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318
68717318 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

1.  2003 Treasury 

Backup

2.  2003 Mortgage 

Sell Off

3.  2007 Credit 

Crisis

4.  2008 Market 

Crash

5.  US Downgrade 

2011

6. Fed Tapering 

Talk 2013

7.  Chinese 

Market Crash
8. Rapid Deflation 9. Slow Deflation 1 2003 Treasury Backup 6 2013 Fed Tapering Scare

Capital Markets -0.1% -1.0% -8.6% -12.8% -5.9% -3.4% -3.6% -6.4% -8.1%

Equity 0.6% -0.5% -5.7% -10.0% -5.8% -2.8% -3.2% -6.2% -7.9%

Fixed Income -0.7% -0.4% -2.9% -2.9% -0.1% -0.6% -0.4% -0.2% -0.2%

Alternatives Program 1.7% -0.5% -8.5% -12.9% -6.0% -2.8% -4.7% -6.9% -9.2%

Alternatives Portfolio 0.1% 0.1% 0.0% -0.5% -0.2% -0.2% -0.5% -0.7% -0.9%

Opportunity Portfolio 0.0% 0.0% -0.1% -0.3% -0.1% -0.1% -0.1% -0.1% -0.2% 2 2003 Mortgage Sell Off

Private Equity 1.4% -0.5% -5.9% -8.5% -4.4% -1.3% -3.6% -5.4% -7.1%

Real Estate 0.3% 0.0% -2.4% -3.6% -1.2% -1.3% -0.5% -0.7% -1.0%

Overlay 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% -0.1% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -0.1% 7 Chinese Market Crash

Cash 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total 1.6% -1.5% -17.2% -26.1% -12.1% -6.3% -8.4% -13.6% -17.6%

Total ($mm) $1,079 -$1,010 -$11,792 -$17,956 -$8,308 -$4,357 -$5,759 -$9,311 -$12,060

3 2007 Credit Crisis 8 Rapid Deflation

9 Slow Deflation

4 2008 Market Crash

5 2011 US Downgrade

The period begins w ith an indication of 

a 50% chance of a US dow ngrade 

from S&P and ends w ith the Fed's 

Operation Tw ist announcement.  The 

stock market incurred losses w hile 

bond markets saw  gains due to f light 

to quality.

Chinese stoack market crash 

beginning w ith the popping of the 

stock market bubble on June 12, 2015. 

The timing and magnitude of 

Bernanke's testimony in front of 

Congress surprised the market, 

causing market volatility and both 

equity and bonds to sell off.  Emerging 

Markets suffered badly due to a f light 

of money to the US.An unexpected rise in Treasury yields 

engendered a massive sell-off of 

mortgage backed securities (MBS), 

resulting in increased MBS spreads 

and decreased credit spreads.  

Convexity selling as mortgage 

durations lengthen.

The Credit Crisis of 2007 resulted from 

the bursting of the housing bubble, a 

consequence of an unprecedented 

expansion of credit that helped feed a 

boom in the housing market. The 

bursting of the bubble forced banks to 

w rite dow n bad loans caused by 

mortgage delinquencies. The crisis 

saw  a massive decrease in Treasury 

yields and a w idening of both MBS 

and credit spreads.

December 31, 2015

Stress Testing - Scenario Definitions

Oil price is kept unchanged. The 10yr 

inflation rate drops 200 bps. The 10yr 

nominal rate drops to historical low s 

w hile short-term nominal rates are 

held constant. Agency mortgage rate 

spreads tighten.

Treasuries sell-off resulting in a loss 

on interest rate returns. Equities and 

alternatives benefit as investors seek 

returns in other investments. 

Credit & liquidity crisis and equity 

market crash set off by Lehman 

Brothers bankruptcy. Signif icant 

credity spreads w idening caused by 

massive deleveraging.

Oil price drops w hich causes short-

end of the inflation curve to drop. The 

short end of the nominal curve is held 

unchanged since nominal rates in the 

short end are already very low . Due to 

the new  round of quantitative easing 

agency mortgage rate spreads w iden. 

Stress Testing

1.6%

-1.5%

-17.2%

-26.1%

-12.1%

-6.3%

-8.4%

-13.6%

-17.6%

-30%

-25%

-20%

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

1.  2003 Treasury
Backup

2.  2003 Mortgage Sell
Off

3.  2007 Credit Crisis 4.  2008 Market Crash 5.  US Downgrade
2011

6. Fed Tapering Talk
2013

7.  Chinese Market
Crash

8. Rapid Deflation 9. Slow Deflation

S
tr

e
s

s
 P

&
L

Equity Fixed Income Alternatives Portfolio Opportunity Portfolio Private Equity Real Estate Overlay Cash Total



Appendix



11

5a. Risk Factor Breakdown by Portfolio Sleeve (Risk Contribution)
OPERF

Risk Factor Breakdown by Portfolio Sleeve (Risk Contribution)

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318

OPERF Equity Fixed Income Alternatives Portfolio Opportunity Portfolio Private Equity Real Estate

Equity 5.1% 12.4% 0.0% 1.6% 0.5% 0.0% 2.3%

Alternative 4.6% 0.0% 0.0% 17.8% 4.8% 18.0% 9.0%

Foreign Exchange 0.1% 0.2% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0%

Spreads 0.4% 0.0% 1.1% 0.0% 0.0% 1.0% 0.0%

Inflation 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Rates -0.1% 0.0% 1.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Volatility -0.3% -0.6% 0.0% 0.2% 0.1% 0.0% -0.2%

Total 10.2% 12.5% 2.1% 19.5% 5.3% 19.0% 11.2%

Capital Markets Alternatives Program

December 31, 2015

Analytical Risk

10.2%

12.5%

2.1%

19.5%

5.3%

19.0%

11.2%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

OPERF Equity Fixed Income Alternatives Portfolio Opportunity Portfolio Private Equity Real Estate

Capital Markets Alternatives Program

Risk Factor Breakdown by Portfolio Sleeve (%)

Equity Alternative Foreign Exchange Spreads Inflation Rates Volatility Total



12

5b. Risk Factor Breakdown by Portfolio Sleeve (Stand-Alone)
OPERF

Risk Factor Breakdown by Portfolio Sleeve (Stand-Alone)

Market Value ($m):  $68,717,318

OPERF Equity Fixed Income Alternatives Portfolio Opportunity Portfolio Private Equity Real Estate

Equity 5.4% 12.7% 0.1% 2.1% 0.9% 0.1% 2.8%

Alternative 4.8% 0.0% 0.0% 17.9% 4.8% 18.2% 9.2%

Foreign Exchange 1.8% 2.9% 0.0% 0.2% 0.1% 2.0% 1.5%

Spreads 0.8% 0.0% 1.9% 0.0% 0.0% 2.0% 0.0%

Inflation 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Rates 0.4% 0.0% 2.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0%

Volatility 0.4% 0.8% 0.0% 0.3% 0.1% 0.0% 0.8%

Diversification -3.3% -3.8% -1.9% -0.9% -0.6% -3.2% -3.0%

Total 10.2% 12.5% 2.1% 19.5% 5.3% 19.0% 11.2%

December 31, 2015

Analytical Risk

Capital Markets Alternatives Program

10.2%

12.5%

2.1%

19.5%

5.3%

19.0%

11.2%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

OPERF Equity Fixed Income Alternatives Portfolio Opportunity Portfolio Private Equity Real Estate

Capital Markets Alternatives Program

Risk Factor Breakdown by Portfolio Sleeve (%)

Equity Alternative Foreign Exchange Spreads Inflation Rates Volatility Diversification Total



TAB 7 – STATE ACCIDENT INSURANCE FUND 



Oregon Investment Council 
SAIF Corporation 

Purpose 
In accordance with OIC Policy 4.09.06 for SAIF: “Review of the asset allocation policy, investment 
management and performance will occur at least annually with the OIC and more frequently by OST 
staff.  These reviews will focus on the continued appropriateness of policy, compliance with guidelines 
and performance relative to objectives.  A formal process shall be established allowing SAIF staff to 
meet with OIC’s consultants on an annual basis to discuss issues of management and asset allocation. 
In addition, SAIF staff will have the opportunity to address the OIC annually to discuss SAIF’s 
particular views as to the management of the fund.” 

Background 
At the July 2013 OIC meeting, the OIC approved the following asset allocation changes for the SAIF 
portfolio: 

1. Investments which represent a direct ownership of commercial real estate or the purchase of
debt in commercial real estate.  Investments in this asset class will be implemented in the form
of private or publicly traded funds, seeking a five percent total fund allocation over time (and
funded by a commensurate decrease in core fixed income); and

2. Expanded the flexibility of fixed income managers to purchase high yield debt.  Also, allow
same managers to invest more broadly in below investment grade markets, specifically
allowing investments in bank loans and dollar denominated emerging markets debt.

To date, staff has not acted on the permitted allocation to private market real estate, given current 
valuation levels. 

Performance through January 2016 

FUND NAME 
MKT VAL 

$(M) % 
1 

YEAR 
3 

YEARS 
5 

YEARS 
7 

YEARS 
10 

YEARS 
STATE ACCIDENT INSURANCE FUND 4,498,964 100.0 -2.32 2.64 4.48 7.27 5.26 
OREGON SAIF POLICY INDEX -1.91 2.40 4.18 6.51 5.04 

BLACKROCK MSCI ACWI IMI INDEX FUND 408,713 9.1 -6.55 4.32 4.82 
MSCI ACWI IMI NET -6.87  3.95  4.45 

WELLINGTON MANAGEMENT COMPANY 2,024,062 45.0 -1.13 2.65 4.63 7.21 5.58 
WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT  2,001,061 44.5 -2.69 2.17 4.26 6.12 5.38 
OREGON SAIF FIXED INCOME INDEX  -1.45 2.17 4.05 5.66 5.21 

CASH FUND 56,839 1.3 0.51 0.59 0.69 0.92 1.80 
91 DAY T-BILL 0.05 0.05 0.07 0.10 1.23 

PLEDGED SECURITIES 8,289 0.2 0.46 0.85 1.05 1.02 
91 DAY T-BILL 0.05 0.05 0.07 0.10 

The SAIF portfolio has outperformed its policy benchmark for periods from three years through ten 
years. 

Recommendation 
None at this time.  Under separate cover, SAIF management will provide a business and operating 
update for their organization. 



Financial Overview 

 

OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 

March 9, 2016 

 
March 2, 2016 1 

  



Oregon’s Workers 
Compensation System 
• 100 Years old

• Mandatory Coverage; three-way system

• SAIF

• Private carriers

• Self-insure

• 1980’s: System in disarray

• Costs rising at an uncontrolled pace

• No limits on medical costs

• No limits on litigation

• 6th highest rates in the nation

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 2 



Oregon’s Workers 
Compensation System 
• 1990 Mahonia Hall reforms

• Restructured the system to benefit employers and
employees

• 66.3% reduction in pure premium rates

• 9th lowest rates in the nation

• Increased most benefit levels for workers

• Management Labor Advisory Committee created

• SAIF’s goal: maintain balance in the system

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 3 



Our Story 
• State chartered, public corporation

• Public mission: promote health and safety

• We operate as an insurer in a competitive market

• We’re the market leader

• Price

• Service

• Safety

• 50.1% market share

• 99.8% premium retention rate

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 4 



Key Financial Drivers 
• Premium revenues

• Market share

• The economy

° Employment rates, Income growth, Job mix 

• Claims experience

• Safety and health

• Getting injured workers back to work

• Investment returns

• Used to reduce prices

• Dividends for policyholders

• 18 of last 26 years

• An average of 31.5% of earned premium

• And one more…

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 5 



Changes to Loss Reserves 
• Total asset base: $4.8B

• Loss reserves: $2.9B

• A reserve is set for every significant claim

• Represents the full amount to be paid over the life of the claim

• Claims can last for decades

• Loss reserves are recalculated twice a year

• Adjusted for loss patterns: frequency and severity

• Medical cost inflation

• Job mix

• Can result in substantial shifts of capital

• $235M in 2015

• Major impact on bottom line

• Can go both ways

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 6 



Capital Base: “Surplus” 
• Surplus: Assets not offset by a liability

• Why is surplus necessary?

• Minimize the risk of breaking the promise we make to
policyholders and workers

• Maintain credibility in the market

• How much surplus is “enough”?

• There is no formula

• Regulators impose a minimum but not a maximum

• It’s really about risk tolerance

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 7 



Capital Base: “Surplus” 
• Risk Factors:

• Catastrophe

• Major economic downturn

• Changes in loss patterns or business mix

• Decline in investments

• Negative development in loss reserves

• Regulatory and statutory changes

• Inflation

• Workers’ Compensation has a “long tail”

• Special risk factors for SAIF:

• We are unable to spread risk: mono-state, mono-line

• No other sources of capital

• Growth in market share requires more capital

 
March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 8 



Facts 
Number of employers insured  
(including share of assigned risk pool)  50,713 51,419 

Total invested assets  $4.4 billion $4.4 billion 

Total assets  $4.8 billion $4.8 billion 

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves  $3.0 billion $2.9 billion 

Total liabilities  $3.5 billion $3.4 billion 

Surplus  $1,315.7 million $1,424.0 million 

Net earned premium  $474.6 million $491.1 million 

Market share (as of Dec. 31, 2014)  50.1% — 

Investment income  $193.2 million $155.7 million 

Policyholder dividend  $165.0 million $120.0 million 

Number of employees  903 944 

Retention percentage (premium)  99.6% 99.8% 

Average weighted expense load factor  1.223 —

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 9 

2014 2015 



Average weighted expense load factor 
SAIF, top 30 private carriers, average of top 30 and SAIF

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 10 



Net earned premium

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 11 



March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 12 

Investment income 

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 12 



Loss Reserves 
As of December 31, 2015 
Total $2,925.1 (dollars in millions)

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 13 

Definitions: 

LAE (Loss adjustment expenses) 
Reserves for the future cost of 
adjusting and processing claims 

PTD (Permanent total disability)  
Reserves for the loss of use or function 
of any portion of the body which 
permanently incapacitates the worker 
from regularly performing work at a 
gainful and suitable occupation 

PPD (Permanent partial disability)   
Reserves for permanent, complete, or 
partial loss of use of bodily extremities, 
including vision or hearing 

Other  Reserves for claims involving fatalities, 
claims which only include medical 
costs, injured worker attorney fees, 
vocational rehabilitation costs, and 
other claims related costs 



Surplus 
as of December 31

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 14 



Adequacy of surplus and reserves 

• Risk-based capital (RBC) is the minimum amount of capital
required by an insurance company to support its overall business
operations. The formula for determining RBC is developed and
maintained by the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (NAIC) and takes into consideration the size and
risk profile of the company.

• A 2015 audit by an independent actuary hired by the Secretary of
State Audits Division determined that SAIF’s loss reserves, as of
December 31, 2014, are in the reasonable range.

• Given SAIF’s adequate loss reserves, the independent actuary
concluded that SAIF’s surplus appears to be sufficient to support
SAIF as an ongoing concern over a five-year forecast horizon.

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 15 



SAIF's current investment policy 
At its September 25, 2013 meeting the Oregon Investment Council adopted 

the following policy.

Asset allocation 

March 2, 2016 SAIF Corporation 16 

Asset class Benchmark Strategic target allocation Range

Global equities MSCI  ACWI  IMI  
index 10% 7%–13% 

US fixed income Custom fixed 
income benchmark 85% 80%–90% 

Real estate NCREIF property 
index 5% 0%–7% 

Cash 0% 0%–3% 

Policy mix 

Weighted aggregate 
of indexes listed 
above at target 
allocation 

100% 



March 2, 2016 



TAB 8 – ASSET ALLOCATIONS & NAV UPDATES 



Asset Allocations at January 31, 2016

Variable Fund Total Fund

OPERF Policy Target1
$ Thousands Pre-Overlay Overlay Net Position Actual $ Thousands $ Thousands

Public Equity 32.5-42.5% 37.5% 23,871,947 36.2% 1,037,695 24,909,642 37.8% 595,839 25,505,481 

Private Equity 13.5-21.5% 17.5% 13,731,625 20.8% 13,731,625 20.8% 13,731,625 

Total Equity 50.0-60.0% 55.0% 37,603,572 57.0% 1,037,695 38,641,267 58.6% 39,237,106 

Opportunity Portfolio 0-3% 0.0% 1,292,012 2.0% 1,292,012 2.0% 1,292,012 

Fixed Income 15-25% 20.0% 14,897,146 22.6% 416,579 15,313,725 23.2% 15,313,725 

Real Estate 9.5-15.5% 12.5% 8,139,661 12.3% (17,900) 8,121,761 12.3% 8,121,761 

Alternative Investments 0-12.5% 12.5% 2,558,434 3.9% 2,558,434 3.9% 2,558,434 

Cash2 0-3% 0.0% 1,444,465 2.2% (1,436,374) 8,091 0.0% 10,397 18,488 

TOTAL OPERF 100% 65,935,290$  100.0% -$  65,935,290$  100.0% 606,236$       66,541,526$  

1Targets established in June 2015.  Interim policy benchmark consists of: 41.5% MSCI ACWI Net, 23.5% Custom FI Benchmark, 20% Russell 3000+300bps (1 quarter lagged), 
  12.5% NCREIF (1 quarter lagged), & 2.5% CPI+400bps. 
2Includes cash held in the policy implementation overlay program.

SAIF Policy Target $ Thousands Actual

Total Equity 7-13% 10.0% 408,713 9.1%

Fixed Income 80-90% 85.0% 4,033,412 89.8%

Real Estate 0-7% 5.0% 0 0.0%

Cash 0-3% 0% 49,051 1.1%

TOTAL SAIF $4,491,176 100.0%

CSF Policy Target $ Thousands Actual

Domestic Equities 25-35% 30% 405,638 29.5%

International Equities 25-35% 30% 361,271 26.3%

Private Equity 0-12% 10% 151,918 11.1%

Total Equity 65-75% 70% 918,827 66.9%

Fixed Income 25-35% 30% 419,747 30.5%

Cash 0-3% 0% 35,506 2.6%

TOTAL CSF $1,374,080 100.0%

SOUE Policy Target
3

$ Thousands Actual

Global Equities 65-75% 70% 1,393 69.9%

Growth Assets 65-75% 70% 1,393 69.9%

Fixed Income 25-35% 30% 597 30.0%

Cash 0-3% 0% 3 0.2%

Diversifying Assets 25-35% 30% 600 30.1%

TOTAL SOUE $1,993 100.0%
3
Revised asset allocation adopted by OIC, March 2015.

Regular Account



0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

Public Equity Private Equity Opportunity
Portfolio

Fixed Income Real Estate Alternative
Investments

Cash2

OPERF Asset Allocation 

Target1 Actual

10% 

85% 

5% 
0% 

9% 

90% 

0% 1% 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Total Equity Fixed Income Real Estate Cash

SAIF Asset Allocation 

Target Actual

30% 30% 

10% 

30% 

0% 

30% 

26% 

11% 

31% 

3% 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Domestic
Equities

International
Equities

Private Equity Fixed Income Cash

CSF Asset Allocation 

Target Actual

~OIC Monthly Report - January 2016



 38,323  

 37,194  

 38,387   38,383  

37,563   37,328   36,406 

 34,516  

 35,239  

 36,388   36,293  
 35,993  

 35,630  

 36,580  
 36,257   36,239  

 34,882  

 33,154   33,267  

 31,184  

 32,277  

 34,250  

 33,388  
 32,752  

 32,339   32,467  

 34,904  

 36,518  
37,052   37,318 

 37,841  
 38,038  

 41,526   41,932  
 43,609  

 43,927  

 44,398  

 45,365  

 44,403   44,558  
 45,112  

 44,089  
 44,772  

 45,415  
 46,027  

 47,490  

 48,688  

 47,959  

 48,976  

 48,184  
 47,488  

 48,996  
 49,484  

 51,303  
 51,631  

 52,601  

 51,746  

 52,974  

 54,080  

55,574   55,313 
 56,013  

 57,212  

 55,607   55,740  
 56,052  

 56,933  

 57,686  

 59,019  

 59,959  

 60,705  
 61,074   60,942  

 62,073  

 63,628  

 64,583  
 64,285  

 63,535   63,316 

 65,587  

 66,836  

 64,968   64,870  

 62,161  
 61,692  

 61,221  

 63,093  
 63,403  

 60,717  

 59,493  

 58,652  

 54,378  

 47,915  

46,052   45,796 

 44,113  

 42,070  
 41,521  

 43,954  

 46,119  

 45,323  

 47,294  

 48,538  

 50,556  
 49,878  

 51,028  

 52,440  

51,540   51,709 

53,121   53,271 

 50,973   50,863  

 52,401  
 51,807  

 54,152  

 54,985  
 54,327  

 56,681  
 56,993  

 57,682  

 58,778  

 59,629  
59,299   59,588  

 59,163 

 56,918  

 54,728  

 57,297  

 56,318  

 55,487  

 56,879  

 58,030  
 58,419   58,382  

 56,106  

 57,904  
 58,524   58,627  

 59,698  
 59,322   59,321  

 61,056  

 62,068   61,940  

 63,027  

 63,886  
 63,241   63,053  

 64,221  

 63,069  

 65,255  

 66,323   66,331  

 67,913  

 66,491  

 67,769  

 69,155   69,018  
 69,507  

 70,840  

70,095   70,382  
 69,964   69,913  

 70,459  
 70,025  

 69,342  

70,791   71,065  
 71,631   71,510  

 70,793  
 70,419  

 68,473  
 68,122  

69,656   69,510 

 68,704  

 65,939  

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

 50,000

 55,000

 60,000

 65,000

 70,000

 75,000

F
e
b

-0
1

A
p
r-

0
1

J
u
n
-0

1
A

u
g
-0

1
O

c
t-

0
1

D
e
c
-0

1
F

e
b

-0
2

A
p
r-

0
2

J
u
n
-0

2
A

u
g
-0

2
O

c
t-

0
2

D
e
c
-0

2
F

e
b

-0
3

A
p
r-

0
3

J
u
n
-0

3
A

u
g
-0

3
O

c
t-

0
3

D
e
c
-0

3
F

e
b

-0
4

A
p
r-

0
4

J
u
n
-0

4
A

u
g
-0

4
O

c
t-

0
4

D
e
c
-0

4
F

e
b

-0
5

A
p
r-

0
5

J
u
n
-0

5
A

u
g
-0

5
O

c
t-

0
5

D
e
c
-0

5
F

e
b

-0
6

A
p
r-

0
6

J
u
n
-0

6
A

u
g
-0

6
O

c
t-

0
6

D
e
c
-0

6
F

e
b

-0
7

A
p
r-

0
7

J
u
n
-0

7
A

u
g
-0

7
O

c
t-

0
7

D
e
c
-0

7
F

e
b

-0
8

A
p
r-

0
8

J
u
n
-0

8
A

u
g
-0

8
O

c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
F

e
b

-0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9
A

u
g
-0

9
O

c
t-

0
9

D
e
c
-0

9
F

e
b

-1
0

A
p
r-

1
0

J
u
n
-1

0
A

u
g
-1

0
O

c
t-

1
0

D
e
c
-1

0
F

e
b

-1
1

A
p
r-

1
1

J
u
n
-1

1
A

u
g
-1

1
O

c
t-

1
1

D
e
c
-1

1
F

e
b

-1
2

A
p
r-

1
2

J
u
n
-1

2
A

u
g
-1

2
O

c
t-

1
2

D
e

c
-1

2
F

e
b

-1
3

A
p
r-

1
3

J
u
n
-1

3
A

u
g
-1

3
O

c
t-

1
3

D
e
c
-1

3
F

e
b

-1
4

A
p
r-

1
4

J
u
n
-1

4
A

u
g
-1

4
O

c
t-

1
4

D
e
c
-1

4
F

e
b

-1
5

A
p

r-
1

5
J
u
n
-1

5
A

u
g
-1

5
O

c
t-

1
5

D
e
c
-1

5

OPERF NAV 
15 years ending January 2016 

($ in Millions) 



 2,485  
2,453   2,488   2,491   2,479  

 2,522  
 2,496  

 2,462  

 2,531   2,531   2,513   2,517   2,523   2,509  
 2,533   2,527   2,509  

 2,468  
 2,512   2,500 

 2,526  
 2,550  

2,577   2,593   2,598   2,597 
 2,645  

 2,723   2,724  
2,685   2,705 

 2,765  
 2,804   2,809  

 2,861  
 2,892  

 2,918   2,928  
 2,878   2,864 

 2,892   2,906 
 2,945  

 2,967  
 3,015   3,010  

 3,063  
 3,087  

 3,059  
 3,038  

 3,083  
 3,120  

 3,147  
 3,167  

 3,194  
 3,172   3,161 

 3,185  
 3,221  

 3,263   3,268  
 3,224   3,235 

 3,201   3,209  

 3,279  

 3,339  
 3,386  

 3,464  
 3,514  

 3,483  
 3,515  

3,558   3,539  

 3,607  
 3,582  

 3,551  
 3,574  

 3,603  

 3,659  

 3,731   3,737  

 3,674   3,693  
3,651   3,638  

 3,689  
 3,656  

3,611   3,598 
 3,622  

 3,418  

 3,180  

 3,256  

 3,476  

 3,401  

 3,294  

 3,345  

 3,446  

 3,545  

 3,610  

 3,787  

 3,839  

 3,930   3,935  

 3,993  
 3,949  

 3,997   4,014  
 4,047  

 4,026  

 3,974  

 4,044  

 4,146  

 4,203  
 4,246  

 4,270  

 4,219  

4,121   4,140  
 4,166   4,160  

 4,237  
 4,260  

 4,222  

 4,158  

 4,105  
 4,069  

 4,169  

 4,106  

 4,164  

 4,268  
4,304   4,284 

 4,335  
 4,304  

 4,340  

 4,455   4,460  
 4,505  

4,408   4,403   4,420   4,439   4,452   4,459  

 4,542  

 4,459  

 4,356  

 4,440  

 4,389  

 4,456  
 4,416   4,408   4,417  

 4,475  

 4,527   4,532  

 4,589  
 4,633  

 4,659  
 4,683  

 4,728  

 4,670  

4,567   4,587   4,590 

 4,685   4,676   4,683   4,692 
 4,671  

 4,602  

 4,657  

 4,587   4,594  
 4,546  

 4,524  
 4,483   4,491  

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

 4,500

 5,000

F
e
b
-0

1
A

p
r-

0
1

J
u

n
-0

1
A

u
g
-0

1
O

c
t-

0
1

D
e
c
-0

1
F

e
b
-0

2
A

p
r-

0
2

J
u

n
-0

2
A

u
g
-0

2
O

c
t-

0
2

D
e
c
-0

2
F

e
b
-0

3
A

p
r-

0
3

J
u

n
-0

3
A

u
g

-0
3

O
c
t-

0
3

D
e
c
-0

3
F

e
b
-0

4
A

p
r-

0
4

J
u

n
-0

4
A

u
g
-0

4
O

c
t-

0
4

D
e

c
-0

4
F

e
b
-0

5
A

p
r-

0
5

J
u

n
-0

5
A

u
g
-0

5
O

c
t-

0
5

D
e
c
-0

5
F

e
b
-0

6
A

p
r-

0
6

J
u

n
-0

6
A

u
g
-0

6
O

c
t-

0
6

D
e
c
-0

6
F

e
b
-0

7
A

p
r-

0
7

J
u

n
-0

7
A

u
g
-0

7
O

c
t-

0
7

D
e
c
-0

7
F

e
b
-0

8
A

p
r-

0
8

J
u

n
-0

8
A

u
g
-0

8
O

c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
F

e
b
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

J
u

n
-0

9
A

u
g
-0

9
O

c
t-

0
9

D
e
c
-0

9
F

e
b
-1

0
A

p
r-

1
0

J
u

n
-1

0
A

u
g
-1

0
O

c
t-

1
0

D
e
c
-1

0
F

e
b
-1

1
A

p
r-

1
1

J
u

n
-1

1
A

u
g
-1

1
O

c
t-

1
1

D
e
c
-1

1
F

e
b
-1

2
A

p
r-

1
2

J
u

n
-1

2
A

u
g
-1

2
O

c
t-

1
2

D
e
c
-1

2
F

e
b
-1

3
A

p
r-

1
3

J
u

n
-1

3
A

u
g
-1

3
O

c
t-

1
3

D
e
c
-1

3
F

e
b

-1
4

A
p
r-

1
4

J
u

n
-1

4
A

u
g
-1

4
O

c
t-

1
4

D
e
c
-1

4
F

e
b
-1

5
A

p
r-

1
5

J
u

n
-1

5
A

u
g
-1

5
O

c
t-

1
5

D
e
c
-1

5

SAIF NAV  
15 years ending January 2016 

($ in Millions) 



 761  

 732  

 766   769  

 739   736  
 719  

 679  

 699  

 732   730  
720   716  

 735  
 720   720  

 692  

646   654 

 612  

 639  

 683  
 665  

628   624   625 

 662  

 694  
702   697 

713   719 

 757  

 778  

 805  
 820  

 833   832  
 813   821   827  

 809   817 
 829  

 853  

 903  
 911  

 899  

 919  
 906  

 898  

 918  
 908  

 932   936  
947   940 

 979  
 993  
 1,005   1,003  

 1,017  
 1,036  

 1,010   1,014 
 1,000  

 1,028  
 1,045  

 1,083  

 1,119  
 1,109  

 1,123  
 1,138  

 1,148  

 1,185  

 1,209  

 1,169  
 1,153   1,152  

 1,187  

 1,226  

 1,196  

 1,153  

 1,100  
1,089   1,081 

 1,118  
 1,129  

 1,063  

1,006   999 

 899  

 781  
 765   765  

 725  

 678  

 720  

 780  

 835  

 812  

 869  

 894  

932   937 

 990  
 1,006  

958   964 

1,015   1,022 

 954  

 918  

 969  

 946  

 1,011  

1,050   1,056 

 1,108  
 1,096  

 1,115   1,122 

 1,159  
 1,147  

 1,139  

 1,107  

 1,055  

 997  

1,073   1,077   1,072 
 1,090  

 1,128  
1,140   1,135 

 1,073  
 1,087  

 1,101  
 1,119  

 1,145  
 1,155  

1,184   1,179 

 1,213   1,217  
 1,234  

1,259   1,254 

 1,207  

 1,244  
 1,226  

 1,280  

 1,332  

1,369   1,362 

 1,339  

 1,382  
 1,391   1,395  

 1,420  

 1,451  

 1,392  

 1,425  

 1,405  

 1,436  

 1,468  

 1,434  
 1,426  

 1,474   1,466 
1,483   1,490 

 1,447  
 1,456  

 1,395  
 1,375  

 1,462  
 1,473  

 1,424  

 1,374  

 500

 700

 900

 1,100

 1,300

 1,500

 1,700

F
e

b
-0

1
A

p
r-

0
1

J
u
n

-0
1

A
u

g
-0

1
O

c
t-

0
1

D
e
c
-0

1
F

e
b
-0

2
A

p
r-

0
2

J
u
n

-0
2

A
u

g
-0

2
O

c
t-

0
2

D
e
c
-0

2
F

e
b
-0

3
A

p
r-

0
3

J
u
n

-0
3

A
u

g
-0

3
O

c
t-

0
3

D
e
c
-0

3
F

e
b
-0

4
A

p
r-

0
4

J
u
n

-0
4

A
u

g
-0

4
O

c
t-

0
4

D
e
c
-0

4
F

e
b
-0

5
A

p
r-

0
5

J
u
n

-0
5

A
u

g
-0

5
O

c
t-

0
5

D
e
c
-0

5
F

e
b
-0

6
A

p
r-

0
6

J
u
n

-0
6

A
u

g
-0

6
O

c
t-

0
6

D
e
c
-0

6
F

e
b
-0

7
A

p
r-

0
7

J
u
n

-0
7

A
u

g
-0

7
O

c
t-

0
7

D
e
c
-0

7
F

e
b
-0

8
A

p
r-

0
8

J
u
n

-0
8

A
u

g
-0

8
O

c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
F

e
b
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

J
u
n

-0
9

A
u

g
-0

9
O

c
t-

0
9

D
e
c
-0

9
F

e
b
-1

0
A

p
r-

1
0

J
u
n

-1
0

A
u

g
-1

0
O

c
t-

1
0

D
e
c
-1

0
F

e
b
-1

1
A

p
r-

1
1

J
u
n

-1
1

A
u

g
-1

1
O

c
t-

1
1

D
e
c
-1

1
F

e
b
-1

2
A

p
r-

1
2

J
u
n

-1
2

A
u

g
-1

2
O

c
t-

1
2

D
e

c
-1

2
F

e
b
-1

3
A

p
r-

1
3

J
u
n

-1
3

A
u

g
-1

3
O

c
t-

1
3

D
e
c
-1

3
F

e
b
-1

4
A

p
r-

1
4

J
u
n

-1
4

A
u

g
-1

4
O

c
t-

1
4

D
e
c
-1

4
F

e
b
-1

5
A

p
r-

1
5

J
u
n

-1
5

A
u

g
-1

5
O

c
t-

1
5

D
e
c
-1

5

CSF NAV 
15 years ending January 2016 

($ in Millions) 



TAB 9 – CALENDAR/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 



2016 OIC Meeting Calendar and Planned Agenda Topics 
 
 
 
March 9: OPERF Real Estate Manager Recommendation 
 OPERF Alternatives Manager Recommendation 
 OPERF Real Estate Policy Recommendation 
 OLGIF Policy Recommendation 
 SAIF Annual Review 
 Q4 2015 OPERF Performance & Risk Report 
 
April 20: OPERF Overlay Review 
 Alternatives Portfolio Review 
 CSF Annual Review 
 OIC Policy Update Placeholder 
 
June 1: OITP Review 
 Securities Lending Update 
 OIC Real Estate Consultant Recommendation 
 Q1 2016 OPERF Performance & Risk Report 
 
August 3: Corporate Governance Update 
 OPERF Litigation Update 
 
September 14: Public Equity Program Review 
 OIC Private Equity Consultant Recommendation 
 OPERF Q2 2016 Performance & Risk Report 
 OSGP Update 
 
October 26: OSTF Review 
 Fixed Income Program Review 
 CEM Benchmarking Report 
 OIC General Consultant(s) Recommendation 
 
December 7: OPERF Q3 2016 Performance & Risk Report Report 
 Real Estate Program Review 
 Opportunity Portfolio Review 
 


	AGENDA
	TAB 1 – REVIEW & APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	TAB 2 – LONE STAR REAL ESTATE FUND V 
	TAB 3 – BROOKFIELD INFRASTRUCTURE FUND III, LP 
	TAB 4 – OPERF REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO 
	TAB 5 – OREGON LOCAL GOVERNMENT INTERMEDIATE FUND 
	TAB 6 – OPERF Q4 2015 PERFORMANCE & RISK REPORT 
	TAB 7 – STATE ACCIDENT INSURANCE FUND 
	TAB 8 – ASSET ALLOCATIONS & NAV UPDATES 
	TAB 9 – CALENDAR/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
	TAB 09.01 PUBLIC - Revised - OIC Forward Calendar March 2016.pdf
	2016 OIC Meeting Calendar and Planned Agenda Topics




